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INTRODUCTION

Centaur Media advises, informs and connects business professionals
using data, insight and events.

From our digital publishing brands to our award-winning events and cutting-edgs data products, we anable business leaders to accelerate
their corporate performance

Wa have the information that our markets want and need We create valuable products and services that combine the deepest secior
knowledge with best-in-class adwsory services to provide clients with tangible solutions.

Centaur Media is - at its heart — a content business. We continually redefine what content means in the 215t Century and seek new ways to
bring that content to our customers

Qur Segments

MARKETING PROFESSIONAL

FINANCIAL

SERVICES - SERVICES
* Econsultancy + The Lawyer * Money Marketing
* Marketing Week + The Engineer » Platforum
¢ Creative Review ¢ Business Travel Show * Mortgage Strategy
= Celebrity Intelligence « The Meetings Show » Tax Briefs
= Faghion & Beauty Monitor » Employee Benefits Live * Headline Money
¢ Design Week * Subcon

» MarketMakers
* Oystercatchers
» Festival of Marketing

I /’t Read mare in the At a Glance pages 4to S

Investment Case
} We have brands in attractive markets that are providing strong arganic growth opportunities
) We are highly cash generative with good conversion of operating profits into cash flow

} We have growing events and digital premium content platforms that are creating a high
quality mix of recurring revenues and earnings and are now supported by complementary
advisory businesses




www centaurnmedia com

-
OVERVIEW

The Centaur Ambition Contents
P To create sustainable growth in profits and cash OVERVIEW
. . . . Introduct 1
flows with high quality, recurring revenue streams ,:i;fﬂi;ﬁtf” 2
and an efficient scalable operating model to increase Charrman’s Statement 3
shareholder value At a Giance 4
P To advise, inform and connect business professionals STRATEGIC REPORT
Lo Strategy 2]
through data, insight and events Bi smes | et 7
. Parformance CEO Review 10
p To harness the power of market leading brands O B et o 16
to transform the non-paying reader into a loyal <8y Perfec mance mdcate ¢ 17
. Pertormance CFO Rewview 18
paying customer Risk Management 22
. . Vigiont, Srainmeny 25
} To build products and services that always add Conporate Resporsibilty 2%
value to our customers’ professional lives and help : onT
. . GOVERNANCE REP
leaders accelerate their business performance
. Board of Directors 28
and competltlveness Executve Commuttee 30
Directors’ Report 31
Directors’ Staterment on
Corporate Governance 33
Audit Committee Report 37
Nomination Committee Report 41
Remuneration Committee Report 42
Staterment of Directors’ Responsibilities 58
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Independent Auditors’ Report 56
Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income 64
Consclidated Statement of
Changes in Equity 65
Company Statement of
Changes in Equity 66
Consoldated Statement of
Financial Position 67
Company Statement of
Financial Position 68
Caongoldated Cash Flow Statement 69
} Read about our performance at Company Cash Flow Statement 70
Www.centaurmedia, com Notes to the Financial Statements 7t
OTHER INFORMATION
Five year record 114
Other information 115

01



Centaur Media Plc

Annual Repoit and Financial Statements -

HIGHLIGHTS

Financial highlights
s Group revenue inctuding the Home Interest segment maintained
at £72.6m; underlying’ revenue fell 6%

— Digital premiurm content revenues +3% (reported and
underlying'}

— Underiying large events revenues +7%; reported large
events ~-10%

- Undarlying' advertising revenues -19%:; reported -27%

* Adjusted operating profit? including the Home Interest segment
was £6.6m (2016 £9 1m}); adjusted operating margin? 9.1%
(2016° 12 6%)

— 2017 revenues and operating profit for acquired and disposed
businesses included:

- MarketMakers - post acquistion revenue/adjusted” operating
profit: £6 1Tm/€1.1m

— Home Interest - pre-disposal revenue/adjusted? operating
profit. £7.2m/A2 1m

* Excluding the Home Interest segment, adjusted operating profit*
was £4.1m (2016 £4.2m) due to continued decline In advertising
revenues®

* Statutory profit of £21 9m (2016: Loss of £5.4m) is dnven by
a £223m gam on the disposal of the Home Interest segment. A
statutory operating loss of (£G 3m) (2016, £8 4m) s a result of
£4.4m of excephonal terms (2016, £12.6m) relating prmarily to the
amortisation of acquired intangibles and transaction related costs

Excluding the Horre Interest segment, a reported statutory loss
after tax of (£1.1m) (2016* £9 Om) was driven primarily by non-
cash amortisation of acguired intangibles of £2.5m, earn-out
costs of £0.6m and acquisttion costs of £0 6m.

. & Strong cash flow performance:

- £3.9m maovement in working capitat compared with £4.1m
in 20186

Adjusted operating cash flow® of £14.1m (2016, £16.5m)

Elimmnated net debt® and provided the Group with £4.1m of net
cash at the end of 2017, with funds now available to pursue
strategic acquisitions with potential synergy opportunities

Cash conversion* of 138% (2016 133%)
Post Capex cash flow of £11 3m {2016 £13 9m)

"+ Adusted diuted EPS? of 3 2p [2016' 4 5p) Diuted EPS of 14.3p
{2016, (3.8)
« Final dwidend of 1.5p making total for the year of 3.0p, in ine with
. last year

' Strong operational progress
. Moved to pure B2B business

~ Sale and successtul transfer of Home Interest
- Acquistion and successful ntegration of MarketMakers

~ Created pure play business information Group with improved
revenue and recurming revenues increasing from 36% to 44%

¢ Querheads savings achieved as business complexity was reduced

' Underlying revenue growth rates adjust for the timing of the Oystercatchers acquisition in 2016, the disposal of the Home Interest
Segment, the acquisition of MarketMakers, the closure of Metalworking Production in 2016 and the biennial contribution from The
Advanced Manufacturing Show ('AMS’). See note 1(b} to the financial statements.

2 Adjusted results exclude adjusting items, as detailed in note 1(D) to the financial statements.

3 See note 1(b) to the financial statements for explanation and reconciliation of adjusted operating cash flow.

* Cash conversion is calculated as adjusted operating cash flow / adjusted operating profit excluding depreciation and

amortisation charges.

5 See note 1(b) to the financial statements for explanation of net del

bt and note 28 for a reconciliation to statutory measures.

¢ Restated to reflect the Home Interest segment as a discontinued operation {refer to note 8).

These footnotes apply throughout the document.
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OVERVIEW‘

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholder

I am very pleased to present my first
Annual Report as Charman, following my
appointment In January 2018, and am
delghted to have joined Centaur at such
an nteresting time A great deal has been
achieved in the past four years in transitioning
Gentaur Media into a more focused B2B
information group. | am looking forward
to working with the Board and supporting
the broader management team to take
advantage of the opportunities ahead.

All businesses are facing challenges dniven
by the canstantly evolvwng digital backdrop
and the increasing competition for attention
and performance Centaur 1s successfully
managing its own adaption to this changing
landscape by reducing its expasure to print
advertising and growing its higher quality
cigital recurring revenues.

The Group has invested in buiiding an
cutstanding pertfolio of business intetigence
products that helps its clents by prowding
valuable information, analvtics and insight,
allowing them to maximise the value of this
through adwisory services, media channels
and events to help connect with their
customers

In the relatively short period that | have
been Charrman, my time has been spent
learning about the business, the market
dynamics and the opportunities ahead

I have been impressed by the guality and
commitment of the team across all areas

| am still In the process of fully understanding
every aspect of the Group, and this 1s

my immediate focus However, my first
impressions are that there 18 clear potential
and | am confident we can build on the
transformation work already completed anc
take the business forward both organically
and through further strategic acquisitions

Group performance

It has been a satisfactory year in terms of
underlying' parformance with our continuing
operations reporting an adjusted operating
profit? of £4.1m in the year against £4.2m in
2016 This is despite the continued decline
in advertising revenues which has been
compensated for by our expansion into
capability services through the acquistion
of MarketMakers.

Inclucing the results of the Home Interest
Segment to the date of disposal, our
adjusted operating profit? was £6 6m, down
from £9 1min 2016 with revenue remaining
flat at £72.6m (2016: £72 5m).

Following our strategic decision to dispose
of our last B2C segment, Home Interest, we
recorded a £20.8m profit on disposal of this
area of our business This drove a reported
total comprehensive iIncome of £21.9m for
the year Fully diluted earnings per share
were 14 3p (2016 (3.8p)). On an adjusted?
results basis, earmngs per share was 3.2p
{2018. 4.5p).

Cash generation has remained excellert
cver the year and | am pleased 1o report
continued excellent progress so far in 2018
This, combined with the excess proceeds
of the Home Interast Segment disposal,
gves us the firepower to dnve our strategic
growth agenda

Strategic progress

2017 was a year when the Group was able
to take advantage of the hard work that
bagan in 2014 The measurable improvement
of the quality of the revenue mix reflects
management’s careful reduction of exposure
to print ang advertising revenues alongside
developrnant of new insight-led revenue
streams.

The strategic transactions over the past

year have reinforced this focus and have
created greater opportunities to offer
complementary senaces 10 customers

The disposal of the B2C Horne [nterest
Segment was a key milestone, creating

a pure B2B focused group and enabling

the acquisttion of MarketMakers, a lead
generation powerhouse. MarketMakers is
now fully integrated and I1s already having

a positive iImpact across the Group, Whilst
growing tts own client base it is also creating
opportunities to cross-sall our senvices to our
existing client base

Board changes

On behalf of the Board, | would tke to

thank my predecessor, Ron Sandler, for his
significant contnbution to the Group over the
years His advce and insight were of great
value during this important penod of change
and transformation away from a publishing
media business to a pure play B2B business
information group. We wish him the very best
with his future endeavours

Governance

Centaur remains fully committed to the
highest standards of corporate governance
and the Board takes very senously ts duties
to operate with integrity, transparency

and clear accountability. It also pays close
attenticn to understanding and managing
nsk. Detai of what this means in practice 1s
contained within the Governance section of
the Annual Report

Qur people

On behalt of the Board, | would like to thank
&ll our employees for their commitment and
hard work this year Therr dedication remans
essential In helping us to achieve our goals
The Group has seen a great deal of change
but throughout this everyone has remained
focused on providing the services and
support our customers’ value | look forward
to getting to know maore people across

the business and working with thern in the
months and years ahead.

Dividend

In ight of the full year performance, the
Board s recommending a final dvdend of
1 5p per share, to give an unchanged total
ddend for the year of 3.0p per share. The
Board will continue to keep its dividend
policy under review.

QOutlook

| beleve there are many opportunities
avallable to the business Last year was a
year of important operational progress and
2018 has started well. | am confident in the
outlook of the Group and focused upon
ensuring that Camtaur delivers long-temm
value for our clients and sharehoiders

NEIL JOHNSON

Chairman

20 March 2018
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AT A GLANCE

Centaur is successfully evolving from a traditional publishing and events
business into a B2B business information group.

Centaur advises, informs and connects professionals to enable businesses
to optimise their corporate growth performance. Our recent acquisitions
of Oystercatchers and MarketMakers have enabled Centaur to expand its
product and service offering.

Centaur Media operates across MARKETING:
three market verticals: Marketing,
Professional Services and
Financial Services.

Our Marketing portfolio showcases the very best of
Britain's marketing and creativity, combining digital,
print and video content with practical resources that
inspire brands and enable industry professionals

to achieve marketing excellence We engage the
marketing ndustry with 2 8 miliion touch-points per
month through msight, data and events

We have focused on bullding deeper customer
retationships, improvmg the product offering and
customising capabilties

04
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SEGMENT REVENUE

MARKETING £3 6 . 3 m

SEGMENT REVENUE

sevices c207m

TOTAL REVENUE

£65.4m

SEGMENT REVENUF

FINANCIAL
il <5 O

PROFESSIONAL FINANCIAL

SERVICES: SERVICES:

The Professional segment includes two subsidiary Qur Finance portfolio provides news, analysis and

markets The Lawyer and Exhibiions with around 60% insight to enable fund managers, product providers and

of revenue coming from live events and a growing financtal intermedianes to maximise therr commercial

proportion of revenue from digital premium content performance through print, digital products and a range
of events

The Lawyer I1s a muft-platform intelligence trand
with digital subscriptions, ive events and digita
adverlising revenue streams

Qur Exhibitions mclude Subcon, an exhibitton that
serves the sub-contractor industry, Employee Benefits
Live, Business Travel Show and The Meetings Show

05
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STRATEGY

Centaur Media offers professionals products and
services that accelerate their business performance.

Background and context

Centaur began its transformation programme in 2014. its strategy
15 based on the Group’s abilty to use legacy print brands, editonal
expertise and conngctions to butid longar term, sustainable higher
quairty reverue streams. This focus has drivert Centaur to reshape
and refocus its portiolio through organic nnovation, disposals
and acquisitions.

To achweve this transformation Centaur has to navigate some critical
yet potentiaily conficting hurdles. The Group needs to:

Maximise contribution from the rapidly
daclining but highly profitable advertising
revenues in the short term

Maintain shareholder support

To achieve its goal within these tight parameters, management 1s
smploying a gradual, year-on-year ‘balanced’ approach which has
delivered attractive dividends to shareholders alongside the digital
product Investrment reguired to deliver long-term organic growth

Early improvements made to the heritage publishing products

have enabled the Group to maximise highly profitable advertising
revenues In the short-term, facilitating the digital product investment
which 1s slowly reshaping the Group through organic innovation

By focusing on content that engages key professional communities,
the Group is creating insight-led products and servicas which ars
valued and which professionals are willing to buy and subscribe to

06
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Business model

Centaur's transformation strategy has created a more format neutral, GContent remains king but now the Group can additionally offer

aglle business which 1s iess complicated and more customer focused end-to-end sofutions which combine the strengths of its publishing
brands' deep market knowledge and relationships with best-in-

Certaur 13 now a B28 business nformation group that advises, class business consultancies. When clients need information and
informs and connects business professionals through data, insight insightful guidance, the Group possesses the trusted brands and
and events — a Group focused on enabling its clients to accelerate the capabilities to provide valuable sclutions

therr business performance

Unique combination of content expertise and matketing services

._.'BUSINESS ADVISORY SERVICES BUSINESS INTELLIGENCE MEDIA & EVENTS

Caonsultancy and training services
advise professionals how 1o accelerate
- their business performance and
deliver greater RQ! and provide a
clear path ta tangible action.

INFORM CONNECT

Advising, Informing and Connecting Business Professionals Using L ing Events

Our combination of specific professional, community content expertise and marketing
services gives us a unique advantage
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STRATEGY

Customers now benefit from additional
& complementary products

Data & Lead
Generation
& v
A 3rd Party 0'4_
O Optimisation s
w o
=3 <
g Strategic 5 W
O LOYAL Consultancy

Evente & CUSTOMERS

Experiential

Training

Briefings & Iarked reports

Webinars
- Thought
L st

1’

Ug; . e
Siness lntel\\ge“c

ADVISE HOW TO IMPROVE
PERFORMANCE & ROI

« Lead generation

« Consulting services

« Training & capability

« Agency search & performance
« Influencer marketing

INFORM USING DATA,
CONTENT & INSIGHT

« Bespoke content & thaught leadership
Market reports and research

Premium content subscription
Business information & data

Data analytics

CONNECT TO SPECIFIC
COMMUNITIES

« Free news and commentary

« Large industry leading evertts

e Clubs & roundtables & expert panels
« Brand profile

Gradually Centaur is converting audiences to customers and Is consolidating around the strongest brands.
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A higher quality revenue mix

The investrment into digital intelligence products and our acquisitions
n marketing adwvisory senvices Is enabling us to broaden our
services to our core chents and build revenues of a higher quality as
we reduce our reliance on advertising revenues,

Whilst total print revenue has fallen over the last four years from
generating 24% of total income in 2014 to 10% in 2017, new pad
for products ke evants, e-learning, subscriptions and advisory
senices are successfully replacing the declining advertising
revenuas on which the Group was reliant,

Recurring and repeat revenues have grown consistently and now

make up 44% of total revenue:

e Excluding MarketMakers, digital prermium content revenues have
grown from ¢.£14m in 2014 {19% of total revenue) to £18m in
2017 (26% of total revenus)

Exhibrtion revenues have grown from ¢.£8.0m to ¢.£10m
{excluding Home Interest/Aidex)

Revenue mix improvements
over the last 4 years

2017 Recurring & repeat revenues 44%
e Marketing services +8%

= |arge events +3%

» Digital premium content +5%

» Digital advertising -1%

s Total advertising revenues -10%

» Total print revenues -14%

80 ——— =

70

60 —

50

w 40

30

20

10

°- 2016 2017
M Print W Digital advertising M Digita! premium content
M Events %9 Marketing services

This strategy to drive cross seiing of business information will not
only deliver organic growth by improving customer hfetime vatue,
but also enabies the Group to become less dependent on tachcal
trade advertising

Strategic portfolio progress

The last 12 months was a pivotal year when the Group made the
switch it had been stnving for and became truly digital-first as it
substarttially reduced the number of pnnt magazine 1ssues produced
each year from over 300 to less than 75 The success of building

a portfolio of digital inteligence products such as Econsultancy,
Celebrity Intelligence, Fashion & Beauty Monitor, The Lawyer and
Platforum, as well as the Business Travel Show and Festival of
Marketing events, allowed the transiton away from chatlenging
weekly print schedules

Additionally, the transformation and rebuifd of 82C assets was
realised with the disposal of non-core B2C Home Interest Segment
for a headine pnce of £32m This now allows the Group to be
focused purely on B2B The funds from Home Interest also enabled
the acquisition of MarketMakers, a complementary B2B marketing
services business

The MarketMakers acquisition i1s a further step towards providing
customers with capability and innovation that helps them to
accelerate ther business growth performance.

il marketmakers TN

MarketMakers 1s a new business and lead generation outsourcing
solution for clients wanting to grow B2B revenues. [t offers a rich
array of marketing services including: market segmentation; data
analytics; data base ennchment, autcmated lead generation and
B2B telemarketing

)
%
!

7 Leads ¥
4 Appomtmems
X Sales

-ROI

Now fully integrated, MarketMakers will begin to work with Centaur
to accelerate the growth of its digital subscription products and it
has launched a pilot to mprove the RO for exhibitors by reducing
lead generation wastage at events
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CEO Review

Annual Report and Fi ciat Statements *

“We have successfully reshaped the portfolio, Y
improved the long-term quality of our revenues
and reduced our exposure to advertising. We
are now a business information group with a
strategy that continues to leverage our audience
and increase our importance to customers.”

ANDRIA VIDLER
Chief Executive Officer

Overview of 2017

it has been an important year for Centaur Media as we continued
our transformation to becoming one of the UK’s leading 828
business information groups. We have invested i pnonty digital
platforms, identified operational improvements and efficiencies
and reshaped the portfolio through two strategically important
transachons

The quality of revenue continues to Improve, with a further Increase
n the percentage of recurring repeat revenues combined with a
further reduction of exposure 1o print advertising, which remains

in structural decline. Trws places Centaur Media on far stronger
foundaticns for long-term growth and value generation.

Recurnng revenues now represent 44% of total revenues with
underlying' digital premium content and exhibition revenues 28%
and 19% respectively This heaithily compares to 2014 when
pnnt and total advertising represented 24% and 31% of Group
revenue respectively.

The improvement in revenue mix reflects the successful execution
of our business strategy with digital preducts and services that
adwvise, inform and connect busmess prafessionals thraugh msight,
data and events.

We are particularly pleased to have delivered an improved
operational perfarmance. This is reflected m adjusted operating
profit? of £6.6rn.

Overall, the underhying momenturmn of Centaur Media 1s encouraging,
and the Beard 1s confident n the fong-term prospects of the Group.

Transformation of Centaur Media

Four years ago, Centaur set off on a strategy 10 create a Group that
could take advantage of the editorial expertise and connectons

of its pubbshing brands and simultaneously move away from the
refiance on tactical trade advertising. By focusing on clients’ needs
and challenges, we Invested in buiding valuable content sources
that our professional communiies would be prepared to buy and
subscribe to, n order to improve ther business competitiveness.

Throughout this period of change, the structural decline in
print advertising has been well publicised, Impacting our legacy
print businesses.

Against this background, we have maxmised the contribution from
these highly profitable advertising revenues, reinvesting the profits to
bath grow the reshaped Group and support the dvidend policy.

2017 proved the year we were abie to start to take advantage of the
hard endeavours that began in 2014,

Key highlights inchaide-

s Cur task to transform the Home Interest portfolio into a strong,
compettive business was compieted with the disposal of this
non-core B2G Home Interest segment for a total consideration
of £32.8m This enabled us to focus purely on B2B and acquire
MarketMakers for an initial consideration of £13.3m excluding
working capital MarketMakers is now wtegrated, significantly
enhancing our service to professional marketers

Our success in building digital content products such as The
Lawyer and events such as Festival of Marketing and Business
Travel Show allowed us to exit challenging weekly pnnt schedules
- radically reducing the number of issues produced each year
from aver 300 to less than 75 and reducing our ongaing total print
exposure to less than 10%. We are now in control of aur pnnt
business and what we want from i,

* We addressed a significant number of finance process
Issues as the business changed its ways of working. This
matenally strengthened several aspects of the Group's financial
management whilst iImproving working capital and cash flow.
Debtor days were reduced from 77 to 52 and cash conversion in
2017 was 138% (2016; 133%).

10
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We created a less cormplicated, more focused and mmble
business as a result of strategic action taken in print and the
B2C disposal This has led to management identifying internal
efficiencies which are being reabsed. Central overheads were
reduced by £1 7m in 2017

In short, Centaur Media is now converting audiences to customers
and censolidating arcund its strongest brands The investment into
new content scurces 1S bukding new revenues of a higher qualty
and replacing declining advertising revenues

We have become a unique B2B group We can offer our clients
end-to-end solutions that combine the strengths of our publishing
brands' deep market knowledge with best-in-class business
consultancy services. We have trusted brands and capabiiies
providing effective solutions for clients searching for information and
insightful guidance.

The Group 1s well placed for growth having strengthened its
competitiveness, created products and services to meet customer
demand and built capabilities to unlock its future growth.

In respect of our three market segments, B6% of Group revenues
are weighted towards the Marketing and Professional services
segments with Financial services accounting for the remainder

Strengthened balance sheet

The completion of the disposal of our Home Interest segment,
combined with straong cash generation, has significantly
strengthened our balance sheet We now have net cash,

with £25m of untapped cradit faciliies with which to make
strategic acquisitions

Dividend

In hght of this performance, the Board I1s recommending a final
dwidend of 1.5p per share, to give a total dividend for the year of
3 Op per share.

Positive outlook
Although advertising market conditions remain challenging, they
represent a decreasing share of Group revenue.

The Group has made a positive start to 2018 and we reman
confident that our strategy to invest in digital products and senices
which advise, inform and connect business professionals through
insight, data and events, will continue to deliver long-term value for
our clients and shareholders.

We intend to grow both organically and through acguisition, Organic
growth i1s forecast to come from improving customer Iifeime value,
cross-seling and internationat scalability of digital intelligence
products As welt as iImproving profits from our consultancy and
advisory business, we anticipate further growth following the
acquisition of MarketMakers, which has already started to positively
impact our client offenng and internal capabilities

Segment review

Marketing

This segment includes all the Group’s brands that serve marketing
and creative professionals ncluding Econsultancy, Marketing Week,
Festival of Marketing, Celebrity Inteligence, Fashion & Beauty
Monitor, Design Week, Creative Review, Oystercatchers and
Centaur’s most recent acquisthon, MarkeiMakers

The portfolio now represents 56% of the Group’s revenue, It s the
strongest example of cur Group strategy to continue to deliver long-
term value for our chents and shareholders by investment in digital
products and services

Marketing Week, alongside Creative Beview and Dasign Week,
accelerated #ts move away from print-based revenues in 2017 with

a digrtal first, content-led strategy Unlike 2016, these brands all
suffered from double-digit dechne in traditional advertising revenue
and recruitment streams as clients throughout the year reduced therr
advertising spend

The opportunity now exists for our teams to offer broader horizontal
clent soluticns - a key area of development for Centaur’s next
phase of growth, helping us to further reduce exposure to

volatie advertising streams by buillding higher value, longer term
relationships with clients

Our focus on fewer, larger events has worked well with growth in
profits for both Marketing Week Live and Festival of Marketing. The
Festival, staged in October 2017, receved pasitive reviews from
defegates and commercial partners alke. Of particular ncte was
the 379% growth in delegate revenues With over 300 speakers and
mare than 200 hours of content, it is clear that marketers value the
Festwal's content and are attending In Increasing numbers ta learn
and network Notable speakers included Stephen Fry, Mark Ritson
and Jo Malone. Customer satisfacticn scores (NPS) have increased
year-on-year, firmly establishing the Festival as a teading global
event We're delighted to see it continue to grow as the only giobal
event in the sector where brand marketers compnse over 60% of
s customer tase compared with competitors such as Festival of
Medha and Advertising Week with 10-15%.

Marketing Week's successful Mint MBA in Marketing underpinned
the development of a Centaur-wide onfine classroom platform
which successfully launched a senes of modern-day micro learning
maodules and online classrooms for Econsultancy, Celebrity
Inteligence and The Lawyer.

Recognising the loyal and highly valuable audiences drawn together
collectvely through our three hertage publishing brands Marketing
Waek, Creative Review and Design Week, we are beginning to
leverage therr market influence as online digtal ‘windows'. It Is
through these shop windows thal we expect readers to access and
purchase additional branded content such as market reports and
training courses from Econsultancy and other affiliate partners. This
pilot wilt continue to be monitored throughout 2018,
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PERFORMANCE:

CECQ Review

2017 was a pivotal year for Qystercatchers as it integrated into
Centaur and buit a fresh new propostition combining the best of two
wonrlds — Oystercatchers’ unique pitch model, consuitancy, training
and Club, alongside the expert content and events of Centaur
brands such as Econsultancy and Festval of Marketing.

The team had success In broadening their remit with clients such
as EY and Samsung. It anboarded exciting new clients mcluding
Farmuia One and Centrica and brought new processes and
transformational change to the Post Office and Bwin,

As a result of client success, the Financial Tirnes acknowledged
Oystercatchers as one of the UK's lgading management
consyttancies and awarded the brand four out of six stars in the
marketing, brand and pricing category alongside AT Kearney,
Capgemini and LEK Consulting.

Both Econsultancy and Oystercatchers suffered from a decline n
face to face training in the second half of the year. However, gven
market demand for Elearning and growth potential, Oystercatchers’
training team has been consolidated within Econsultancy creating a
combmed force to deliver digital excellence. in tandern, this internal
move allows Oystercatchers to focus on its core consultancy
services and help the wider Centaur Group improve horizontality and
delver end-to-end valuable sclutions for clents.

Meanwhile, Ecaonsultancy's sponsored research division recorded a
strong year-on-year performance with key projects complated with
global innovation and technology clients including Microsoft, Google,
Adobe and LinkedIn

Having entered 2017 with challenging underlying business trends for
Econsultancy, Celebrity Intetigence and Fashion & Beauty Monrtor
digital products, we exited the year with a positive upswing.

The marketing tech and digital product landscape has become
increasingly compehbtive with many new smtrarts laking advantage
of new cleud technologies leading to fower barrers to entry for
learning and advisory products. Ag a result, driving our digitat
product development upgrades bacame a key focus for 2017 and
will rermain smportant throughout 2018

Along with Celsbrity Intsligence and Fashion & Beauty Monitor,
Econsultancy's digitat product offering will be upgraded to provide
a more competitive 'essential marketing learning toal' Witk the
praduct scope now well defined, dedicated Product Managers are
butding new customer-led product features and funchonality which
will be released throughout H2 2018,

Annual Report and Financial Statements -

In 2017, Fashion & Beauty Monitor and Celebnity Inteligence
benefited from the first overhaut of technical product upgrades

and have introduced new social media analytics, market insight
and research reports to their product suite. The Profile Group’s
2017 technology roadmap involved toth customer-facing front end
development and back end capabilty infrastructure.

The incorporation of machine learning and real-time data feeds
15 enabling greater automation across these digital subscription
products and will deliver further cost reduction During 2018, an
expanded surtte of e-lgarning products and adwisory serwces,
combined with the technical content and UX upgrades, will re-
establish our competitive brand USPs and help to build yeld and
new business

MarketMakers, our latest acquistion, 1s a B2B new business
powerhouse. It offers creative services, data analytics, lead
generation, marketing automation and telemarketing The acquisition
has enabled Centaur to deploy best practice telemarketing
capabilibes at scale and better leverage data insight. It has also
created a base from which to explot growing market demand for
ntegrated, automated marketing and inteligence services.

As we enter 2018 Gentaur 15 tnalling an outsourcing of subscnption
new pusiness sales to MarketMakers o take advantage of ts
marketing automation technology and efficient, operational
telernarketing infrastructure,

We anticipate a good year's performance as remaining product
upgrades are complgted and the enhanced commercial capability of
MarketMakers begins to connect

Overall the Marketing segment continues to make progress. It 1s
devefoping a robust cperational infrastructure for scalable and
sustainable growth coupled with deepening client relationships
allowing Centaur to advise, inform and connect business
professionals and sell multipls products across muitiple brands
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Operating performance: Marketing

Reported  Underlying
2017 2016 growth growth'
£fm £m % %
Revenue 36.3 298 22% {10%)
Operating profit 19 {9 {110)%
Operating margin (6.2%) (3.0%)
Adjusted operating profit? 1.7 25 {32%)
Adjusted operating margin® 4.6% 8.4% (3 8%)

There was positive momentum across both digital premium

content billings and Iive events revenues offset by a 26% decline In
advertising revenues. Arounc 35% of this segment’s revenues are
denved from premium content, with 34% from live events, 18% from
capabiity services and 13% from advertising.

The decline in adjusted operating profits? and margin reflect the
impact of weaker advertising revenues and an increase in centrally
allocated overheads following the disposal of the Horme Interest
segment Reported operating profits were impacted by earn-out
charges relating to the Qystercatchers acquisition of £0.6m (2016
£0 6m) and acguisition costs retating to MarketMakers of £0.6m.

Cutlook this segment Is expected to exhibit steady growth into
2018 dnven by recurming digital premium content revenues and
integraticn with MarketMakers.

Professional services

The Profassional services segrment includes two subsidiary markets.
The Lawyer and Exhibitions. Around 60% of revenue comes from
Ive events, 30% advertising and 1G% premium content

Our exhibttrons include Subcon, an exhibition that serves the sub-
contractor industry, Employee Benefits Live, Business Travel Show
and The Meetings Show.

2017 was a significant year for the portfolo as we reduced our
exposure ta print revenue with the closure of the bi-monthly MWP
in the engineering space and the move from weekly to monthly
editons for The Lawyer and Employee Benefits which moved to
digital onily distrbution

The Lawyer
The Lawyer is a multi-platform inteligence brand with digital
subscnptions, ive event and digital advertising rovenue streams

its content strategy continued to progress successfully. Premium
content now represents 38% (including Clean Energy Pipeline)

of totaf revenue with over 160 large law firms taking up enterprise
subscription licences

As we mave into 2018, a new website is being developed to allow
paying users to link seamlessly to The Lawyer's exclusive data
tables and deal information whilst providing access to market
insight reports By linking news, analysis, data and msight in

one digital platform, The Lawyer is evolving as a market-leading
digttal information service. It has successfully moved away from
30 years as a weekly print magazine to a monthly analytical

and features drven magazine with themed issues, reports and
customer nterviews  In recognition of this strategy and successful
execution, The Lawyer landed the prestgious Penodical Publishers
Association’s Media Brand of the Year Award in 2017.

The Lawyer Market Reports continued to deliver reliabie revenus
strearns with the UK 200 senes generating 9% growth year-on-year.
Availabifity of all 17 reports on the new portal in 2018 should enaicle
additional opportunities for dedicated account management teams
to cross-sell subscriptions, data services and reports.

Exhibitions

Coltectively, Exhibitions perfarmed well with underlying' revenue
growth of 6% on a reported basis as a result of the disposal of
the Home Interest segment driven largely by the Business Travet
Show at London’s Olympia Exhioition Centre, In 2017 the event
hosted over 375 exhibitors, 425 hosted buyers and 7,000 visrtors,
Meanwhile, The Meetings Show continued to develop well with
strong margin growth of 8% on revenue growth of 14% year-on-
year. Subcon performed welt too with 25% wisitor growth and
strong underlying’ profit growth of 22%, helped by an mcrease
in international exhibitors, and new on-site contant and learning
programmes.

The Engineer's focus has been to dnve its online audience Monthty
page views have grown, with unique visitors up 4% year-on-year
Good progress was also made by developing brand-led events,
'‘Collaborate to Innovate’, a unique awards/conference event in its
sector, launched well with Vince Cable as a keynote speaker
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Operating performance: Professional services

Reported  Underlying
2017 2016 qgrowth growth’
£m £m % %
Revenue 202 202 - 1
Operating profit / (loss) 1.3 ©0.5) 260
Operating margin 6.4% (2.5%)
Adjusted operabng profit? 1.8 0.9 100
Adjusted operating margin® 8,9% 4 5% 4.4

Legal revenues were 2% below last year, reflecting weaker
recrutment advertising which were pantiaily offset by good growth in
premium content revenues Deferred revenues in the Legal portfolio
were £1.1m at 31 December 2017, compared to £0 9m at the same
time fast year. The adjusted? operating margin has increased from
4.5% to 8 9%.

Qutlack, The Lawyer and the Exhubition brands, particularly the
Business Travel Show and Employee Benefits Live are all expected
to add to the Group's recurnng revenue streams through growing
exhibihion and digital subsenption revenues.

Annual Report and Financial Statensents ©

Financial services

This year saw a significant move away from traditional print
platforms with Mortgage Strategy moving from weekly to maonthly,
Fund Strategy mowving to digital only and the sale of Corporate
Adwiser. Money Marketing temains 1in weekly print but with reduced
frequency during the year The portfolio alse Includes subscnption
services Platforurn, Taxbnefs and Headline Money.

Platforum continued to buld on its reputation as a key reference
point for asset managqers, ife companies and platforms on retail
investment distribution. It is now firmly established as a subscription
product with renewat rates of 85% by valug and a senes of

growing events.

Beyond Platforum, the Financial Services segment continues to offer
targated events for all sectors of the financial services community
inclugding large scale conferences, awards and exclusive invitation-
only summits for incustry leaders. As a portfolio we are deliberately
selective in our events — opting to support larger scale, repeatable
events across big brands. Commercial packages are sold across the
brangs to enable cross-media solutions for sponsors and clhents.

Operating performance: Financial services

Reported  Underlying

2017 2016 growth growth'

€£m £m % %

Revenue 8.9 9.7 ) 8}
Operating (joss) / profit 0.3 {7 Q) 104

Cperating margin 34% (72 2%)

Adjusted operating profit? 0.6 [eX:] (25}
Adjusted operating margin® 6,7% 82% (15)

This segment’s revenues remain reliant on advertising, at 39% of
the revenue mix, with 37% from prermwm content and 24% from
live events. Reflecting the wider economic environment, advertising
declined by 18% year-on-year, partly due to the move away from
high frequency print. The second half of 2017 saw performance
improve significantly Supporting this is the move to digitally-led
creative solutions for clients which Is gaining traction as we mave
into 2018.

The operating loss of £7.0m in 2016 was driven by an impairment of
£7.2m No mparment has been booked this year.

Outlook: despite the weakness reported in the first half of 2017,
Financial services has strong brands, premium content and an
increasingly agile digital delivery platform.
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People

Changes tc the senior management team in 2016 have settled
well and the diverse skills and experience that each Executive
Committee member brings has aflowed the Group to deliver
significant operational success in 2017

Whilst continuing to focus on immediate business delivery, the
Executive Committee 18 keen to develop a culture that works
horizortally together to deliver client sofutions that advise, inform
and connect. Our internat training plans are being developed to
support this ambrtion.

Qur approach to diversity continues to be proactive through policies
and working practices Our male to female ratio 1s well baianced
and we retain strong representation of women at a senior leve!

Two out of six (33%) of our Board members are female, and four
out of six (66%) of our Executive Gommittee are female. Our family
friendly policies include enhanced maternity and paternity leave,
flexible work options, while our return rate of maternity leavers 1s in
excess of 80%. A high percentage of staff, both male and femaie,
work flexible/reduced hours including our CCO, Company Secretary,
an Oystercatchers Managing Partner, Group Head of HR and a
Research Director Two staff made use of shared parental leave
dunng 2017.

We are delighted to see our Development Board, comprising some
of our nsing stars, continue to grow from strength to strength The
Development Board's remit 15 “to change Centaur for good' and
act as a communications channel between our people and the
senior leadership. Sponsored last year by Suki Thompson, the
Development Board now leads cur internal chartty sponsorship
activity and has planned and delivered new intiatives including

a recognition scheme, football and softball teams, regular yoga,
mindfulness and meditation sessions, lunch and learns, and last
put not least, a Bike Clinc and Cycle Safety session to encourage
people to cycle to work

Through the Apprenticeship Levy we are supporting a number
of staff to achieve professional gualfications in Management and
l.eadership, Digital Marketing and Data Analysis.

During the year we had many successes with The Lawyer

winning the blue ntbon PPA Business Media Brand of the Year,
Econsuitancy winning Best technology partner for Marketing Week
Min MBA at the ACP Awards and Marketing Week winning 'Digial
Brand of the Year'

Summary
We will continue to enforce our customer focus, enhance our
products, and, simphfy our operating structure.

Qur investment into digital products and our improved overalt
revenue mix will enhance performance going forward and we remain
confident that our strategy is building long-term value for

our shareholders

These results and achievements would not have been possible
without the fulk commitment and energy of every Centauncn | am
continuously impressed by the expertise of my colleagues across
the Group The levels of passion and deep knowledge of our
content specialists and therr commitment to INnovate our products
and services have been critical to enable such radical product
transformations across the Group

The ongoting success of Centaur relles on the ideas, the energy and
our determmation to delver valuabie solutions for our customers.

Thank you to every Gentaurion, to our sharehoiders, our readers
and our customers We look forward to continuing our work and
provicing valuable sclutions throughout 2018

ANDRIA VIDLER
Chief Executive Officer

20 March 2018
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Our Pivotal Year
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2017 was a pivotal year to reshape and repurpose

TOO DIVERSIFIED AND
COMPLICATED

B2B & B2C

Simpler and more focused

WHAT THIS MEANS FOR
CENTAUR MEDIA

A clearer customer led strategy which
enables economies of scale and
reduces internal inefficiencies and
reduces central costs,

B28

REDUCED EXPOSURE TO
ADVERTISING

Reduced print products

Disposal of the Home Interest segment
and acquisition of MarketMakers
enable focus on B2B with more
predictable revenue streams.

Our success In building digital content
preducts and events allowed the exit
of weekly print schedules reducing
print exposure going forward to less
than 5%.

CUSTOMER FOCUS

Enhanced content and
improved produst user
experience (UX).

Improved satisfaction demonstrated by
NPS scores and renewal rates.
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Key performance indicators
The Group has set out the following core financial metrics to measure our performance. The KPis are within the Board’s expectations and
the ongoing focus on these measures wilt suppon its successful strategy. These indicators are discussed in more detaill in the CEO’s Review

and in the CFO’s Review

KPI ‘ COMMENTARY

FINANCIALS i

Total revenues adjusted for the iImpact of

Underlying’ revenue growth
nng g % acquisitions, disposals and event phasing
2016
Adjusted operating margin? - Adjusted operating profits? as a percentage of

including Home Interest Segment revenues

until disposal date

2056 2017

Adjusted? earnings attnbutable to each share
calculated on a diluted basis, as set out in more
detall In note 9 to the financial statements.

Adjusted® diluted EPS

2016 207

The percentage by which adjusted operating
cash flow® covers adjusted operating profit?
excluding depreciation and amortisation,

as set out In the CFO's Review

Cash conversion? -

2016 2017

NON-FINANCIALS ! !

Two non-financial KPis have been chosen Delighted customers/NPS and Customer life-time value These will be tracked during 2018
s0 that they can be reported on next year,
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“We have significantly strengthened our
balance sheet and eliminated the Group’s net
debt®, through the proceeds from the Home
Interest disposal, working capital improvements
and strong cash control. We are delighted to
be in a positive net cash position.”

SWAG MUKERJ!
Chief Financial Officer

Overview

The results of the business are presented in accordance with
accounting standards

Due to the disposal of the Home Interest segrment in August 2017,
we are required to disclose the turnover and operating profit on

a contnuing operations basis which Includes MarketMakers post
acquistion and excludes the Home Interest segment The net result
of the Home Interest segment is disclosed separately on the face
of the Incoms Staternent as 'Profit for the penod from discontinued
operations’ Revenue, net operating expenseas, finance and taxation
casts reported on the face of the Incorne Staterment therefors only
refer to that achieved by our Marketing, Professional and Financial
setvices segments.

On a continuing operations basis revenue was £65.4m (2018,

£59 7m) in the year, However, when considenng Group
performance, we believe it more appropnate to consider total
revenue and adjusted operating profit? generated over the year,
Therefors, we have chosen to facus on revenue including the
Horne Interest segment until disposal and MarketMakers from
acquisition. On this basis revenue was £72.8m (2016- £72 5mj.
Adjusted operating profit? (including MarketMakars from acquisition)
was £4 1m. The adjusted operating profit? for the penod for Home
Interest was £2.5m. On the face of the iIncome staternent we report
£2 1m of net operating profit for Home Interest which includes
£0.4m of tax, Therefore, the adjusted operating profit? 1Is £6.6m
(2016. £9.1m); adjusted? operating margin 1s 9.1% (2016: 12.6%).

Non-statutory measures

In these results we refer to 'adjusted’ and *statutory’ resuits, as well
as other non-GAAP performance measures. Adjusted? results are
prepared to provide a more comparable indication of the Group's
core business performance by removing the impact of certain ntems
ncluding exceptional items (Mmatenal and nan-recurring), and volatile
iterns predominantly relating to nvestmernt activities and other
separately reported tems. Adjusted? resuits exclude adjusting items
as set out in the statement of consolidated income and below, with
further details grven in notes 1(k) and 4 of the financial statements
In addition, the Group also measures and presents performance in
relation to various other non-GAAP measures, such as underlying’
revenue growth, adusted operating cash flow®, adjusted® EBITDA
and net debt®

Adjusted? results are not intended to replace statutory resuits

These have been presented to provide users with additional
nformation and analysis of the Group'’s performance, consistent with
how the Board monitors results. Further rationale for each of the
adiusting tems used in these measures, as well as reconciliations
to therr statutery equivalents, can be found in note 1{o} to the
financial statements

The Group's activities are predominantly UK-based and therefore
currency movements do not have a matenal iImpact on the
Group's resutts.
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Statutory loss before tax from continuing operations reconclles to adjusted operating profit? as follows:

2017 2016
Note £m £m
Statutory loss before tax (0.7} 8.9)
Adjusting tems
Impairment of goodwil 1G - 72
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets 11 25 2.2
Share-based payments 26 0.5 0.1)
Earn-out consideration 14 0.6 06
Addrtional imparment of trade recevables 29 - 1.5
Acquisition related costs 14 0.6
Exceptional operating costs 4 0.2 1.2
Adrjus;terd} ﬁr;:f?t before tax i 7 i a7 a7
Adjusted? finance costs 8 0.4 05
41 42

Adjusted” operating profit’

Prior year comparatwves have been restated to reflect the disposal of the Home Interest Segment In August 2017.

Summary
Commentary on revenues and operating results is set cut within the
CEQ's Review

2017 represented a year of significant change faor Centaur with the
disposal of our Home Interest segment completing our strategic
shift to a pure 828 player. We also completed the acquisition of
MarketMakers, which has significantly extended the business’s lead
generation capability and will help further shift our revenue mix to a
more predictable cashflow than that offered by the Home Interest
segment, whilst also going some way to regucing the compiexity of
the bustness

We are very pleased with the performance of Marketitakers since
its acquisition and we see it as a key vehicle to drive growth in other
parts of our business.

The key underlying trend wathin the business during the year was
the continued dechne of advertising revenue (21% of total 2017
revenue, a reduction from 28% in 2016) with its high drop through
to profit, Comibined with the acquisiion of MarketMakers this has
assisted Centaur in increasing recurring revenue from 36% in 2016
to 44% 10 2017.

The Group 1s pleased to raport year end net cash of £4.1m aganst
a net debt® position of £14 1m at the end of Decemiber 2016 The
rate of cash conversion® was 138% (2016: 133%). The £18.2m
mproverment In cash s drniven not only by the net proceeds of the
Home Interest segment disposal but aiso active working capital
managerment, ncluding stringent controls over cash managament
and its collection.

In 2016, reflecting a reduced growth outlook in the Financial
services segment, the Group recognised a non-cash impairment
charge of £7 2m aganst goocdwill An annual iImparment review
has been carried out In 2017 and we are pleased to repert a nil
imparment charge

Revenues

Revenues In 2017 were £72.6m including the Home Interest
segment (2016: £72 5m). On a continuing operations basis revenue
was £65 4m (2016 £53 7m}) Undertying' trends, adjusting for
the pliennial show, AMS, the acquisitions of MarketMakers and
Oystercatchers, and the disposal of the Home Interest segment,
show a decline of 6% primanly due to the continued decine of
advertising. The acquisiton of MarketMakers, which is excluded
from underlying’, recorded £13.9m of revenue in 2017 on a full
year basis. The Group's results for 2017 include five months’
consolidated MarketMakers' revenue. Further information on the
divisional revenue performance and the mix of revenues across
premium content, live events and advertising 1s included in the
CEQ's Review.

Operating profit

Adjusted operating profits? for the year were £6 B8m (2016 £9.1m)
{which ncludes Home Interest and is nct reported this way on the
face of the Income Statement) with an adjusted operating profit
margin® of 9.1% (2016° 12 6%) Excluding the Home Interest
Segment and as reported on the face of the Income Staternent,
the adjusted operating profit? was £4.1m (2016: £4.2m) Further
information on the dmsional adjusted operating profit? performance
is included in the CEO's Review

Net adjusted? operating expenses were £61.3m (2016: £55.5m)
Adjusted? employee related expenses In the year were £30.9m
(2016. £27 4m), and the average number of permanent employess
was 515 (2016, 493},

Reperted operating losses of (£0.3m}) (2016° (£8.4m)) were
impacted by the adjusting tems detalled beiow
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Adjusting items

The Directors believe that adjusted? results and adjusted? earnings
per share provide addibonal useful Information on the care
operational performance of the Group 1o shareholders, and review
the resuits of the Group on an adjusted® basis internally Detalls

of the Group’s accounting pohicy in relaton to adjustmg items are
shown in note 1(b) to the financial staternents.

Adjusting tems generated a ioss before tax of (£4.4mj (2016,
(£12.6m)). In 2016, an mparment charge of £7 2m was recognised
In the Financial services segment.

Exceptional operating costs of £4.4m (2016: £12.6m) inciude staff-
related restructunng costs of £0 2m (2016 £0 9m) which principally
refate to the reorganisation of the business as the Group reduces its
exposure 1o prinl. Whilst similar cosls have been incurred previously
whilst performing other restructuring actions, such costs nked to the
substantial reduction of pnnt as part of the Group's transformation
programme are not expected to recur once this 1s completed, and as
such these are deemed to be exceptional In nature,

In the year no separately reported charge for the impairment of trade
receivahbles has been made {2016 €1 5m) Cash collection has
perfarmed strongly in the year following the improvements made to
front-end hilling and credit control processes In 2017. At the end of
2017, Group DSO stood at 52 days, a reduction of 25 days from
the end of 2016, This, in addition to the net cash receipts from

the disposal of the Home interast segment, has dnven the Group
reporting a nei cash position at the end of 2017 of £4.1m (2016: net
debt® of £14.1m), an improvernent of £18 2m.

Earn-out costs of £0 6m {2016. £0.6m) relate to the earn-out
arrangement on the acguisition of Oystercatchers, which are treated
as a remunerabon expense through the statement of comprehensive
ingome until the end of the earnout penod.

Cther adjusting tems inciude amortisation of acquired ntangible
assets of £2.5m (2016: £2.2m) and a share-based payment charge
of £0.5m {2016 credt of (E0.1m)).

Further analysis on these adjusting items is included in the
Basis of Preparation section of note 1({b) and note 4 to the financial
statemants.

Net finance costs

Adusted? net finance costs wers £0.4m (20186: £0 5m). The
reduction in finance costs reflects lower net debt® dunng 2017
compared to 2018,

Annual Report and Financial Statements *

Taxation

Atax charge of £0.4m (2016: £0.1m) has been recognised on
continuing operations for the year. The adjusted tax charge

was £0.9m (2016. £0.8m) giving an adjusted effective tax rate
{compared to adusted? profit before tax) of 25.3% (2016: 21.9%).
The Cormnpany's profits were taxed in the UK at a blended rate of
19 25% (2016: 20%), with the fall in the main rate of UK Corporation
tax being offset by the impact of overseas earnings taxed at higher
rates On a reported basis, the effective tax rate of 50.5% (2016-
{1.4)%) 15 dnven by a smali loss relative to the non-deductible
acquistion costs in the year and other non-deductible expenses.
See note 7 for a reconciiation between the statutory and reported
tax charge.

Share-based payments

Share-based payments charges In 2017 approached their histoncal
level of £0.5m following a credit of £0.1m in 2016, as a result of
lapses i the LTIP schemes following changes in senior management
and performance under non-market performance conditions.

Earnings per share

The Group has delivered adjusted? diluted sarnngs per share for the
year of 3.2p (2016 4.5p). Losses per share for the year were (14.3)p
(2016 (3 8)p) Full details of the earnings per share calculations can
be found 1n note 9 to the financiat statements.

Dividend

An intenm dividend of 1 5p per share was paid in respect of the
period January to June 2017 (January to June 2016. 1.5p}). A final
dividend in respect of the penod July to December 2017 of 1.5p per
share (July to December 2016- 1.5p) is proposed by the Directors,
giving a total dividend for the yvear ended 31 December 2017 of 3 Op
(2016 3.0p), in ling with 2016.

The final dividend in respect of the year is subject to shareholder
approval at the Annual General Meeting and, if approved, will be
paid on 25 May 2018 to all ordinary shareholders on the register at
close of buginess on 11 May 2018.

Adjusted dwvidend cover in the year was 1.2 times (2015: 1.6 trmes).

Cash flow

As set out below, the Group has now efiminated net debt® with net
cash of £4.1m at the of 2017 compared to net debt of £14.1m at
the end of 2016 The rate of cash conversion® was even stronger
than 2016 at 138% (2016: 133%).
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2017 2016
£m £m
Adjusted operating profit? 6.6 g1
Depreciation and amortisation 3.6 33
Movement nworkngcaptal 38 41
Adjusted operating cash fiow?® 14.1 16.5
Capital expenditure (2.8) (2 6)
Cash impact of adjusting items {0.2) (13
Taxation (1.6) 13
Interest and finance leases 0.3) 0 5)
Other o _@n o1
Free cash flow a.1 109
Repayment of loan notes - (1)
Acqulisitions (14.4) (1.5)
Disposal of subsidianes 27.9 -
Share rapurchases 0.1) 02
Dividends pad to Company’s
shareholders B 4.3) 4.3)
Increasef(decrease} in net
cash/{debt)® 18.2 38
Opening net cash/(debt)® (14.1) (17 9)
Closing nat cash/(debt)® 4.1 {14 1)

Adjusted operating cash flow® 1s not a measure defined by IFRS
Centaur defines adiusted operating cashflow? as cash flow from
operations excluding the impact of adjusting tems, which are defined
above. The Directors use this measure to assess the performance of
the Group as it excludes volatle items not related to the core trading
of the Group, and inciudes the Group’s management of capital
expenditure A reconciliahion betwsen cash flow from operations and
adjusted operating cash flow® 1s shown N note 1{b) to the financial
statements The cash impact of adjusting ftems pnmarily relates to
exceptional restructuring costs in both years.

Acquisitions net of disposals generated a cash nflow of £13.5m in
the year {2016, cash outflow of £1 5m)

Financing and bank covenants

On 8 June 2015, the Group agreed a four year £25m multi-currency
revolving credit facility, provided by RBS and Lloyds. This facility
runs to 31 August 2019. The principal financial covenants under

the facility are: the ratio of net debt® to adjusted EBITDA? shall

not exceed 2.5:1, and the ratic of EBITDA to net finance charges
shall not be less than 4:1 The Group remained within its banking
covenants dunng the year and has currently not drawn down any of
its £25m banking facilities

Disposal of the Home Interest segment

On 1 August 2017, we successfully completed the disposal of the
Home Interest segment for consideration of £32.8rm allowing the
Group to strategically focus cn B28 This disposal has resulted n a
profit on disposal of £20 9m with the funds deing partially invested
in the acguisition of MarketMakers

Acquisition of MarketMakers

On 2 August 2017 the Group completed the acquistion of 100%
of the shares in MarketMakers for a total purchase price of £18.9m,
subject to mesting earn-out targets Invhial net consideration was
£18 5m with a further balance due upon successful achievement of

eam-out targets We are pieased that MarketMakers has performed
strongly In 2017 and significantly added value to the Group in 2017,
We are actively inveshigating ways in which MarketMakers' inherent
competitive advantage in lead generation can drive future growth
across Centaur as a whole

Balance sheet
A summary of the Group's balance sheet as at 31 December 2017
and 2016 1s set out below-

2017 2016

£m £

Goodwill and other intangible assets 94.2 888
Property, plant and equipment 1.7 2.0

Deferred income {14.6) {16.9)
Other current assets and labiliies 0.2 7.5

Deferred taxation 0.7) 0.2)
Net assets betore net debt® 808 81.2

Net cash/(debt)® 41 (14.1)
Netassets 84.9 67.1

The mam movement in the Group's balance sheet 1s an increase of
£5 4m in goodwill and other ntangible assets, primarily caused by
the acquisition of MarketMakers and partially offset by the disposal
of the Home Interest segment Deferred income has fallen primariy
due to the disposal of the Home Interest segment Other current
assets and liabilities have fallen due to the continual improvement In
collection of trade debtors during the year, combined with a 2017
provision for earn-out payments due to MarketMakers Net cash has
improved £18 2m due to improved working capital management
combined with the net proceeds of the disposal of the Home
Interest segment less monies reinvested into the MarketMakers
acquisition. Further detaills on these significant movements can be
found throughout this report.

Conclusion

2017 has been a transformative penod in the Group as it moves
towards its goal of advising, informing and connecting The disposal
of the Home Interest Segment has realsed our strategic gea!l of
becoming a pure play business infarmation group whilst reducing its
complexity. The disposal of the Home Interest segment for £32.8m
not only eliminated the Group's net debt® positicn kut also funded
the acquisition of MarketMakers, an exciting driver of future growth. |
am delighted to see our revenue mix move towards higher recurnng
revenuas and replacing declining advertising revenues.

The Group remains cash generative and 1s in a strong position to
move quickly to make further strategic acquisitions with synergy
opportunities | am cdelighted that our working capital position has
continued tc imgrove dunng 2017 with days’ sales outstanding
(DSQO) having improved by 25 days over the year. Although we will
never become complacent, our investors can be assured that debt
collection and cash management 1s now well cantrolied and timely.

We are now well placed to buikd upon the positive financial and
operational performance of 2017 and continue the transformation of
the business In the coming year

SWAG MUKERJI
Chief Financlal Officer

20 March 2018
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Risk management approach

The Board has overall rasponsibility for the effectiveness of the
Group's system of sk management and intarnal controls and these
are reguiarty monnored by the Audit Committee

Detats of the actvities of the Audit Cormmittee in this financial year
can be found in the Audit Gommittee Report on pages 37 to 40,

The Executive Cormmittee 15 responsible for identifying, managing
and monitarng matenal nsks in each area of the business and for
regularly reviewing and updating the nsk register, as well as reporting
to the Audit Commstiee In relation to nsks, mitgations and controls.
As the Group operates principally from one office and with relatively
short management reporting ings, rmembers of the Executive
Committee are closely involved in day-10-day matters and able to
dentify areas of mgreasing risk quickly and respond accordingly.
The responstotity for each nsk identified is assigned to a member
of the Executive Gommittee, The Audit Committee considers

nsk managernent and controis reguiarly and the Board formally
considers risks to the Group's strategy and plang as well as the rigk
management process as part of ts strategic review

The nsk register 1s the core element of the Group's nsk managerment
process. The register 1s mantained by the Company Secretary with
Input from the Executive Committes  The Executive Cornmittee
nitially identifies the material nsks facing the Group and then
collectively assesses the seventy of each nsk (by ranking both the
fikelihood of occurrence of the nsk and its potential Impact on the
business) and the related mitigating controls.,

Ag part of its risk management processes, the Board considers
both strategic and operaticnal risks, as well as its nsk appetite in
terms of the tolerance level it is willing to accept in relation to each
prncipal risk, which is recorded in the Company's risk register. This
approach recognises that risk cannot always be ebminated at an
acceptable cost and that there are some nsks which the Board will,
after due and careful consideration, choose to accept. The Group's
nsk register, its mathod of preparation and the gperation of the

key controls in the Group’s systern of internal control are regularly
reviewed and overseen by the Audit Committee with reference to the
Group’s strategic aims and its operating environment. The register I1s
also reviewsd and considered by the Board

As part of the ongoing enhancement of the Group’s risk monitoring
activities, we reviewed and updated the procedures by which we
evaluate principal risks and uncertainties during the year

Annual Report and Financial Statements -

Principal risks

The Group's risk register currently includes operational and strategic
nsks. The principal risks faced by the Group in 2017, taken from the
register, together with the potential effects and mitigating factors, are
set out below The Diractors cordirm that they have undertaken a
robust assessment of the principal nsks facing the Group Financial
risks ara shawrt in note 28 to the financial statements.

Key to movement in risk from last year (after taking
into account mitigating controls)

Increase in nsk T
Risk unchanged 4=

Decrease in risk l
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RISK

RANK

AFTION OF RISK AND IMPACT

Fraudulert or acaidental breach
of our securty, or neffective
operation of IT and data
management systems leads to
loss, theft or rmsuse of personal
data or confidential information
of other breach of data
protaction raquirements

s A senous occurmence of a joss, theft or misuse
of personal data or sensitive or confidential
nfaration could rasult In reputational damage, a
brgach of data protection requirements ar dirsct
financial mpact See The General Data Protection
Reguiation [{GDPR') below

= Centaur collects and processes personal data
and confidenttal information from some of ts
customars, usars and other third parties  Centaur
1s at nsk from a senous occurrence of a loss,
thaft or misuse of parsonal data or confidental
intormation: on our software/hardware due to the
actons of a Centaur employee, partner or third
party See also GDPR below

RISK MITIZATION-CONTROL PROCEDURE MOVEMENT
iIN RISk
= Appropnate [T secunty s undertaken for all key The Board
processes to keep the [T enwronment safe. considers this nsk
« Websttes are hosted by specaist third-party to be broadly the
providers who provide warranties relating to same as the pnor
secunty standards year

* Al of our websites have been migrated onto a new

<

and mare secure platform whigh is cloud hosted
and databases have been cleansed and upgraded
dunng 2015, 2018 and ongoing n 2017

= Extarnal access to data 1s protected and staf are

Instructed to password protect or encrypt where
approprate

= The Director of Data and Analytics ensures that

ngorous cantrols are n place to ensure that
warehouse data can only be downlsaded by the
data tearn Integration of the warehouse with
curent databases and data captured and stored
elsewhere 15 cngong

= Cenlaur has a business continuity plan which

includes fs IT systems and there 1s daly, overmight
back-up of data, stored off site

+ Please see below for spacifics relating to GDPR

comphance/data

Regulatory, GOPR

Strcter reguirements regarding
how Centaur handles perscnal
data. including that of
custorners and the nsk of a fing
fram the ICQ, third party claims
{e g from customers) as well as
reputational darmage f we do
not comply

s« The General Data Protection Regulation fGDPR'),
which 1s the new data protection law coming
nto foree n May 2018, mvolves much stncter
requirements for Centaur regarding ite handing ot
personal data

This includes

= customers having greater nghts on how we use
ther data

= Centaur having to prowde specific mforrmation to
our custormners on how we use ther data

« new rules around how we cbltan customers'
consent to being contacled

s personal data beng kept more securely, tme and
access

s new cantracts being put In place between us and
suppliers that handle our data

= new rules about notrfipng the ICO m the svent of a
breach of GDPR

= a shorter bme panod for responding to “subect
access reguests” from customers

= aregurement to demonstrate how we comply
with GDPH, which means we need to improve our
intermal record-keeping, etc

= i the event of a senous breach of the GOPR,
Centaur could be subject to 2 sigmificant fine
trom the regulator (the IGO) and claims from third
parties including customers as well as reputatcnal
damage

+ anew maxmum fine for breach of GDPR 1s much
fugher than the current maximum fina apphcabla
under current UK data protection legislation

+ Centaur has engaged Wiggm LLP to prowids legal

New nsk
advice on what changes we are requred to make
In order to comply with GOPR The measures we T
are taking Include
— updating the ‘consert’ wording on our

wepsites and event registraticn pages o

gnsure language 1s specific/ unambiguous

— updating our unsubscribe process
- mproving our data complants procedures

- Improving our procedures far removing
mdmduals from databases where details are
maccurate/ not needed

- updating ouwr standard tenns and condtions
across all products

— updating cur prvacy and cogkies policy and
website terms and conditons

— amending our contract with supphers who
provide us with persona data (e Ists) or who
handle data on our behalf
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RANK

Senous systems falure
(aflecting core systemns and
multiple products or functions)
or breach of IT network security
{as a result of a deliberate
cyber-attack or unntentional
avent)

Trends in advertising and direct
sales of our print products
resull In dechring revenues
from these sources

IPTION OF RISK AND IMF

Centaur relies on it T network 1o conduct Ns
operations The 1T network s at nsk of a senous
systerns failure or breach of its sequnty controls
This ceuld result from deliberate cyber-attacks or
unintentiona) events and may include third parties
gaming unauthonsed access to Centaur's IT
network and systemns resulting m risappropnatian
of is financial assels, proprigtary of sensitive
intormation. corruption of data, or operational
digruption, such as unavaiabwty of our websites
and our digital preducts to users or unavalabity
of suppert platiorms

# Cantaur suffars further senous cyber-attacks,
wheltwr by o« third parly or nsider, any oper dtional
disruption may drectly affect our revenues o
collection agtnaties

Centaur may incur significant costs and

suffer other negative consequences, such as
remediaticn costs (including lability for stolen
assets or nformation, and repair of any damage
caused to Centaur's IT network infrastructurs and
systems) Centaur may also suffer reputational
damage and lass of investor confidence resulting
from any operational disruption

RISK MITISATION - CONT

neats

DURE

Cantaur has nvested sighificantly in its T systems
and several key T system upgrades have taken
place dunng 2017,

the engoing development of CRM (PCI compliance)
and finance systerns introduced in 2015

T system improvemertts in 2017 and ongoing into
2018, followang completion of ah external audn of
the secunty of our man IT infrastructurg camed

oul by & specialst third party proviaer e hicrosaft
sacunty aganst Hansomware attacks

whers servwces 2 outseurced Lo supphers,
contingency planning 15 camed out to rimgate nsk
of supplier falure

Lockton's 1s advising us in relation to any addmonal
caver ihat 1s approprate to msure against a senous
falkure of IT netwaork secunty controks

Migration of Econ to aur secure platform.
Wordpress in 2078 18 undenrway

we are upgrading our policies In Q1 2618 1o lurther
ensure aur stafl ara clear and accountatie for ther
IT comphance

MOWVEMENT

The Board
considers this
nsk 1o be broadty
the same as lor
the prior year

>

Pnnt advertsng revenues and direct sales of our
pnnt products continued to decling more stasply
dunng the latter part of 2016 as dirsct revenue
from print products dipped more sharply than
expected at the start of the yeay, and are not
‘beng raplaced lke-for-iike with oniine or digital
products The non-pnnt media sector has high
lgveds of competition from a wider group and low
bamers to entry This leads to different pressures
on audence and custormer retention as we!l as
pncing

This nsk has increased snce the 2015 raporting
penod dus to volatiity In adverbsing spend acress
our marksts In the wesks leading up to and
Tollowing the UK's EU referendum The uncertainty
fellowing the EU referendum rasult in specific
mdrkets icluding financial sensces continuad
throughout 2016 and in the first half of 2017 and
15 expected, af the very Jeast, until firm plans for
tha UK's sxit from the EU are sstablished by the
UK Governrment.

Qur Business Plans take into account the market
shnnkaga and where aporopnate pint products
are beng replaced Our slrategy mchides
identifying the type of content our audiences want
and how they want to consume the content,
meaning that we are not smply putiing pnnt
products online to try to replace diminisfuing pnnt
revenues for tradimonal brands Centaur has besn
rapidty reducng the Gompany's exposure to
pnnt advertising and has significantly increased
revenues from digial pad-for contert In 2017
we reduced pnnt volurnes by over 60% across
the financial, legal, marketing and HR portfolios
This mvaived changes m requency (weekly to
monthly) and for some brands moving to digial-
only formats supported gy profitable events and
awards

We cortinue to moittor the decline in our pant
Droducts while at the same ima inveshng in
devsloping our digital capabikty and abilty to scale
Srozs-media Marketing solutions In addhon to

a new, flexible web platform we are developing
new revenue streams from products, such as the
Markating Week Min MBA, which are exclusively
digital and denve no revenue from prnt

We support our product mnavation, by hinng
people with expenences and skifls n new areas
of the markel where aperoprate The role of

our Exscutive Committes includes anticipating
future changes In the market and ensuring that
our business reacts or accelerates our plans
agordingly

However spend cannot be assumed to flow
diregtly to replacemant products and therefors
wolatilily on advertising i oUr QOre Sactars remait
a nsk facter

The Board
considers tat
our exposure
1o this nsk has
decreased
since the prior
year due to the
specific actions
we hava taken
to reduce our
dependency on
pnnt advertising

i
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Viability statement

In accordance with provision C.2 2 of the UK Corporate Governance
Code April 20186, the Directors have assessed the wviability of the
Group over a three-year period to December 2020, taking account
of the Group’s current position, the Group's strategy, the Board's

risk appetite and, as documented above, the pnncipal risks facing
the Group and how these are managed Based on the resuits of

1his analysis, the Directors have a reasonable expectation that the
Company will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities
as they fall due over the penod to December 2020,

The Board has determined that the thres-year peniod to Decembear
2020 is an appropriate penod over which to provide its viaknity
statement because the Board's financial planning honzon covers a
three-year penod In making therr assessment, the Directors have
taken account of the Group’s existing financing arrangements

to 2018 (and assurmed thai financing will be avallable to replace

the current facility on similar termns), cash flows, dvidend cover

ang other key financial ratios over the penod. These metncs are
subject to stress testing which involves sensitising a number of the
main assumptions underlying the forecasts both individually and

in umson The assumptions sensitised include forecasted EBITDA,
cash conversion* and caprtal expenditure. Where appropriate, this
analysis 1s carned out to evaluate the potential impact of the Group’s
principal risks actually occumng, such as pnnt and advertising
revenues continuing to shrink, staff attriton, UK economic conditions
and replication of products by competitors Sensitising the model for
changes in the assumptions and nsks affirmed that the Group would
remain viable over the three vear penod to 2020.

Going concern basis of accounting

In accordance with provision C.1.3 of the UK Carporate
Governance Code Apnl 2016, the Directors’ statement as to
whether they consider it appropnate to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements and their
identification of any matenal uncertainties to the Group's ability to
continue to do so over a penod of at least twelve months from the
date of approval of the financial statements and for the foreseeable
future can be found on page 32
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CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY

Our people

Talent development

Centaur Media is committed to developing a culture of
snvironmental awareness and sacial responsibility and we seek
where appropriate to incorporate environmentally and socially
respansible practices inta the way we delver services and products
to our customers and procure goods and services from third parties.
The Group has a whistieblowing policy i place enabling employees
to repart any concerns about improper practices, including retating
ta its enviranmental and socral responsibifity practices.

Employee engagement

We have adopted a new on-line application which gives employees
the opportunity to provide feedback on a weekly basis and enables
management to get a regular temperature check on maotivation and
real bme fesdback from their teams.

Health and safety

We are commitied to the safety of our staff. We have a health and
safety policy which sets out Centaur's responsibilities and those

of its stafl concerning health and safety In the workplace Qur
Health and Safety Committee, which 1s responsible for overseeing
the apphcation of this Policy, meets at least every six months and
reports directly to the Board on all material related matters Due to
1he nature of the business, risk of work-based accidents is relatwely
tow but the Group takes its responsibilites for the health and safety
of its employees senously. Our office manager 15 responsiole for
maintaining a safe environment for employees and an Acclident
Book 15 avaiable to all staff :n Reception. We pencdically carry out
internal health and safety reviews, taking fallow up action to mamtain
standards where necessary, and undertake staff tramning in relation
tc fire safety. Where work-related activities take place wiich have a
hugher nsk attached - such as travel, marketing events and outdoor
activities ~ additional planning 1s undertaken which inciudes a nsk
assessment and mitigation plan. To minimise risk to the heaith

and safety of our empioyees N the event of a major disaster or
emergency, we have recently revised our business continuty plan
and camed out testing of the plan.

Diversity

Centaur Media strongly encourages diversity across the Group
and 18 committed to recruiting and promoting the most talented
people from the widest poal and praviding equal opportunities for
all employees and prospective employees To support this aim, the
Group has an Equal Opportunities Policy which covers recrutment
and sefection, promotion, training and development and standard
contract terms for all staff We also support apprenticeships which
increase our talent pool and demonstrates the Group's commitment
to reaching out to young people from a variety of backgrounds. We
offer nternships and work expenence opportunities for people from
a variety of backgrounds.

Last year we impiemented the provisions of the UK Moderh Sfavery
Act 2015 and adopted an anti-slavery and human trafficking policy.

Two out of our six (33%) Board members are female and, four

out of six (B6%) of our Exacutive Committee are Jemale and, as at
31 December 2017, our workdorce overall was 50% fernale (397
employees) and 50% male (394 employsees). We proudly support
flexible working opportunities, and 6% of staff are employed on a
part-tims basis

Gender pay
We are currently fmalising our analysis for Gender Pay and wil be
submitting and publishing the outcome prior to the 2018 deadine.

Environment

Our impact on the environment

Centaur Madia operates i the media sector, predominantly in the
United Kingdom, and consequently, while Centaur recognises that
its business has an impact an the environment, ncluding through
the use of energy and paper, our /mpact on the environment 1s less
sigruficant than that of companies operating i many other sectors.
As we continue to INcrease our digital capabilties and products,
and to reduce our reliance on print advertising, we are reducing
our use of consumable items such as paper and plastic over

tme The majority of our employees work out of a single location

in Wells Street, London and we have cnly one ather UK logation

i Portsmouth meaning that the Group has been able 1o take
advantage of consalidating bulding-related environmental impacts
and benefiting from Group sharing of tems such as photocopiers
The Group alse has small offices in New York and Singapore

The Group actively seeks to minimise adverse environimental
mpacts and to promote good environmeantal practices wherever
possible. We increasingly aim to ensure that our majar suppliers
arg emaronmentally responsible For example, our mam paper and
print supptier holds the ISO 14001 (environmental management)
accradhtation and 1§ certified by the Forest Stawardship Council and
Programme for the Endorsement of Forestry Gertification

In the last quarter we introduced Follow-Me-Printing. This will aliow
us to monitor printing across the business.

We donate used computer equipment to Camera Education,
which 15 a social enteronse dedicated 1o improving education n
disadvantaged communities across the world In 2017 we donated
the following.

« 30 x Zoostorrm desktop PCs

* 30 x 21" Mac’s desktops PCs

» 21 x BEizoFflexidesk - 21" rnonitor
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Some of our other measures are.

* use of energy-efficient ighting, including replacing existing
light fittings with energy efficient LED light fittings in the Wells
Street bulding During the year ended 31 Decermnber 2017, this
programme was extended to include all commaon parts of the
Wells Street bullding;

nstallation of motion sensors in offices to control ighting;

analysing and adjusting the timing of bailers and chillers for office
air conditioning te increase energy efficiency;

stopping the use of non-recyclable cups and reducing the use of
paper hand towels,

buying paper that is Forest Stewardship Council ((FSC’)
accredited which means that the paper has been sourced in an
environmentaly-fnendly, socially responsible and economically
viable manner;

active engagement in the recycling of cans, ting, plastic, glass,
cardboard and paper, including the replacement of fraditional
waste bins with recycling bins throughout the Wells Street building
as part of a new centralised recycling system rolled out in 2015,
together with a rmonthly report showing the percentage of waste
collected that was recycled,;

recycling of printer cartndges where possible,

Increasing the use of agueous inks, which limit the release of
volatile organic cormpounds;

» yse of eco-fnendly taxis and couner vehicles that are less than
3 years old, and use of cyclist couriers, where possiole;

* cycle to work scheme and other measures that faciitate cycling to
work by employees, such as the provision of showers, changing
rooms and lockers, as well as bike storage facilites at the Wells
Strest bulding; and

* oncouraging staff to use public transport by provision of season
ticket loans

Emissions

We continue to measure our carbon footprint by menitaring our
energy Usage and we are pleased to confirm that we are complant
with the EU Energy Ffficiency Directive 'Energy Saving Opporturity
Scheme’ (ESOSY.

The greenhouse gas 'GHG’ emissions from our operations during
the year are st out below.

Year ended 31 December 2017 global GHG
emissions data (tonnes of CO_e).

2017
Taonnes CO,

2016

Emissions from: Tornes CO,

Scope 1 {Gas, Fuel and Car
Mileage} 78 75

Scope 2 (Electnety and Steam) 432 474
Total GHG emissions 510 " 549
Average number of employees 515 550
Ermissions per employee 1.0 1.3

Community

Charitable donations

The Group supports local communities and chartable organisations
through direct fundraising, donation and pro-bono work Dunng

the year, a total of £83,727 {compnsing empicyee contnbutions

of £8,170, a Group contribution of £8,170 and £67,387 in third
party contributions raised through our events) was donated to The
Alzheimer's Soctety, our chosen chanty partner for 2017. In 20186,
£118,855 (compnsing employee contributions of £8,454, a Group
contribution of £8,454 and £1G1,947 in third party contributions
raised through our events) was donated to Childline. We used our
events to raise money from third parties for The Aizheimer’s Society
including requesting donations i return for entry for awards and
taking collections at the events Evary year, the Group cffers each
employee a paid day off to spend volunteenng for the not-for-profit
cause or charity of ther choice Employee contributions were raised
through a range of Company-wide fundraising events including
sporting events and bake sales. We also operate a Give As You
Earn scheme through the payrofk and offer employees the option to
undertake Voluniear Days

The Strategic Report was approved by the Board of Directors and
signed by order of the Board.

HELEN SILVER
Company Secretary

20 March 2018
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Neil Johnison
Chairman

Neii joined Gentaur as Chairrnan in January 2018 Neill is currently Chawman of Synthomer
pic, Matability Operations Group plc, Electra Private Equity pic and the senior sndependent
non-executive director of the Business Growth Fund Neil has considerable expearience as
an independent non-executive dirgctor and public company chatrman ganed m mutiple
sectors and geographies having overseen as charman the successful organic and acquired
growth strategies of Umece, Cybit and most recently e2v Technologies Neii also held senior
executive positions at British Aerospace and n the UK motor manufacturing mdustry befare
becoming Chief Executive of RAG Holdings from 1995-1999

Charman of the Nomination Committee

William Eccleshare
Seniot Independent Director

Willlam 1s Chairman and GEQ of Glear Channel International. in November 2017 he became a
non-executive director of Britwic plc and has been a board member of the Donmar Warehouse
Theatre since 2013 He also served as a non-executive director of Hays Flc from 2004 to
2014, Willam was a Partner and Leader of European Branding Practice at McKinsey & Go He
has prewiously served in international feadership roles at major advertising agencies, including
as Furopean Charman and CEQ of BBDO {Omnicom), European Charman of Young and
Rubicam (WPP Group); Charman and CEQ of Ammirati Punis Lintas Northern Europe
{Interpubhc Group), Global Strategic Planning Dwector of J. Walter Thormpson Worldwide, and
CEQ of PPGH/JWT Amsterdam.

Member of Remuneration and Nomination Committess

Robert Boyle

Non-Executive Director

Robert, a qualified Chartered Accountant, was a partner of PricewaterhouseGCoopers LLP,
where he was Chairman of the PwC European Entertainment and Madia Practice for twejve
years, retiring m 2006. Since then he has been a non-executive director and Chairman of the
Audit Committee of a nurmber of public comparies. He is currently a Non-Executive Director,
and Chairman of the Audit Gommittee of Witan Investment Trust Ple and the Hampshire
Cuttural Trust

Chairman of the Audit Gommiittee and member of the Remuneration Committee
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Rehecca Miskin
Non-Executive Director

Rebecca is Founder and CEQ of Gloo Networks Ple, a digital transformation company She
began her career In media at Reed Elsevier launching telecom-based information services
across Europe She has since worked across the 1UJSA and UK at Time Inc., NBC Universal
and most recently at Hearst Corporation. Rebecca helps re-align media organisations
through a data drniven, custormer-centric and collaborative operational approach.

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and member of the Audit and Nomination
Comimittees

Andria Vidler
Chief Executive Cfficer

Andria joined Centaur Media as Chief Executive in Novermber 201 3. From August 2009 (o
July 2013, Andna was Chief Executive Officer of EMI Music UK & Ireland during which fime
she successfully transformed the business into a high margin global rights management
enterprise by dnving consumer focus and digrtal nnovation, Between Apnl 2008 and August
2009, she was Chief Marketing Officer of Bauer Media As part of the UK management team
she was responsibie for bulding the Bauer Media brands to generate greater profitability
across the portfoho of 53 magazines, 23 radio stations and all online products. Andria was
Managing Director of Magic FM & National Radio from June 2005 to Apni 2008. Pnor to that,
she held a number of managenal, operational and marketng rcles at Capital Radio and the
BBC. Andria 1s a trusiee of The Roundhouse Trust and aiso sits on industry award panels

Swag Mukerji

Chief Financial Officer

Swag Joined Centaur Media in July 2016 and has held senior finance and general
management postions with biue chip FMCG companies, including United Biscunts plc,
Guinness ple and Virgin, where he cperated as a troubleshooter, value creator and change
agent As Group Finance Director of Biocompatibles International ple, he co-led the
commercialisation and growth of the Company with the CEQ, increasing share pnce by
350% from 59p to 267p in a falling market Since then he has been CEQ and CFO of three
private equity backed businesses where he increased profits by renegotiating key customer
contracts, rationalising costs and making substantial procurement savings Swag s a
Chartered Accountant and a Warwick MBA
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EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

In addition to the Chief Executive and Chief Financigl Officer, the Executive Committee comprises the Chief Operating Officer, two Divisional
Managing Directors, and the CEQ and Founding Partner of Oystercaichers. The biographies of the Executive Commitiee are set out below:

Linda S«uth
Chef Operating Officer

Linda was appointed Chief
Operating Officer in February
2016 and manages Centaur’s
centralised expert hubs of

IQ, Rasearch, Production,
Data and Digtal Product
Development, as well as IT,
HR and chent and customer
dehvery operations. Linda has
worked at a number of media
comparies including My
StarcomMediaVast, Capital
Radio, RadioCentre and most
recently Bauer Media. She
was a commercial consuftant
to Centaur Meda in 2014.
Through her previous

roles Linda has developed
operational experience In

a number of different areas
including M3A, sales and
general management and
across a broad spectrum of
broadcasting, publisting and
digital platforms.

Crave Nowhold
Disional
Managing Director

Steve 1s Dvisional Managing
Director for the Media and
Events businesses. He
oversees the mulh-platform
teams for the Markeling &
Creative, Legal, Engineenng,
Financial, Business Travel,
Meetings and HR portfclos
He also manages the central
event gperations team Prior
to joining Centaur Meda in
2015 Steve heid Managing
Director roles at WGSN,

i21 Events, Emap pic (now
Ascential}, Hachette and
Hearst He has expenence
of running mult-media,
nternational businesses n
key sectors across both B2B
and Consumer markets

Jane Turmer
Divisional
Managing Director

Jane’s early career began
with publishers Maclean
Hunter, Thornas Telford and
Argus Press Group, moving
on to Mintel International and
Clantas Nieisen and helping
dnve both companies into
the age of digital distnbution
Following this foundation,
her trme with agency groups
Havas and WPP ifocused

on delvaring nsight, sales,
marketing and digial
solutions for major enterpnse
clients in 2005 Jane joined
Chonon PLC as Managing
Director Latterly, she has run
her own digital applications
business whist also
supporting a range of classic
digital creative agencies,
digital content and SaaS
technology busingsses In
growing new audiences and
developing new charnels
Jane joined Centaur as
Dwisional Managing Director
with responsioity for

the Marketing portfolio in
March 2016,

Suki Thompson
CEQ and Founding Partner
of Oystarcatchers

Suki joined Centaur Media

in Qctober 2016 as a

result of the acquistion of
Oystercatchers and joined the
Executive Gormmuttee Suka
started her career agency-
side with companies such as
DDB, WWAY, Publicis, TBWA
and Y&R in London and Asia
befora founding Haystack
Consultancy, winch created

a framework for tha moderm
pitch intermediary. As well as
her work at Oystercatchers,
Suka has been the Chatr of
The Marketing Society, a long-
standing mernier of WACL
Women in Advertising and
Communications London) and
15 on The Board of Trustees
for Macmillan Cancer Support
and Tourad She s a regular
contributor to the national and
marketing press and speaker
at maustry confsrences

In 2012 Suki was made a
Freeman of the Gity of London
and given an honorary
Doctorate by Coventry
University for her services to
International Business




DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors of Gentaur Media Plc (‘the Company’ or 'the Group”),
a company incomorated and domiciled in England and Wales,
present their report on the affars of the Group and Company
together with the audited company and consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017

Detals cf significant events since the balance sheet date are
contained in note 34 to the financial statements.

Principal activities

The pnncipal aclivities of the Group are the provision of business
information, events and marketing solutions 1o satected professional
and commercial markets, The principal activites of the Company
are those of a holding company.

Business review

The Strategic Report, incorporating the CED's Review, on pages

6 to 27 sets out a summary of the Group strategic objectives,
business model, key performance measures, operating and financial
reviews, future developments, pnncipal risks and the corporate
responsibility statement

Greenhouse gas emissions
Details of the Group’s greenhouse gas emissions are included in the
Corporate Respensibility Secticn on page 27.

Research and development activities

The Group invests In systems and websnte development activities —
see note 11 to the financial statements for the internalty generated
amounts capitalised during the year The Group does not incur any
significant research costs.

Dividends

Afinat deadend in respect of the pened July to December 2017

of 1 5p per share {July to December 2016: 1.5p) 1s proposed

by the Directors, and subject to sharehclder approval at the

Annual General Meeting, will be paid on 25 May 2018 o ordinary
shareholders on the register at the close of business on 11 May
2018. With the intenm dividend of 1 5p per share, the total dvidend
jor the year wil be 3.0p per share (2016, 3.0p).

Number af orditary
shares held at
January 2017

GOVERNANCE REPORT‘

Share capital and substantial shareholdings
Details of the share capial of the Company are set aut in

note 25 to the financial statements. As at 31 December 2017, and
20 March 2018 (beng the last practicable date prior to publication),
notifications of Interests at or above 3% in the 1Issued voting share
capital of the Company had been received from the following.

31 Drecember 20 March
2017 2017
Aberforth Partners LLPT 24.868% 24.86%
Artemis Investrment Management LLFP 156 78% 15 7584
iBIS Capttal Partners LLP 716 7.20%
Argos Funds - Argonaut Fund 6 28 5.98%
Graham Sherren (inc spouse) 9 73% 5739
Chelverton Asset Management 5 02% 5 2%,
Otus Caprtal Management 4 56% 3 18%%
Fidetity Internaticnalt” 467 4.87%,
Slater Investments™ 2 d48% 3482,
Aberdeen Standard Life Investments™ 3 ag™ 3.20%

 This includes Wellcome Trust Lirnsted which 1s managed Dy Aberforth Partners LLP
T Figures denved from share register anatysis

At 20 March 2018 and 31 December 2017, 6,964,613 (31
December 2016. 6,870,437) 10p ordinary shares are held in
treasury, representing 4.60% (2016. 4.54%;) of the 1ssued share
capital of the Company as at 31 December 2017. 800,000 (2016
800,000) deferred shares of 10p each carry restnicted voling nghts
and carry no nght to receive a dividend payment The movement in
treasury shares durng the penod 1s due to the repurchase of shares
oy the Company

Directors and Directors’ interests

The Directors of the Company durnng the year and up to the date

of this report are detailed below. All directors served from 1 January
2017 unless otherwise stated. The Board have decided to continue
observing bas! practice by offering themselves for re-election annually.

Number of ordimary
shares held at
20 March 2017

Number of ordirary
shares held at
31 Decemiber 2017

Shares acouired
dusing the year

Ronald Sandler (resigned 3 January 2018 45,000 45,000 45,000 45,000
Neil Johnson {appointed 3 January 2018) - - - -
Willam Eccleshare - - - -
Robert Boyle 117,037 - 117,037 117,037
Rebecca Miskin 14,800 - 14,800 14,800
Andria Vidler 153,930 5,508 159,438 160,323
Swagatam Muker) 30,000 4,539 34,539 35,424

T Or date of resignation If earlier

The Directors’ interests m fong-term ncentive plans are disclosed in the Remuneration Committee Report on pages 50 to 51
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Qualifying third party indemnity provisions
By virtue of article 217 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
a qualifying third party indemnity provision (within the meaning given
by section 234 of the Companies Act 2006) s in force at the date of
this report in respect of each Director of the Company and was in
force throughout the year.

The Company has purchased appropnate insurance in respect of
legal acthons aganst Directors and officers

Charitable and political donations

During the year the Group made a donation 1o its nominated
charity for 2017, Alzheimer's, of £87,727, which included third
party donations collected at events of £67,387 (2018. donation to
Childline of £118,855 including third party collections of £101,947)

No politcal donations were made dunng the year (2016 Tnil)

Employment policy

The Group Is an equat opportunibes employer and appoints
employees without reference to age, sex, ethnic group or
religious belefs.

It 15 the Group's policy to give full consideration to suttable
applicatians for employment by disabled persens. Opportunities
also exist for employees of the Group wha become disabled to
continue In ther employment or to be trained for other pasttions n
the Group.

The Group actively encourages employee involvement at all levels,
both through monthly employee briefings and by direct access to
managers and the Executive Committee. In addition, the Share
Incentive Plan as descnbed in note 26 encourages employees’
participation N the Group’s performance

Al employees are regularly briefed on the financial and economic
factors affecting the Group's performarnce and new inttiatives
through monthly town hall mestings and management cascade
commurication.

Significant agreements

The Group's bank facility agreement, referred to in note 24 to the
financial statements, is a significant agreement that is terminable
on a change of control of the Company. In addition, awards under
certan of the long-term incentive plans, details of which are set
out in note 26, will vest or may be exchanged for awards of a
purchaser’s shares upon a change of control of the Gompany.

As part of the acquisition of MarketMakers, an earn-out payment
was agreed with its former sharsholders in the assumption that
certain EBITOA targets for 2017 were met ¥We expect this to be
concluded in the first half of 2018

Conflicts of interest

Foliawing the implementation of legisiation on conflicts of mterast,
refiected in the changes to the Company’s Articles of Association in
2008, procedures are in place to deal with such conflicts and they
have operated effectively.

Financial instruments

A statement 1n relation to the financial nsk management and use of
financal instruments by the Group is presented in note 29 to the
financial statements.

information required under the listing rufes
In accordance with the UK Financial Conduct Authonty's Listing
Rutes {LR 9.8.4C), the infarmation to be included in the annual
report and financial statements, where applicable, under LR © 8.4,
15 set out in this Directors’ report, with the exception of details of
transactions with controling shareholdars which is set out on
page 51.

Going concern

The Directors have carefully assessed the Company’s ability to
continue trading and have a reasonable expectation that the
Company has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for at least 12 months from the date of this report and for
the foreseaable future See note 1 of the financial staternents for
further detals

Subsidiaries

Detalls of the subsidianes of the Company ara shown i note 13 to
the financial staterments.

Compliance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code
See the Directors’ Statement on Corpaorate Governance for the

statement made in respect of the Group's compliance with the
provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code on page 33

Disclosure of Information to the Auditors

The Directors confirm that, so far as the Directors are aware, there
15 no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditors are
unaware, and the Directors have taien all the steps that they ought
to have taken as Directors i order to rake themselves aware of
any relevant audit infformation and to astabiish that the Company’s
auditars are aware of that infermation.

This confimmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance
with the provisions of s418 of the Companias Act 2006

The Girectors’ responsibility statement is inciuded on page 55
Approved by the Board of Directors and fb?iby order of the Board.
s

HELEN SILVER ~E
Company Secretary

20 March 2018
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is committed to high standards of corporate governance
and supports the UK Cerporate Governance Code published in
April 2016, The Board sets oul its report below on how the Group
has applied the principles of, and complied with, the UK Corporate
Governance Code during the year

Compliance statement

The Company has applied the provisions set out in the UK
Corporate Governance Code throughout the year The Board is
committed to mantaining a structure, which establishes a sound
corporate governance framework on behalf of the Company’s
shareholders. Throughout the year, the Group has complied with all
the provisions of the UK Comporate Governance Code

The Board

As at 31 December 2017 the Board had four Non-Executive
Directors and two Executive Directors (Chief Executive and Chief
Financial Officer) Biographies for each currently serving diractor

are shown on pages 28 to 29. The Board endeavours to mantain
diversity in its composition with respect to gender, skills, knowledge
and length of service In order to ensure the balanced and effective
running of the Company Nell Johnson (previously Ron Sandler until
3 January 2018) 1 Chairman of the Board and 1s an independent
Non-Executive Director, who leads the Board and ensures that both
Executive and Non-Executive Directors make available sufficient
time to carry out ther duties in an appropriate manner, that ak
directors recewve sufficient inancial and operationat nformation, and
that there is proper debate at Board meetings.

The Board 1s responsible for the leaderstup of the Company and
the Group, and in discharging that responsibility t makes decisions
objectively and in the best interests of the Group The Board sets
the wision, values and standards for the Group. The balance of

the Board, together with the advice sought from the Executive
Committee members and the Company’s external advisors, ensures
that no one indwvidual has unfettered powers of deciston. The Board
delegates day-to-day responsbility for the running of the Gompany
to the Chief Executive.

The Chairman is responsible for the effective performance of the
Board through a schedule of matters reserved for approval by the
Board (compnsing 1ssues considered most significant to the Group
n terms of financial impact and nsk) and control of the Board
agenda The Charrman conducts Board and shareholder meetings
and ensures that all directors are properly briefed. The Chief
Executive, supported by the Chief Financial Officer and Executive
Commities, 15 responsible to the Board for running the business
and implementing strategy. The Board reviews the perforrmance of
the Executive Directors and the Group against agreed budgets and
aganst the Group’s objectives, strategy anc values

The Senior Independent Director 15 Wilhlam Eccleshare, who is

also a member of the Remuneration and Nomunation Committees
The Cormpany Secretary s Helen Siver. The Company Secretary
assists the Chainrman in ensunng there 1s efficient communication
between all directors, the committees and senior management,

as well as the professicnal development of directors. Independent
advisors including lawyers, remuneration speciaiists and external
auditors are avallable to advise the Non-Executive Directors at

the Company's expense All of the Non-Executive Directors are
independent Committee meetings are held independently of Board
meetings and invtations to attena are extended by the Commitiee
Chalrman to cther directors, the Group's advisors and managerment
as appropnate Fhe terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the
Nommation Committee and the Remuneratton Committee, including
therr roles and the authorty delegated to them by the Board, are
available on request from the Company Secretary and will be
avalable at the AGM
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DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Board meetings

During the year, the membership of the Board and of each committee was as follows:

Board Audrt Remuneration Nomiaation
Raie Cainnisttea Conmmnittee Camanttes
Ronald Sandler
(resigned 3 January 2018) Chairman Member Member Chairman
Neil Johnson
(appointed 3 January 2018) Chairman - - Member
William Eccleshare Senior Indepsendent Director - Mernber Member
Robert Boyle Non-Executive Director Charrman Mernber -
Rebecca Miskin Nurn-Executive Diactor Member Charman Member
Andna Vidler Chuef Executive - - -

Swagatam Mukery

Chief Financiat Officer - -

The number of scheduled full Board meetings and committee meetings durng the year along with attendance of Orectors was as follows

Audit Remuneeation Nommation
Beoord Cummitiae Cammitiees Tommiles o
Nurnberrof meetings he[d 8 4 4 2
Meetrngs Meetmgs— Meetings Meetings Meatings Meetings Mestings Mestings
attended elgible to attended eligible to attended elgibte to attended eligible to
attend attend attend attend
Ronald Sandler
(resigned 3 January 2018) 8 B8 4 4 4 4 2 2
Neil Johnson
{appointed 3 January 2018) 0 0 - - - - Q
Willam Eccleshare 8 8 - - 4 4 2
Robert Boyle 8 8 4 4 4 4 - _
Rebecca Miskin 8 8 4 4 4 4 2 2
Andria Vidler' 8 8 - - - - - -
Swagatam Muker) 8 8 - - - - - -

¥ Andna Vidler's marned surname 1s Gibb and she appears as Andna Gibb on some records kept by Companies House,

if a Director is unable to attend a meeting he or she s provided with the same level of information as the other directors i advance of the
meeting and given the opportunity to express views, which will then be shared at the meeting

in addition 1o the key items 1dentified for discussion by the Committees above, the Board discussed the following matters at the Board

meetings dunng the year:

¢ Review of fimancial performance against budget and pricr year,

Review and approvat of budgets;

Review of Group key performance indicators,

Review of acquisition targets;

.

environment.

Review of Group strategy and objectives for the Executive Directors;

Approva) of financial reparts and commurication to shareholders and investors; and
Approvai of the Group's internal controf palicy, Including a robust assessment of the principal nsks and corparate governance
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Ethics

The Group carries out its business 1n a fair, honest and cpen
manner, ensunng that it complies with all relevant laws and
regulations. The Company has specific policies on fraud, director
conflict, bribery, whistieblowing and slavery and human trafficking,
which are widely distributed and comgliance with these policies is
monitored. The Board has oversight of the Group's actions. The
HR team ensures that new job opportunities are made available

to existing employees as well as to outside applicants and that all
employees are able to benefit from traning, career developmenit
and prcmotion opportunities where appropnate. The recrutment of
new personne! is rmade without prejudice and the Group beleves
In equal opportunity and encourages diversity, The analysis of the
Group’s workforce and Board by gender 1s set out in the Corporate
Responsibiity Report on page 26

Tharough all our iInteraction with our customers and partners we
ensure that we treat them fairly and openly whilst abiding by the
terms of contracts and relevant faw. Equally, we treat our supplers
farly and do not exploit them or therr employees

Monitoring of controls

The Board has overall responsibility for the effectiveness of the
Group's system of nsk managemert and internal controls and these
are regularly monitored by the Audit Commitiee.

Details of the activiies of the Audit Committee in this financial year
can be found in the Audt Committee Report on page 38

Greenhouse gas emissions

The disclosure in respact of the greenhouse gas emissions of the
Group that are attributable to human activity In tonnes of carbon
dioxide 1s set out In the Corporate Responsibility Repart on page 27

Fraud

Whilst the Group cannot guarantee to prevent fraud, an internal

control framework is In place to reduce the likelihood of fraud arsing.

The Group's whistleblowing policy 1s availlable to empioyees on the
Company's intranet, should any emplcyse become aware of any
incidence of fraud,

Directors’ conflicts

Group and subsidiary directors are required 1o notfy therr employing
company of all drectorships they hold Annual conflict of interest
disclosures reguire them to disclose such directorships or other
relationships, which they or a person connected 1o them may hold
These are reviewed by the Board to assess the impact on the
Company and whether it would impair the Group's chjectives.

Bribery Act 2010

In response to the Bribery Act 2010, the Board perforrmed a nisk
assassment across the Group and formalsed its policy to prevent
bribery. The Board has in place processes to prevent corruption
or unethical behaviour The policy explains what is considered a
bribe or facilitation payment, which are prohibited, and provides
guidance over the levels of gifts, entertainment and hospitality that
are considered reasonable Traning has been mandatory for those
groups of employees identified and 1s available as required to new
joners During 2017, an online traming programme was made
avallable to all employees The Group’s policy 1s communicated to
all appropnate third parties. The more ngorous processes around
declanng directors’ interests and identfying potential conflicts have
improved the regular monitoring of the Group's policy

Whistleblowing

The Company 15 committed to the highest standards of integnty and
honasty. Along with other policies which encourage this behaviour,
the Group's whistieblowing policy 1s avallable to employees on the
Company’s intranet. This policy aliows all employees to disclose
openly, In confidence or anonymously, any concerns they may have
ahout possible tmgroper practices, In financial or other matters

An escalation procass has been communicated to employees.

Any matters raised will be investigated and resolved. The Audit
Committee will be notified of any ssues raised through this process
and appropnate action taken However, no incidents were noted
durng the year.

Modern Slavery Act 2015

The CGompany s committed to implementing and enforcing effective
systerns and controls to ensure modern slavery IS not taking

place anywhere In its business or in any of its supply chains. The
Company’s slavery and human trafficking staternent for the purposes
of section 54 of the Madern Slavery Act 2015 Is avallable on the
Company’s website, www centaurmedia.com. The Group has in
place an anti-slavery and human trafficking policy which has been
made avalable to emptoyees on the Company’s intranet and, from
2017, is notified to all new joiners, Tranng has been provided to key
employees and the policy is communicated to suppliers and other
third parties where appropriate.

Capital structure

Information on the share capital structure is included in the Directors’
Report on page 31

Approved by the Board of Directors ?gn d by order of the Board
/

A

g

HELEN SWLVER
Company Secretary

20 March 2018
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Board assessment and Directors’
performance evaluation

The Board undertakes a formal evaluation of its own performance
and that of its committees and indivdual ditectors. Individual
evaluation aims to show whether each director continues to
contribute effectively and to demonstrate commitment to the role
(inclucing commitment of time for Board and committee meetings
and other duties) Evaluatons are undertaken annually by seif-
assessment and the Charrman’s performance is also evaluated
by the other Non-Executive Directors at a separate meeting

for this purpose each year. In addition the Chief Executive is
subject to an annual perfarmance review with the Chairman, New
directors receive an induction programme and all the directors are
encouraged to undertake continuous professional developmant
programmes as appropriaie The Group maintains insurance cover
in respect of legal action against its directars.

Management structure

The Board delegates the day-to-day rurnning of the Company to
the Executive Directors, who in turn share the operational runming
of the Group with the Executive Committee Throughout the year,
the Executive Committee was the pnmary body implermenting
operational management across the Group. The role of the
Executiva Committee is to review:

v

Financial performance and budget (at operational level);

Human capital management;

COperational efficiency and devalopments (ncluding Group 1T,
procurement and facilinesy;

*

Product developrment;
+ Market development;
+ Business planning,

.

Acqursition needs;
+ Internal and external commumications, and

+ Business transformation and change management

The biographies of the members of the Executive Committes are
set out on page 30. Supporting the Executive Committes are the
Portfolic Directors who are responsible for specific market segments
and the expert ieaders who lead the tearns délivering functional
experbise. The focus on our markets and audience enables us

to build a deeper understanding of the commercial opportunmes
across sach market. We know that our customers want flexible
content that works seamlessly across multiple platforms. By
leveraging this market insight and an understanding of our
customer requirements we are able to offer a higher value customer
proposition. The expert teams provide the expertise and scale

that allows us to effectively and efficiently support the defivery of
commercial opportunities acrass each market, The creaton of these
axpert teams also enables us to effectively manage our cost base
and to pnoritise investment across the business.

A |
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Relations with shareholders

The Company encourages meaningfu! dalogue with all
shareholders. Shareholder communication centres primarily an

the publication of annual reparts, penodic press releases, investor
presentations and trading updates The Chairman and Exectutive
Dwectors are avallable for discussions with shareholders throughout
the year and particuarly around the time of results announcements,
The Senior independent Director is also avallable should any
shareholder wish to draw any matters to his attention The Ditectors
are available for comment throughout the year and at all General
Megtings of the Company. Centaur Media values the views of its
shareholders and recognises their interest in the Company's strategy
and performance, Board membership and guality of management.
The Group therafore has an active programme to meet and

make presentations to its current and potential shareholders to
discuss its ohjactives The AGM s usad to cornmunicate with
investors and they are encouraged to attend the AGM and to
participate m proceedings formally or sharing their views with Board
members informally after the meeting, The Charmen of the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Comimitteas are available to answer
queshions. Separate resolutions are proposed on each issue so that
they can be gven proper consideration and there 1s a resolution to
approve the annual report and financial staterments. The Company
counts all proxy votes and indicates the ‘evel of proxies lodged on
each resolution, atter it has been voted on by a show of hands

Al shareholders can gain access to the annual reports, trading
updates, announcements, press releases and other information
about the Company through the Company’s website,
www.centaurmedia.com.

Risk assessment

Rigks that affect or may affect the business are identified and
assessed, and appropriate controls and systaems implemented to
ensure that the nsk is managed. The Group's nsk register 1s kept by
the Company Seacretary with the input of the Executive Committes
and is reviewed by the Audit Gommittee evary six months with
appropnate mitigation actions also being reported to and overseen
by the Committee.

The principal risks facing the Group, with associated mitigating
controls, are detaled on pages 22 to 24 withun the Strategic Report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

ROBERT BOYLE

Chairman of the Audit Committee

Dear Shareholder,

| am pleased to present the report of the Audit Committee ('the
Committee'} for the year ended 31 Decemnber 2017 This report
detalls the Audit Committee’s respensibiies and key activities over
the penod The role of the Committee 1s to protect the mterests of
shareholders regarding the integnty of financial Infermation published
by the Group and to oversee the effectiveness of the external audit.
1t does this through revewing and reporting to the Board on the
Group’s financial reporting, iniernal controls and risk management
processes and the performance, independence and effectiveness of
the external auditors, PricewaterhocuseCoopers LLP ('Pw(?)

Committee composition

Dunng the year, the Committee compnsed Non-Executive Directors,
Robert Boyle (Chatrmany), Rebecca Miskin and Ren Sandler who
stood down on 3 January 2018. Therr biographies are shown

on pages 28 and 29 The Group's Chairman, Neil Johnson, was
appointed cn 3 January 2018 and attends meetings by invitation
but is not a member of the Committee. The membership of

the Comrmittee 1s balanced, and 1s considered to contain the
appropnate combination of recent, relevant financial experience
through the Chairman, as well as competence relevant to the sector.

The Executive Directors, representatives of the external auditors and
other Group executives regularly attend meetings at the invitation

of the Commitiee The Committee met four trmes dunng the vear,
with all members attending. Meetings are held throughout the year,
and timed to align with the overail financial reporting timetable At
least once during the year, the Commitiee meets separately with the
external auditcrs and with management, and as Chairman | am in
regular drect contact with the external auditors and with the Chief
Financial Officer.

Roles and responsibilities
The main roles and responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to:

- Monitor the integrity of the financial statements of the Group
and any public announcements relating to the Group's financial
performance, reviewing (and approving) significant financial
reporting Judgements contained in them,

« Review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and
chjectivty and the effectiveness of the audit process, taking
into consideration relevant UK professionai and regulatory
requiraments,

= Review and assess the Annual Report in order to determine that
It can advise the Board that, taken as a whole, the Annual Report
1s far, balanced and understandable, and provides shareholders
with the information they need to assess the Company’s position
and petforrmance, business model and strategy as required by
provision C.1 1 of the UK Corporate Governance Codle,;

« Make recormmendations tc the Board n relation to the
appointment and terms of engagement of the external auditcrs
and to review and approve levels of audit and non-audit
remuneration;

+ Develop and implement policy on the engagement of the external
auditors to supply non-audit services,

Review the effectiveness of the Group’s internal financial control
and risk management systems;

Review the Group’s financial and operational poticies and
procedures to ensure they remain effective and relevant;

= Oversee the whistleblowing arrangements of the Group and to
ensure they are cperating effectively; and

» Report to the Board on how it has discharged its responsibilities
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Financial statements

During the year and up unill the date of this report, the Audit

Commttee undertack the following activities to ensure the integrity

of the Group's financial statements and format announcements:

Regularly met with management and the Chiet Financial Officer

to discuss the results and performance of the business, including

regular revigw of the aged debt posttion throughout the year;

* Received reports fram management on the internal controls
covering the financial reporing process,

-

Reviewed and agreed the external auditors’ strategy in advance of
their audit for the year,;

+ Reviewed compliance with requirements under the UK Corporate
Gavarnance Code, and m particular its impact on the Strategic
Report and Viability Statement,

Discussed the repont received from the external auditors regarding
thewr audit In respect of the prior year, which included comments
an significant inancial reporting iudgements and their findings on
internal controls;

Met with other management personniel mcluding the Head of
Credit; and

Reviewed and discussed with management and the Chief
Financial Officer sach formal announcernent made by the Group

I

The most significant fimancial reporting [udgements considered by
the Audit Committee and dhiscussed with the external auditors dunng
the year were as follows:

Carrying value of goodwili and intangible assors

The Audit Committee has reviewad managerment’s assessment of
the recoverability of the Group's goodwill and intangible assets and
whether there 1s a need for any resulting imparment  The recoverable
armount of goodwill has been determined through value-in-use
calculations of each cash-generating unit {'CGL’) based on formally
Board approved forecasts for the first three years of the value-n-use
calculation, and applying a terminal growth rate of 2 0%.

In 2017 management’s assessment of the recoverability of the
Group's goodwill and intangible assets resulted in no impairment
being recognised against the goadwil. The Committee has paid
particular attention to the judgements and assumptions used to
forecast cash flows, parboularly around revenue and adjusted?
EBITDA growth rates. The Gommuittee was satisfied that the
forecasts reflect the CGUs" historical budgeting performance and
that reasonable senstivities were performed, that the value-in-use
caiculation reflects management s best estimate, and that the baoking
of no Imparment aganst any segment s appropnate As a result the
Audit Committee was satisfied with the carrying vafue of goodwill and
Intangible assets in the Group balance sheet,

Further detals on goodwill and the impairment testing are ncluded
in note 10 to the financial statements,

Annual Report and Financial Statements -

Recoverabiity of iade recevables

Gross trade receivables over 90 days overdue fell to £% &m at

the end of 2017 from £4.1m (£3 2m excluding Home Interest) at

the end of 2016. The Committee notes that collectability of trade
recarvables is a judgementa! area. The Committee has reviewed
management's detalled assessment of the recoverability of the trade
receivabtes balance, and the methodology used to determine the
provision reguired, which includes a range of sensitivities. The Group
continues to operate a policy of accruing a certain percentage of
revenue against a provision for doubtful debts however, it has been
deemed that no further exceptional provision 1s required in 2017,

The Committee is pleased that improvemants to front-end billing and
credit control processes have been made dunng the course of the
year and the Group continues to make good progress on cofiecting
currant recevables and reducing the amount of days’ sales
oulstanding (DS0') Bolh the Audd Curmnttee and the Board have
paid close attention 1o quantum and ageing of trade recevables
{hroughout the year, reviewed the processes and controls
implemented to manage the nisk of these 1ssues recurrng, and have
recenved reqular reports from management, Including the Head of
Credit.

Further destails on trade receivables and the associated provision are
shiown in notes 18 and 29

Other areas of judgement discussed with the external auditors werg,
as follows.

Adjusting items

The Audit Sommittee has chalisnged management strongly over
recent financial reporting perods with regard to the presentation
of exceptional items and other alternative performance measures
Adjusting rems disclosed In the year include the profit on disposal
of the Home interest segment disposal, earn-out cansideration and
amortisation of acquired intangible assets mainky n relation to the
acquisition of MarketMakers and Oystercatchers (see below), and
exceptional costs arising n relation to restructunng activities, The
Comrittee notes that the restructunng activities (both staff-related
and corporate) anse from specific change programmes during

the year, and that they are material and could therefore distort

the user's view of the Group's results The Committee is satisfied
that it is appropriate to present these tems as adjusting items on
the basis that they assist the user in assessing the core operating
performance of the Group

The Committee assesses the appropriateness of all alternative
performance measures disclosed as adjusting and the impact these
have on the presentation of the Group’s results, and 1s satsfied that
they do not inapproprately replace or obscure IFRS measures.

Further detals on adjusting fems are incluged n notes 1(b) and 4 to
the financial statements
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Acquisttion of MarketMakers

On 2 August 2017, the Group acquired 100% of Market Makers
Incorporated Limited which constituted a Business Combination
under IFRS3

The acquisition resulted in an nitial consideration of £18 9m which
has been allocated for far value adjustments in relation tc identified
intangible assets (brand, customer contracts and relationships and
in-house developed CRM systems) of £5 1m and goodwill of £11m
cash and working capital amounted to £3.0m Amortisation of the
acquired intangibles was £0.6m in the year and would be £1.3m on
a full year basis

The Committee has reviewed the results of the purchase price
allocation exercise performed by management to identify and value
mtangible assets and concluded that it 1s appropriate.

Details of the acquisition of MarketMakers are set out n notes 14
and 23 to the financial statements

Disnosal of Home int=siest

Cn 1 August 2017, the Group completed the disposal of the
Home Interest Segment for £32 8m The Committes is satisfied
that the accounting for its disposal and treatment of the applicable
transitional services arrangement are fair and appropriate. Detals
of the disposal are set out in notes 8 and 15 to the financial
statements

Acquisition of Oystercatchers

On 30 Septernber 2016, the Group acquired the business and
assets of The Oystercatchers LLP, which constitutes a Business
Combnation under IFRS 3

The agresment included contingent consideration relating to an
earn-gut arrangement of up to £1 2m

Since payment of this consideration was linked to employees
remaining in the business up to 31 March 2017, the charge for this
earnout has been taken through the statement of comprehensive
incorme as a remuneration expense in both 2017 and 2016,
charges of £0.6m have been treated as an adjusting item in Ine wrth
the Group's accounting polcy.

The Committee notes that the amounts involved are material
and require judgement, and concurs with the treatment of the
acquisition, including its presentation, in the financial statements

Further detalls on the business combination are presented in note
14 to the financial statements.

Going concern and viability

The Aucht Committee received a report seting out the going
concern raview undertaken by management which forms the basis
of the Board'’s going concern conclusion. Dunng 2015, the Group
agreed a four year £25.0m multi-currency revolving bank facilty. The
Committee notes that working caprtal was strongly positive it the
year and the Group has now no draw down from the facility The
Committee has rewewed forecasts to cover the eighteen months
from signature date with vanous downside scenanos explored The
Committee has concluded that the adoption of the going concern
basis is appropriate

In addition, the Cornmittee has assessed the statement in relation
10 the longer-term wviability of the Group and of the Group's
principal nsks to viabdity, including revewing the fong-term financial
projections for the period over which the statement 1s made, and
reviewing qualitative and quantitative analysis and scenario testing
prepared by management, The Committee concluded that the
staterment in relation to the longer-term viability of the Group in the
Strategic Report 1s appropnate.

Risk management

The Group's management Is responsible for the 1Identification,
assessment and management of risk, as well as for designing

and cperating the system of nternal control as set out in the
Strategic Report on pages 6 to 27 The Committee has assessed
management’s identification of nsk and concluded that appropriate
mitigating actions are being taken. The Auditor has also detalled
certain nisks In his report and set out the work performed to satisfy
himself that these have been properly reflected in the Financial
Staterments. The Commitiee has worked closely with management
and received detalled information 1o assess the effectiveness of
internal financial control and risk assessment and management
systems, and report on them to the Board {which retains ulimate
rasponsioility). Detalls of financial nsks are set out in note 29,

Hawving monitored the Group’s nsk management and nternal control
system, and having reviewed the effectiveness of matenal controls,
ncluding financial, operaticnat and comphance controls, the
Committee confirms on behalf of the Board that 1t has not identified
any significant control fallings or weaknesses at any time during the
year and to the date of this report. The Committee 1s satisfied that
appropnate actions have been taken to address weaknesses in the
order to cash cycle following the accounting system implamentation
during 2015, and that significart improvements in cash coliections
have new teen instrumental n driving strong cash collection
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Risk of fraud

The Committee considered the nsk of fraudulent financial reporting
in the businass, and through its review of the effectivenass of
internal controls and repaorting from management, has concluded
that adequate controls were in place during the year

Whistleblowing

The Committee reviewed the Group’s whistieblowing pohicy and
ig satisfied that this has met FCA rules and good standards of
corporate governance Further details of the whistisblowing
policy are set out within the Directors’ Statement on Corporate
Governance on page 36

Internal audit

The Committee considered whether it was appropriate to appoint
internai auditors and conciuded that this is not currently required
given the size of the business, its relatively centraksed operations
and the nsks 1dentified together with the mitigating controls.

External audit

The Group's external auditors are PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.
The Committee monitors the external audit process to ensure

high standards of guality and effectiveness This was assessed
throughout the year using a number of measures, INciuding:
Reviewing the quality and scope of planning of the audit and the
level of fees,

+

Monitoring the mdependence and transparency of the audit; and
Obtaining feedback from managerment and the Directors on the

quality of the audit team, their business undeystanding and audt
approach, and approving reappontmesnt

PwC have been thg Company’s external auditor since its
incorporation in 2004 The appontment was subject to competitive
tender n 2016.

The Audit Committee has considered the independence and
objectivity of the external auditors through a careful review of ther
terms of engagerment, scope of work and level of fees {(which are
shown in note 3 ta the financial statements). This inciuded reviewing
the nature and extent of non-audit services supplied by the external
auditors to the Group, seeking to balance objectivity and value

for money

In kght of new regulations, the Cormmitiee reviewed and approved
updates to the Group's policy regarding non-audit services dunng
2016. The external auditors are excluded from prowding any
non-audit services that individually, or in aggregate, may impair

the independence of the auditar Prior approval from tha Audit
Cornmittes is required for any permitted audit related or other
services in accordance with the Audrt Committes’s policy, and
effective from 1 January 2017 fees for any such services should not
exceed 70% of the fee for the external audit in any given year
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Dunng the year, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP provided non-

audit senices to the Group In tespect of the Group’s Class One
fransactions. Work consisted of provding an Accountant’s Opinion
On Pro Forma Financial Information provided within the Group’s
circular and a review of the Group's working capital provided to

the Board pursuant to those two Class Cne transactions The
CGommittee decided that n wiew of the urgency of the reparting
requirements and PricewaternouseCoopars LLP's famifiarity with the
husiness beng disposed of they were likely to be the lowest nsk and
most financial effective providers of these services

Following the update to the Group's non-audit services policy,
tax advisary and compliance services have no longer been
supplied since 31 December 2016. The external auditors’ report
to the Directors and the Audit Commitiee also confirmed their
independence In accordance with auditing standards and the
Committea concurred. Should such senvices be required in the
forthcorning year we are likely to use alternative suppliers.

Self-assessment

Ouning the period the Audit Committes performed a formal,
questionnaire based, self-assessment of the effectiveness of the
Audit Committee with satisfactary results.

Report to the Board

The Board has requested the Gommuittee to confirm that in its
opinion the Board can make the reguired statement that the Annual
Report taken as a whole is far, balanced and understandabile and
provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess

the Company’s position and performance, business model and
strategy. The Cormmittee has given this confirmation on the basis of
s review of the whole Annual Report, underpinned by Invelvement
i the plannmg for its preparation, review of the processes to
ensure the accuracy of factual content and by assurances from the
Remuneration Committee

Independent auditors

A resolution is to be proposed at the Annual General Meeting for
the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP as auditors of
the Company.

ROBERT BOYLE
Chairman of the Audit Committee

20 March 2018
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

NEIL JOHNSON

Dear Shareholder,

| arn pieased to present the report of the Nomination Gommittee
for the year ended 31 December 2017 This report details the
Committee’s ongoing responsibilities and key activibes over the
penod. The Committee comprised Ron Sandler (Charman) untl

3 January 2018, myself with effect from 3 January 2018, Willam
Eccleshare and Rebecca Miskin, ensuring that there is a majority of
ndependent Non-Executive Ditectors on the Committes.

Nomination Committee Responsibilities
The Gommittee’s key responsibilities include:

Reviewing the Board's structyre, size and composition;
Reviewng the compositicn of Board Committees;

Defining the rale and competencies reguired for appointments to
the Board,

Identrfying, nominating and reviewing candidates for appontment
to the Board,

Putting in place plans for succession far the Chairman and
other members of the Board, the Chief Executive and the Chief
Financial Officer; and

Rewviewing the leadership needs of the organisatior, both
Executive and Nan-Executive,

The appointment of directors i a matter for the Board, which
considers recammendations of the Normination Committee. The
Committee 1s responsible for ehsunng that the Board and the Board
Committees are properly constituted and balanced in terms cof skills,
experience and diversity Our policy on Board diversity 1s set cut in
the Directors’ Report above and dunng the year we had two female
Board members, compnsing 33% of the Board

Chairman of the Nomination Committee

Activities during the year

Dunng the second part of the year, the primary focus of the
Committee was to identify and appoint a new Chairman in preparation
for the departure of Ron Sandler, The Gormmittee was led by Willam
Eccleshare for this purpose and followed a ngorous procass that

was approved by the Board and supported by executve search
consultants. Following a comprehensive short fist and interview
axercise, my appointment was recommended to the Board oy the
Committee and | was cenfirmed as Chairman and a member of the
Nomination Committee with effect from 3 January 2018,

Zygos Partnership, the external search consultancy used in the
search process has no other connection with Centaur Media,

For the remainder of the year the Commuttee focused on the
responsibilites set out above, INcluding in particular undertaking a
review of the Board’s structure, size and composition, as well as the
effectiveness of the Board and its Committees.

NEIL JOHNSON
Chairman of the Nomination Commitiee

20 March 2018
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Annual Statement

REBECCA MISKIMN
Chalr of the Remuneration
Committee

Dear Shareholder,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the Remuneration
Repart tor the year ended 31 December 2017. This report is in
three parts. this Annual Statement; the Remuneration Policy Report;
and the Arnnual Repart on Remunearaton As no changes are being
proposed to the existing Remuneration Policy, only the adwsory
shareholder vate on the Annual Report on Remuneration will be
tabled at the Annual General Meeting on 3 May 2018

Committee membership and work of the
Committee during the year
Dunng the year, Certaur Media's Remuneration Committes

compnsed myself (Chairman), Ron Sandler, Robert Boyle, and
Wiliam Eccleshare,

The Committee met four times dunng 2017. The main Comrmitiee
activibes dunng the year (full detals of which are set out in the
relevant sections of this report) included:

+ agreeing Executive Director base salary levels frorn 1 April 2017,

= agreeing the performance aganst the targets for the 2016 annual
bonus awards;

« saetting the performance targets for the 2017 annual bonus;

agreeing the award levels and earnings per share and Total
Shareholder Return (TSR) targets for the 2017 LTIP awards. This
included a consultation exercise with the Company’s largast
INvestors;

reviewing the Company's share dilution positior;;
review draft Gender Pay disclosures; and

agreeng the new Non-Executive Chairman’s fee level and the
departing arrangements for the outgoing Chairman

Context for executive remuneration at
Centaur Media

Executive remuneration consists of a base salary, pension
contribution, benefit provision and, subject to performance
conditions, an annual bonus plan, part paid in cash and part
deferred into shares, and shares awarded annually under an LTIP.
Incentive pay 15 subject io clawback and malus provisions and,

post-vesting, Executive Directors are required to retain 50% of the
net of tax shares awarded unti they have sabsfied the Company’s
share ownership guidslines The Committee considers that the
current Bemuneration Policy remans appropriate and that it satsfies
the Committee's abjective to operate a remuneration structure which
successfilly promotes the long-term success of the Group and

fully aligns the interests of the Executive Drectors with those of our
shareholders. As such, no changes are being proposed at the

2018 AGM.

Implementation of the Remuneration Policy
in 2017

Base salary leveis were not increased from 1 Apnl 2017 and there
waere no changes to pension or benefit prowison;

-

-

Performance against financial and personal/strategrc targets in
the year ended 31 Decermber 2017 resulted in the Remuneration
Committee awarding bonuses of 37% and 50% of the maximum
for the Chief Executive and Chief Financial Cfficer respectively;

LFIRP awards granted to the Chief Executive in 2015, which
were dug to vest in March 2018, based on performance to 31
December 2017 will lapse as a result of faling to mest threshold
EPS and TSR performance targets.

LYIP awards were gramed to the Chief Executive and Chief
Financial Officer on 24 April 2017 over shares equal 1o 100% of
saiary based on EPS and TSR performance targets While the
onginal intention was to grant awards over 150% of salary, based
on EPS, TSR, EBITDA and cumulative free cash flow targets, the
Remuneration Committea reverted 1o the normal 100% of salary
grant level based on EPS and TSR only, following consultation
with the Company's major investors.

implementing the Remuneration Policy
for 2018

In respect of mplementing the Remuneration Policy for Executive
Directors In 2018:

+ Base salary levels for Executive Dwactors will ncrease from
1 April 2018 by 2% in line with general worlidorce increases;

+ There will be no changes to pension and benefit provision;

* The annual bonus will continue to be capped at 100% of salary,
with the majority of bonus potential measured against financial-
based targets and a minority based on strategic targets. Any
annual banus greater than 75% of basic salary will continue to
be awarded in Centaur Media Pic shares and deferred for three
years; and

LTIP awards are expected to be granted on a basis consistent
with awards granted in prior years n terms of grant levels (100%
of salavy) and performance targets (50% based on EPS, 50%
based on relative Total Shareholder Return).

We trust that you find this Report to be mformative and we hope
to receive your support for the Annual Report on Remuneration at
our farthcoming AGM It is the intenition of the Comimittes ta have a
further review of Remuneration policy which will be discussed with
sharehalders dunng 2018, ahead of the need to put the palicy to
shareholders for approval n 2019,

REBECCA MISKIN

Chair of the Remuneration Committee
20 March 2018

Ll

42



w.contaurmedia.com

‘
GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION POLICY

Centaur Media’s shareholders approved the Directors’
Remuneration Policy at the 2016 AGM held on 11 May 2016 We
nave included an updated version of the Policy to provide context
for the Annual Report on Rermuneraticn. It has been updated only to
make 1t easier to follow and to take account of the changes to the
Board, so the substance remains unchanged. A copy of the Policy
approved at the 2016 AGM can be found in the 2015 Annual Report
and al www.centaurmedia.com/investors

Centaur Media recognises the need to attract, retain and incentivise
executives with the appropriate skills and talent to manage and
develop the Group's businesses, drive the Group’s strategy and
delver shareholder value The main principles of the Directors’
Remuneration Policy are

To achieve total remuneration packages that are competitive In
the sector wathin which the Group operates and with the market
in general,

To provide an appropnate balance between fixed and vanable
remuneration which rewards high levels of performance; and

To incentivise and retain management and to afign their interests
with those of shareholders

Considerations of employment conditions
elsewhere in the group

The Committee considers the general base salary increases for ail
employees when determining the annual salary increases for the
Executive Directors. Employees have not been consulted 1n respect
of the design of the Group's Executive Director Remuneration Policy,
although the Committee will keep this approach under review

OPERATION

PURPOSE AND LINK
TO STRATEGY

ELEMENT

Consideration of shareholder views

The Committee considers sharehoider feedback recaived in retation
to the Annual Report and AGM each year This feedback, plus any
additional feedback receved during the course of the year 1s then
considered as part of the Company’s annual review of remuneration
poticy. In addition, the Committee will seek to engage directly with
majer shareholders and therr representative bodies should any
material changes be made to the Diractors’ Remuneration Poticy
Detatls of votes for and aganst the resolution to approve last

year's Remuneration Report are set out in the Annual Report on
Remuneratton.

Directors’ Remuneration Policy —

summary table

The table below sets out the remuneration policy that was approved
by shareholders in 2016 and which became formally effective from
the date of the 2018 AGM

Nate that payments may be rmade under arrangements In place
prior 1o this policy becoming effective {including pension, other
benefits and Incentives)

The remuneration policy offered to empioyees of the Groun wiil be
adapied to reflect local market practice and seniorty

PERFORMANCE
TARGETS AND RECOVERY
PROVISIONS

« Reflects the value of the
individual and ther role
Reflects skills and
experience over time

Ease salary

» Provides an appropnate
level of basic fixed
income avording
excessive risk arising
from over rellance on
variable income

Reviewed annualty,
normally effective 1 Apnl

Paid n cash on a
monthly basis
Pensionable

Takes penodic account
against companies with
similar charactenstics
and sector comparators

The Comrmrittee has not
set a maparmum lavel

of salary Increases will
be set in the context of
salary increases amongst
the wider work force

The Committee retains
the discretion to make
Increases above this level
in certain circumstances,
for example, but not
lmited to:

Not applicable

An increase in the
individual’s scope and
responsibilities

Alignment to the external
market

An increase {o reflect an
indwvicdual’s performance
and development in the
role, e g where a new
appointment 1s recruited
at a fower salary level
and 1s awarded stepped
ncreases
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PLURPOSE AND LINK

ELEMENT OPERATION MAXIMUM
TO STRATEGY
Arnnual » Incentmses annual « Targets reviewed annually  100% of salary
bonus delivery of financial and + Not pensionable
strategic goals
dc g + Mandatory deferrat of any
* Masaimum bonus only bonus over 75% of base
payable far achieving saiary into shares for
demanding targets 3 years
» Dividend equivaients may
be payabie on deferred
share awards
Long term * Aligns to main strategic » Annual grant of Awards capped at 100% of

inLentives salary (200% in exceptional

circumstances)

conditional awards or nil
cost options granted
Bridend equivalents may
be payable on shares to
the extent awards vest

objectives of delivering
profit growth and
sharehaolder return

PERFORMANCE
TARGETS AND RECOVERY

PROVISIONS

* Normally msasured over
a one year performance
period

« Primanly based cn
Group’s annual financial
performance (majority, ¥
not ally

» Personal and/or strategic
objectives (minority)

Measures for the
following years will be set
oul in the Annual Report
on Remuneration of the
relevant year

Cilawback provisions
apply

Normally a three year
performance period

Parformance s based
on finahcial and/or share
price based measures
(e g. refative Total
Sharehoider Return and
EPS)

» The Committee may alter
the weighting and targets
annually if it determines
that 1t 1s appropnate to
do so

.

Targsts for the following
years will be set out in
the Annual Report on
Remuneration

»

Awards vest as follows.

Threshold performance.
25% of award

Maximum performance:
100% of award

Clawback provisions
apply
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ELEMENT PURPOSE AND LINK OPERATION : MAXIMUM PERFORMANCE
TO STRATEGY TARGETS AND RECOVERY
PROVISIONS
Pension + Provides competitive « Defined contnbutions Up to 15% of base salary Not applicable
retrement benefits made to Executive
» Provides an opportunity Directors’ own pension
for Executive Directors to plans Gash supplements
cantributs to their own may also be paid
retirerment plan
Other = Auds retention and = Executive Directors are There 18 No maximur Not applicable
benefits recrutment provided with private Set at a level which the
medical insurance Comrrittee considers 1s
» Other benefits including appropriate i the context
company car allowance of the circumstances of
may be provided if the rolesindividual and local
considered appropnate market practice
by the Commitiee
Shpr + To provide alignment + 50% of the net of tax 100% of salary Not applicable
ownership of interests between vested LTIP shares
Executive Directors and required 1o be retaned
shareholders until the guidekne 1s met
Notes

' The Annual Report on Remuneration sets out how the Gompany impiemented the pohcy presented above in 2017 and will apply it n 2018

2 Not all employees have a banus apportunily, and below Executive Director level bonus opportunities are generally lower Participation in the LTIP s bmited te Executive Directors
and certain selected serior management Other employees are eligible to participate in the Company's all employee share plan In general, these differences anse to ensure
remuneration arrangements are competitive in the market, together with the fact that remuneration of the Executive Directors and samior executives typically has a greater
emphasis on performance redated pay All borus schemes are discretionary,

3 The choice of performance metrics apphcable to the annual benus plan reflect the Committee’s belief that any incentive cormpensation sheuld be appropnately challenging and
primanly tied to financial measuras

* The TSR and EPS performance cenditions applicable to the LTIP were sselected by the Committee on the basis that they reward the delivery of long-term returns to shareholders
and the Growp's financial growth, and are consistent with the Gompany’s objective of delivenng long-term value to sharehotders,

5 Exacutive Dirsctors may participate in any all-employee shate ptan, in line with HMRC imits, and to the extent offered
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Rewatd scenarios

The chart beiow shows how the composition of each Exacutve
Dirgctor's remuneration package vanes at different levels of
performance under the policy set out above, as a percentage of
total remuneration opportunity and as a total value:
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B Long-termn mcentve
M Annual bonus
B Foed

£1,000

£750 .
=3
=1
o
w

€500.

£250 _

[0} -
Mintmum  On-target  Maximum Minimum - Cn-target  Maximum
Andrla Vidier Swag Muker)
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financal Officer

Notes

Fixed pay consists of salary from 1 Apnl 2018 The value of benefts
and pension have been astimated for 2018.

Target performance 1s the level of performance reguired to deliver
50% of the maximum bonus and 25% of the maximum LTIP valus
(see below).

- Maximum performance would resutt in a maximum bonus
payment of 100% of salary and full vesting of the maximum LTIP
award (100% of salary for Andna Wdler and Swag Mukeri)

- No share price appreciation has been assumed

Approach ta recruitment and promotions

The remuneration package for a new Executive Director would

be set i accordance with the terms of the Company's prevaiing
approved remuneration policy at the time of appantment and would
take INto account the skills and expenence of the ndividual, the
rmarket rate for a candidate of that expenence and the importance of
securing the relevant mdividual,

On recruitment, salary may (but need not necessarity) be set below
the nomal market rate, with phased increases as the executive
gains experience The maximum annual bonus would be no more
than 1G0% of salary and grants under the LTIP would be imited to
a maximum of 100% of salary (200% in exceptional circumstances)
In addition, on recrutment the Company may campensate for
amounts foregone from a previous employer (Using Listing Rule
8.4 2 f necessary) takng inte account the quantum foregone and,
as far as reasonably practicable, the extent to which performance
conditions apply, the form of award and the time left to vesting.

For an witernal appointment, any varable pay element awarded
respect of their prior role should be allowed 10 pay cut agcording

to s terms Any other angoing remuneration obligations existing

prior to appontment may continue, provided that they are put to

shareholders for approval at the earliest cpportunity.

The Cormmittee may agree that the Company will meet relocation,
fegal fees or incidental costs where appropriate.

Executive director service contracts and

loss of office payments

The current Executive Diractors have service contracts which have
a twelve rmonth notice period I respect of Andria Vidler's serace
contract (dated 30 October 2G13), at the Board's discratiorr, a
payment in lieu of any unexpired notice may be paid, comprising
an armount for base salary, pension and any accrued holiday
entitterment The amaount may be paid 10 one lurnp sur or in lwo
instalments and mitigabon will be appled to the second instalment.
I termination 1s within six months of a change of control, a payment
squal to 12 months' salary, pension and accrued holiday pay 1s
payable Where the Company terminates the contract in any other
manner, any damages shall be calculated n accordance with
common law principles ncluding those relating to mtigation of loss,
Notwithstanding the above, the Company 15 entitled to terminate
employment without compensation, damages or payment in ieu of
notice in specified circumstances (e g serious misconduct)

In respect of Swag Muker's service contract (dated 21 September
2018), at the Board's discretion, a payment in ileu of any unexpirad
notice may be paid, compnising an amount for base salary, pension
and any accrued hoiday entitierment. The amount may be paid n
one lump sum or i two instaiments and mitigation will be applied
to the second instalment. if termination is within six months of a
change of contral, a payment equal to 12 months’ salary, pension
and accrued holiday pay is payable. Where the Company terminates
the contract in any other manner, any damages shall be calculated
in accordance with common law principles including those relating
to mitigation of loss Notwithstanding the above, the Company is
entitled to terminate employment without compensation, damages
or payment in heu of natice in spectfied crcurnstances le.g. serious
misconduct),

An annual bonus will narmally be payable for the pericd of the
financial year sevved, although it will be pro-rated and paid at the
normal pay-out date. Any sharg-based entitternents granted to

an Executive Director under the Company's share plans will be
detenmined based on the reigvant plan ruies. However, In certain
prescribed crcumstances, such as death, disability, retrement or
other crcumstances at the discretion af the Committae, ‘good
leaver’ status may be appiied. For good leavers, awards will
narmally vest at the vesting date set out in the relevant award,
subject to the satisfaction of the reigvant performance conditions
at the time, and reduced pro-rata to reflect the proportion of the
performance peniod actually served. However, the Gommittee has
discretion to determine that awards vest at cessation of employment
or to dis-apply time pro-rating.

In addrion to the above, outplacement support may be provided
and legal fees or any other minor iIncidental costs which are
considered appropnate may be payable.
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Remuneration Policy for the Chairman and Non—Executive Directors

The Company Chairman's fee 1s determined by the Remuneration Committee (other than the Company Charman, if he sits on the
Committee). The fees for the Non-Executive Directors are reviewed by the Board, excluding the Non-Executive Directors. The table
summanses the key aspects of the remuneration policy for the Chairman and Non-Executive Dirsctors:

ELEMENT PURPOSE AND LINK OPERATION PERFORMANCE

TO STRATEGY TARGETS & RECOVERY
PROVISIONS

Non-Executive  Provides fees reflecting + Cash fee normally paid There 1s no prescribed Not applicable

Directors fees tirme commitments and on a monthly basis maximum annual fee or fee
responsibilities of each » Reimbursement of Increase
role, In ine with those .
provided by similarly sized naidental expenses The Committea and Board
where appropriate are guided by the general
companies )
+ Fees are reviewed increase In the Non-
perodically Executive market, but may

decide to award a lowar
or higher fee incraase to
recognise, for exampie,
an increase in the scale,
scope or responsibility of
the role or take account
of relevant market
mavements

Letters of appointment

The Charman and Non-Executive Directors have letters of appontment with the Company, which are for an initial three-year period with an
extension for a further three-year perod, and provide for a notice period of cne manth Al of the current Directors on the Board have chosen
to submit to annual re-election at each AGM

Curtant Isttet of Cusrant letter of appomtment expiy

Fust apuontad as a director anpasntment commrencement date date

Neil Johnson o 3 January 2018 3 January 2018 3 January 2021
Willam Eccleshare 1 July 2016 1 July 2016 1 July 2019
Robert Boyle 8 January 2010 8 January 2016 8 January 2019
Rebecca Miskin 13 January 2011 14 January 2017 14 January 2020

Approach to recruitment
For the appontment of a new Chairman or Non-Executive Director, the fee arrangement would be set in accordance with the approved
remuneration policy in force at that time.
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Impleentation of the Remuneration Pohicy for the yea: ending 31 December 2018

A summary of how the Directors’ Remuneration Policy will be appked dunng the year ending 31 December 2018 is set out below:

Base salary
The Executive Directors' current and proposed salanes are as follows:

From As at
1 Apat 2018 1 Aprd 2017 %
€y (€Y change
Andria Vidler £373,278 £365,959 2%
Swagatam Muker) £255,000 £250,000 2%

The salary increases that will be awarded to the Executive Directors from 1 Apnl 2018 are reflective of the general workforce increase.

Pension and benefits
Pension and benefit provision will be n line with the disclosed policy.

Annual bonus

The maximum bonus for Executve Directors will remain at 100% of salary. The majonty of bonus potential will be measured aganst financial-
based targets with a minonty based on strategic targets Any annual bonus greater than 75% of basic salary will be awarded in Centaur
Media Plc shares and deferred for three years

Long term incentives

It 18 intended that LTIP awards granted to Executive Directors in March 2018 under the Centaur Media Long Term Incentive Plan 2016
(2016 LTIP"), wil be consistent with awards granted in prior years The structure and the targets are as follows:

+ 50% of the 2018 LTIP award will be based on absolute earmings per share targsts 25% of this part of the award will vest for a threshoid
EPS of 4.15p increasing pro-rata to 100% vesting for a maximum EPS of 7.04p for the year ending 31 December 2020 The EPS target
range for these awards has been set in ineg with the Company's long-term business plan.

50% of the 2018 LTIP award will be based on relative totaj shareholder return (TSR') measured aganst the constituents of the FTSE
SmaltCap (excluding Investment trusts) 25% of this part of the award will vest for median TSR increasing pro-rata to 100% vesting for
upper quartile TSR over the three years ending 31 December 2020 In addition to the TSR performance condition, the Commttee will
need to be satisfied that the Company’s TSR performance reflects the underlying' financial perfarmance of the Gompany for this part of
an award to vest,

Fees for the chairman and Non-Executive Directors
The fees for the Company Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors from 1 Aprit 2018 are as follows

From As gt
t apal 2018 1 Apsd 2017 %
(&) tg) change
Neil Johnsory 125,000 125,000 0%
Willam Eccleshare 43,775 43,775 0%
Robert Bovie 43,775 43,775 0%
Rebecca Miskin 43,775

43,775 0%

1 From appaintmant
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Remuneration received by Directors for the Year (audited)
Directors’ remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016 was as follows:

Salary
and fees Benefits Bonus Pansion LTiF Total
(£) 3] (5} (£) {€) {£)
Executive
Andna Vidler 2017 365,959 18,135 135,000 39,432 0 558,626
2016 363,269 18,631 - 40,705 0 422,605
Swagatam Mukerjt
{appointed 1 October 2016) 2017 250,000 8,240 125,000 22,627 - 405,867
2016 62,500 1,670 - 1,616 - 65,788
Non-Executive
Ronaid Sandler
{resigned 3 January 2018) 207 125,000 - - - - 125,000
20186 125,000 - - - - 125,000
Wiliam Eccleshare
(appointed 1 July 2016) 2017 43,775 - - - - 43,775
2016 21,888 - - - - 21,888
Robert Boyle 2017 43,775 - - - - 43,775
2016 43,156 - - - - 43,456
Rebecca Miskin 2017 43,775 - - - - 43,775
2016 43,456 - - - - 43,456
Former Directors
Mark Kerswell
(resigred 29 July 2016) 2016 150,747 1,866 - 13,754 - 166,366
Chnistopher Satterthwaite
{resigned 27 July 2016} 2016 24,768 - - - - 24,768

Annual bonus for the year (audited)
The Remuneration Committee sat performance targets at the start of 2017 i respect of adjusted profit? befare tax targets, strategc and
personat objectives. The adjusted? profit before tax result was £6 6m, against a target of £6.4m.

The strategic targets were focused on the nead to reshape the portfolio kbased on two strategic transactions - the acquisition of
MarketMakers and the sale of Home interest MarketMakers is now fully integrated and performing well while the post-sale separation of
Haome Interest was completed smoothly whilst the Group continued to perform.

The personal olgjectives for both Executive Directors were based on improving the revenue mix and cash collection, making progress against
the operational improvement plan and reducing the company’s exposure to print revenue volatiity, Significant progress has been made on

all three of these. In addition, Andna Vidler had personal objectives to drive customer focus and ensure that content was enriched in order
to enable further monetisation Swagatam Mukerji's additional personal objectives were to ynprove cash management in the business,
achieving industry average KPls whilst reducing the costs of the finance overhead.

Andria Vidler received a bonus award of £135,000 which comprised £60,000 as a result of profit before tax perforrmance exceeding the
target, £50,000 in respect of delivering the strategic objectives noted abova successfully and £25,000 in respect of the Remuneration
Cornmittee’s assessment of her strong performance against her personal objectives.

Swagatam Muker) received a bonus award of £125,000 which comprised £60,000 as a result of profit before tax performance exceeding
the target, £50,000C in respect of delivaring the strategic objectives noted above and £15,000 in respect of his excellent performance aganst
his personai objectives.

Consistent with the approved Rermuneration £olicy, both annual bonus awards were less than 75% of salary, no bonus deferral will cperate
N respect of the 2017 bonus paid in 2018
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2015 LTIP vesting

With respect to the LTIP awards granted to Andria Vidler on 26 March 2015 which will lapse on 26 March 2018, vesting was based 50% on
EPS and 50% on relative TSR The three-year performance period for these awards ended on 31 December 2017 Further details relating to
the award are provided in the table below,

Qutcome
Moasure Waightimg Targets {to 31 Dacember ZOT7} Vestrng
EPS 50% 0% vesting below 6.5 pence Betow threshold EPS 0%
25% vesting at 8.6 pence
100% vestng at 10.5 pence
Straight-line vesting between these
points
Relalive TSR vs FTSE 50% Q% vesling betow migdian Betuw median 0%
SmafiCap ndex (excluding 25% vesting at median
investment trusts) 100% vesting at upper quartile
Straight-ine vesting between these
paints
Total LTIP vesting 0%
Further details of the vesting/lapse are as follows
Nurrbe. of Maiket pnice Value
Directot intzrests held Vesting shares vestitg  Date of vesting on vesting €600
“Andria Vidler CTagziza T o% 0 26 March 2018 nia .

Scheme interests awarded during the year
The Executive Directors received awards, structured as nil cost options, under the 2016 LTIP dunng 2017 These awards were in ine with
the policy table set cut in the Directors’ Remureration Policy and details of these awards are set out below

Numier of
shares under Face value of Pe formance
Ererutive Asard date ERTREL] Basis awards Performancs condihion period
Andria Vidler 24 April 2017 802,982 100% of £365.959 Vesting will be determined by 3 January 2017
base salary absolute earmings per share ('EPS’)  to 31 December
24 Aprl 2017 548,546 100% of £250,000 in the final year of the performance 2019

Swagatam Muken period and total sharshoider return

base sala
v (TSR over the performance period.
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The performance conditions for these awards are set out below While the anginal intention was to grant awards over 150% of salary, based
on EPS, TSR, EBITDA and cumulative free cash flow targets, the Remuneration Committee reverted to the normal 100% of salary grant level
based on EPS and TSR only following consuliation with the Company’s major nvestors®

“% of shares undyr

award subject to % of shares under award which
Parformance conditrar condition Meastre i perad Targrra witll vest
EPS 50% Year ended EPS of 6.7p 25%

31 December 2018
EPS of 10 7p or more 100%
Between 6.7p and 10.7p  Straght line pasis betweean
25% and 100%

TSR against the constituents of 50% q January 2017 to Median 25%

tha FTSE SmallCap (exciuding 31 Decernber 2019

investment trusts) at 1 January Upper quartle 100%

2017 Between median and Straight hne basis between
upper quartie 25% and 100%

The TSR element will only vest f there has been sustained improvement In the Gompany’s underlying' financial performance over the
perfermance penod

Details of the Executive Directors’ outstanding LTIP awards are detated in the remuneration table below
Andnia Vidler purchased 3,672 shares during the penod under the Share Incentive Plan. The Company matched these shares ona 1 for 2
basis in accordance with the Plan rules, resulting in 1,836 matching shares being awarded in the year

Swag Muken purchased 3,670 shares during the penod under the Share Incentive Plan, The Comipany matched these shares ona 1 for 2
basis In accordance with the Plan rules, resufting in 1,835 matching shares being awarded in the year.

Board changes and payments for loss of office (audited)
Thers were no Board changes during 2017 although following the year end, Nell Johnson replaced Ron Sandler as Chairman from 3
January 2018. No payments for loss of office were paid or are payable to Ron Sandler

Payments to past directors {audited)
Consistent with & long-standing arrangement, Graham Sherren, former Chief Executive and Charrman, was paid £3,000 dunng the year for
adviscry senvices performed

Directors’ shareholding and share interests (audited)

Share ownership plays a key role in the aignment of our executives with the interests of shareholders The Executive Directors are expected
to buld up and maintain a shareholding in the Company equal to 100% of salary. Where an executive does not meet this guideline, they are
required to retain at least 50% of the vested shares net of tax under the Company's LTIP until the guideline is met.

The tables below set out details of Executive Directors’ outstanding share awards under LTIP schemes (which will vest in future years,
subject to performance and continued service). Under each scheme the exercise price 1s £nil

At At Share price
31 December 31D seember Date of Exercise on date of
Executive 2016 Granted Lapsed 2047 award Performance period petiod grant
Andria Vidier 618,182 - Bi8182 C - BATAS T3 -31A12116 1313117 - 12/9/17 55 0p
493,129 - - 493120 26/3/15  1/1/16-3112/17 26/3/18 — 25/9/18 72.05p
674,194 - - 574 184 30/3/16  1/1/16 - 31/12/18 30/3/19 - 29/9/19 52.7p
- 802,982 - 5(12 a2 24/4/_‘1 7107 -31/12/118  24/4/20 ~ 23/10/20 45 8

7 1,7B5505 802982 518,182 1970,306

Swagatam

Mukerp 573,394 - - 573 94 410/16 1/1/16-31/12/18 4/10/19 - 3/4/20 43 6p
— 548,546 - BRI 24/417 1AAMT-3141218 _24/4f20 - 2310/20 45 8p

973 394 b8 546 - 1,127 940

As detaled above, the awards granted to Andria Vidler n 2015 will lapse at the end of March 2018 as a result of the threshold EP'S and TSR
targets not being met
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The table below sets out the number of shares held or potentially held by directors fincluding their connected persons where relevant).

Shareholding
guideline Interests in sharg

interests In ordinary shares achieved? schemes Total
31 December 31 December
2016 2017 e

Executive ’
Andria Vidier 153,930 150,438 Not yet 1,970,305 2,129,743
Swagatam Muken 30,000 35,505 Not yet 1,121,840 1,167,445
Non-Executive
Ronald Sandler’ 45,000 45.000 N/A - 45,000
Wiliam Eccleshare - - N/A - -
Robert Boyle 117,037 117,037 N/A - 117,037
Rebecca Miskin 14,800 14,800 N/A - 14,800
Christapher Satterthwaite 95,942 N/A N/A - N/A

1 Aonald Sandler stepped down from the Board as Chairman on 3 danuary 2018 and Neil Jehnson was appointed on the sama date

Performance graph

The graph below shows the total shareholder return TSR} of Centaur Media Ple compared to the performance of the FTSE SmallCap
(excluding Investment Trusts) over the last eight and a half years Trus comparator has been chosen on the basis that it is the group against
which performance for the purposes of share awards made under the Long-Terrn Incentive Plan 18 assessed. Owing to the change to the
financial year end, there was no financial year ended 30 Jure 2014 and, snstead TSR performance for the 18 months ended 31 Decembber
2014 ig shown

The graph shows the value, by 31 December 2017, of £100 nvested in Centaur Media Plc on 1 Juty 2009 compared with the value of £100
nvested In the FTSE SmallCap Index (excluding Investment Trusts). The other points plotted represent intervening financial pericd ends.

Total Sharehoicder Return Scurce Thompson Reuters Datastream
400

360

0 - - ST - T T T o7 T I f |
1 Juky 09 30 Junc 10 30 June 30 Jure 12 30 June 13 31 Dec 4 31 Dec 15 3 Dec b I Dec 7

- Conteur Mediz —e— FTSE SmaliCap fexduding investment Trusts)
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History of payouts for the CEO

The table below sets out the Chief Executive single figure total remuneration over the past eight and a half years.

Long-term

Total Annual bonus incentives

Period ending Chief Executive remuneration {% of max} (% of max)
31 Dacember 2017 Andrnia Vidler £568,526 37 0
31 December 2016 Andria Vidler £422,605 0 0
31 December 2015 Andria Vidler £416,607 2 N/A
31 December 2014 Andria Vidler £670,077 56 N/A
{18 month pencd) {from 14 November 2013} £514,920 0 0
30 June 2013 Geoff Wilmot £514,920 0 0
30 June 2012 Geoff Wilmot £363,3211 7 0
30 June 2011 Geoff Wilmot £568,673 58 0
30 June 2010 Geoff Wilmot £450,180 45 0

T Excludes £384,704 termination and contractual netice payment as detalled in 3@ June 2013 Report and Accounts

Change in the Chief Executive’s remuneration
The table below shows the movernent in satary, benefits and annual ponus for the Chief Executive between the current and previous
financial year compared to all employees of the Company.

Element of remuneration % change
Chief Executive 0%
Salary Employees 7%
S S - Chief Executive 3%
Benefts Employees 3%
T T ) - B ST Chief Executive ' ©100%
Annual bonus Employees 82%
Relative importance on the spend on pay
The follow:ng table sets out the percentage change in distributions to shareholders and employee remuneration costs
2047 2016 % Change
Empioyee remuneration costs £30 9m £29.7m 4%
Dividends paid and share repurchases £4 4m £4.5m (2)%
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External directorships
Swag Mukery ts a non-executive director of Hoppa Limsted

The Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee Is responsible for monitonng, reviewing and making recommendations o the Board at least annually on

the broad paticy for the remuneration of the Executive Directors, the Chairman and Company Secretary It alsa determines ther midvidual
remuneration packages, Including pension arrangements, bonuses and all ncentive schemes and the detenmination of targets for any
performance-related pay schemes operated by the Group. The Committee asks the Board, when approprate, to seek sharehoider approval
for any iong-term incentive arrangements, bonuses, incentive payments and any compensation payments and share option entittements. in
additon, the Committee manitors and recommends the level and structure of remuneration for senior management,

Ounng the year, the Committee consisted of the following Non-Executive Directors’ Rebecca Miskin (Charr), Robert Boyle, William
Eceleshare and Ron Sandler The Rermuneration Committee meets at least twice each year and mel formally four times in 2017, Minutes of
the Committee are circulated to the Board once they have been approved by the Committee

External advisors

Tha Remunaration Committee has access to Independent advice where it conmiders & appropnate. Dunng the year, the Remuneration
Committee sought advice relating to executive remuneration from FIT Remuneration Consuttants (FIT"), who were appainted by the
Remuneration Committee.

The Committee is satished that the advice recenved from FIT in refation to executive remuneration matters durnng the year under review was
objective and independant. FIT 15 a member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and abides by the Remuneration Consultants Group
Code of Conduct. The fees charged by FIT, on a tme spent basis, amounted to £19,813

Statement of shareholder voting

At last year's AGM, the Diectors’ Remuneration Policy and the Directors’ Remuneration Report received the following votes from
sharsholders

Nuitiber of votes  Number af votes against Number Number

for {and percentage {and percentage of votes of yotes

Resolution of votes cast) of votes casl) cast withheld
Approval of Directors’ Rernuneration Policy in 2016 107,205,929 (99 91%) 91,798 (0 09%) 107,297,727 12,250
Approval of Directors’ Remunaration Report in 2017 72,382,198 (96.01%) 3,003,488 (3 99%) 75,385,688 11,600

Approval
The Board of Directors has approved this Rernuneraton Committee Report, including both the Policy and Annual Remuneration Report.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

REBECCA MiSKIN
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

20 March 2018
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and
regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors have prepared the
Group financial statements N accordance with International Financial Repoerting Standards (' IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and
Company financial statements m accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union.
Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of
the state of affars of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group and Company for that pencd. In preparnng these
financial statements, the Directors are required to.

Selact suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

State whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Umicn have been followed for the Group financial statements and IFRSs as
adopted by the European Union have been followed for the Company financial statements, subbject to any material departures disclosed
and explained n the financial statements;

Make judgements and accountng estirnates that are reasonable and prudent; and

Prepare the financial staterents on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s mappropriate to presume that the Group and Company will
continue In business.

The Directors are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting reccrds that are suficient to show and explain the Group and Company’s
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial pesition of the Group and Company enable them to ensure that
the financial statements and the Directors® Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial
statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation.

*

s

The Directors are alse responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and the hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and ather wregulanties

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the Company's website, Legislation in the United Kingdoem governing tha
preparation and dissernination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other junsdictions.

The Directors consider that the Annual Report and Financiat Staterments, taken as a whole, 1s far, balanced and understandable and

pravides the information necessary for sharehoiders to assess the Group and Company's performance, business model and strategy.

Each of the Directors, whose names and funciions are listed in the Board of Directors on pages 28 and 29, confirms that, to the best of their

knowledge:

+ The Company financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, give a true
and fair view of the assets, liabities, financial position and loss of the Company,

» The Group financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the European Unicn, give a true and
fair view of the assets, labibtes, financial position and profit of the Group, and

The Directors’ Report includes a farr review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the Group and

Company, together with a description of the pnncipal nsks and uncertainties that it faces  n the case of each director in office at the date

the Directors” Report 1s approved.

+ Sp far as the Director 1s aware, there is no relevant audit information which the Group and Company's auditors are Unaware, and

* They have taken all steps that they ought to have taken as a director In order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit nformation
and to estabilish that the Group and Cormpany's auditors are aware of that information

By order of the Board -
%ﬁ( // Z-e’,/ -

HELEN SILVER
Company Secretary

20 March 2018
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Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

tn our opnion, Centaur Media Pic’s group financial statements and company financial statements (the “financial statements™):

« give a true and far view of the state of the group's and of the company’s affars as at 31 December 2017 and ¢f the group’s profit and the
group's and the company’s cash fiows for the year then ended,

= have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and, as regards the company's financial
statements, as applied 1n accordance with the provistons af the Companies Act 2006, and

+ have been prepared IN accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the group financial statements,
Artcle 4 of the IAS Regulation.

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report (the ‘Annual Report’), which compnse the consclidated and
company statements of financial position as at 31 Necember 2017, the consolidated staternent of comprehensive income, the consolidated
and company cash flow statements, and the consalidated and company statements of changes in equity for the year then ended; and the
notes to the financial statements, which include a descriphion of the significant accounting policies

Qur apinion 15 consistent with our reporting to the Audit Committee.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ["1SAs (UK)") and applicable law Our responsibilties
under 1ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsipilities for the audnt of the financial staterments section of cur report. We
behkeve that the audit evidence we have obtaned s sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for our cpiron.

Independence

We remained independent of the group n accordance with the athical reguirernents that are relevant to our audd of the financial staterments
In the UK, which includes the FRC's Ethical Standard, as applicable to ksted pubhc mterest entites, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordarice with these requiremients.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare that non-audit senaces prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to
the group or the company

Other than those disclosed in the Directors’ Report, we have prowded no non-audit services to the group or the company in the period from
1 January 2017 to 31 Decernber 2017.

Our audit approach

Overview
« Overall group matenality £0.3 million (2018: £0 4 milion), based on 5% of Adjusted profit before tax (as
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of comprehensive incorme).
» QOverall company matenality: £0.3 miluon 2016: £0.4 million), based on 1% of Total Assets (Capped ta the level
of group materiality)
Audrt Scone * The whole Group was audied by the UK audit team.

« Goodwill and intangtole assets impairment; and

Ky Al « Recoverabiiity of trade receivables;

Matters
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The scope of our audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstaternent in the financial statements. In
part:cular, we looked at where the directors made subjective judgerments, for example In respect of significant accounting estimates that
involved making assumptions and considenng future events that are inherently uncertain

We gained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework applicable to the group and company and the industry in which

1t operates, and considered the risk of acts by the group which were contrary to applicable laws and regulations, including fraud. We
designed audit procedures to respond to the risk, recognising that the nsk of not detecting a matenal misstatement due to fraud 1s higher
than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as fraud may Involve deliberate concealment by, for exampie, forgery or intentional
misrepresentations, or through collusion We focused on laws and regulations that could give nse to a material misstatement in the group
and company financial statements, including, but not limited to, Companies Act 2006, the Listing Rules and UK tax legislatron Our tests
ncluded, but were not imited to, agreement of the financial statement disclosures to underlying supporting documentation and encuiries of
management There are nherent hmitations in the audit procedures descnied above and the further removed non-compliance with laws and
regulations 1s from the events and transactons reflected in the financial statements, the less fikely we would become aware of it.

We did not identify any key audit matters relating to rregulanties, including fraud. As in all of our audits we also addressed the nisk of
management override of internal contrals, iIncluding testing journais and evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the directers that
represented a nsk of material misstatemant due to fraud.
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Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional fudgement, were of most significance in the audit of the financial
staternents of the current period and nclude the most signficant assessed risks of material misstatement {whether or not due to fraudy}
dentified by the auditors, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources n the audit;
and directing the efforts of the engagement team These matters, and any comments we make on the results of our procedures thereon,
were addrassad in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opsnion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. This is not a complete hist of all risks identified by our audit.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Goodwill and intangible assets impairment
assessment

Refer to page 38 (Audit Committee Report), page
B0 Key accounting assumptions, estimates and
judgements) and pages 92 and 93 (Note10l.

Determining i an impairment charge I1s required for
Goodwill and Intangible assets nvolves significant
Judgements about the future results and cash flows

of the business, including forecast growth in future
revenues and EBITDA margins, as well as determning
an appropriate discount factor and long term growth
rate. In hght of the Judgement involved and the
impairment charges recognised m previous years we
consider this 10 be a key audit matter.

Management used a Value in Uise model to compute
the preseni value of forecast future cash flows for
gach cash generating unit {{ CGU"} which was then
compared to the carrying vaiue of the net assets of
each CGU (including gocdwil and intangible assets) to
determine If there was an impairment

Managerment aggregates businesses mte CGlJs which
represent the level at which the cash flows of the
busmesses (and goodwill) are monrtored and therefare
this is the level al which management performs its
impairment assessment.

Market conditiens remain challenging and performance
has vaned compared 1o expectabions in certain parts of
the business Despite this, management's impairment
assesgsment has not highiighted that any GGU are
impaired.

We chacked and confirmed that the allocation of CGUs to segments was
consistent with internal management reporting. This has ¢changed from the
prior year due to the disposal of the Home Interest business which was
cansidered a separate GGU. MarketMakers an acquired business dunng the
year 1s inciuded as part of the marketing GGU

We reviewed the judgements appiied to future forecasts to ensure that these
ncluded appropriate consideration of histoncal vanances and uncertain market
conditons We also considered the appropnatenass of sensitiaty disclosures
prowided In the financial statements, to explan that iImpairment amounts would
not anse from reasonably possible changes to the model's key assumptions

We evaluated the Board approved cash flow forecasts for each CGU, and
understood the pracess by which these were calculated We also abtained
evidence of the Board's approval of this forecast to 2020,

~ the directors' key assurmptions including revenue and EBITDA growth rates
used in the cash flow farecasts by comparng them to historcal results and
industry forecasts,

- the discount rate applied, by assessing the cost of capital for the Group and
comparable organisations, and

- the long term growth rate applied, by comparing management’s rate to
forecast long term GDP growth In the UK and industry growth reports.

We found the key assumptions to be reasonable The long term growth rate
applied was within our expected range. The discount rate applied was shghtly
outside our expected range, however sensitviles showed that amanding this
assumption to bring it into our expected range did not cause an impairment in
any CGU

With regard 10 the above procedures, all CGUs showed headroom above the
carryng value of the net assets including goodwill

We evaluated the results and disclesure of the sensitivity analyses performed
by management {as set out in Note10). We determined the resuits of these
sensitivities are appropriately disclosed and the sensitivities present a far
veflection of reasonably possible changes to assumptions used in the Value in
Use model. For all CGUs, the sensitivites showed remaining headroom in ail
scenanos. This included Goodwili atiributable to the MarketMakers acquisition
which was included m the impayment testing in respect of the marketing CGU.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Recoverability of trade receivables

Refer to page 38 (Audit Committee Report), page The determmnation of whetber trade racenvables are colfectable invoives
81 (Key accounting assumptions, estimates and management sjudgement Accordingly, with regard to the amount of aged trade
Judgements) and page 109 (Note 29) receivables at the year end, we considered whether management’s judgements

were appropnate and whether the estimated provision reflacted the latest

As set out in the Audit Committee Report on page avatlable evidence

38, at the year end £1.3 millon of trade receivables

are aged over 90 days {£1 3 million excluding We also considered the apphcation of management's policy for providing
MarketMakers) Signrficant judgement 1s required in against aged trade recewakles, mcluding the ordinary provisioning policy
determimng the amount to be provided against these Management recognise provisions for impairment of trade recevables
balances. As a result of the significant judgement based on specific known facts or circumstances surrounding the invoice or
required and the additional provision established in customers’ abilties to pay. For example, certain trade receivables may be

2016 we consider this a key audit matter. Throughout being pursued through legal avenues and these are mainly provided against.
2017 management has actively focussed on pursuing Customers on direct debit payment plans or where deferred income exists are
these amounits and the balance has significantly also factors taken into account In determining it a provision for mpairment 1s
reduced from that held at 31 Decernber 2016, required

At 31 December 2017, trade recevabies over 90 days
past due date was £1 3 milhon (2016. £4.1 miilign}
and the associated provision for impairment of jrade
receivables was £1 5 million (20186. £2.5 milon), For the year end balance, we:

Wae were able to confirm that the policy for providing against trade recevables
had been implermnented consistently year on year,

= Tested the ageng of trade receivables and concluded that this was
accurately determined,

+ Tested the accuracy of management’s computations of provisions reflecting
the history of bad debt wete-offs. This Included checking that amounts
excluded from this computation were appropriate, such as amounts invoiced
i advance of exhibthons twhers there is an associated kability held within
deferred income), and

« (Considered the levels of post year end cash received and allocated aganst
aged trade recevables at the year end.

We also considered the amount of the prowision included in the disposal of the
Home Interest business and found this to be reasonable.

We considered any residual exposure against the circumstances giving nse to
the ageing, the ongoing actions taken and In place to coflect the aged debt

{and what has been achieved to date), together with the history of write-offs

in the business. As noted, detemmining an approprate level of provision at the
year end 1s a jJudgemental area and there could therefore be a range of possible
outcomes We concluded that the evidence obtaned supports the levet of
provision at the year end of £1.5 million and that it 1s within our acceptable range

We deterrmined that there were no key audit matters applicable to the company to communicate in our report, The company does not trade
therefore the key audit ratters above are not applicable.
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How we tailored the audit scope

We tallored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the financial statements as a
whole, taking into account the structure of the group and the company, the accounting processes and contrals, and the industry in which
they operate.

The group maintains all of its books and records of its operations in the UK. Therefore the group audit team performed audit procedures on
the consohdated results and balances. A detailed scoping exercise to determing which entiies should be included for testing was therefore
not perfarmed.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our apphcation of materiality We set certain quantrtative thresholds for rmatenalty. These, together
with qualtative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit and the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures on
the indwvidual financial statement fine iterns and disclosures and In evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate,
on the financial statements as a whole

Based on our professional udgement, we determined matenality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Group financial statements Company financial statements

Overall materiality £0.3 milion (2016. £0.4 mition) £0 3 miflion (2016, £0 4 millon).
How we determined it 5% of Adjusted profit before tax (as presented 1% of Total Assets (capped to the level of group
on the face of the consolidated statement of materiality).

comprehensive income).

Rationale for benchmark applied We believe that Adjusted profit before tax

We believe that Totat Assets 1s the pnmary

provides us with a consistent period on period measure used by the shareholders In assessing
pasis for deterrmining matenality and eliminates the position of the non-trading holding Company,
the dispropartionate effect of a small number of and Is an accepted auditing benchmark.

items on the profit before tax. Additionalty this 1s
how management moritor the performance of
the group

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to thern misstatements identified dunng our audit above £15,000 (Group audit)
(2016. £21,500) and £15,000 (Company audit} {2016 £21,500) as well as misstatements balow those amounts that, in our view, warranted
reporting for qualitative reasons.

Going concern
In accordance with 1SAs (UK) we report as follows:

Reporting obligation Qutcome

We are required to report if we have anything matenal to add or We have nothing matenal to add or to draw attention to However,
draw attention to in respect of the directors’ statement in the because not all future events or condiions can be predicted, this
financiat statements about whether the directors considered it staternent is not a guarantee as to the group's and company's ability
appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in to continue as a going concern.

preparing the financial statements and the directors’ identification
of any material uncertanties to the group's and the company's
ability to continue as a going concern over a period of at

least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial
statements.

We are required to report if the directors’ statement relating We have nothing to report.
to Going Concern in accordance with Listng Rule 9 8.6R(3) is
materrally inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit

60



‘
Vevvs centaurmedia.com FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Reporting on other information

The other informabon compnses all of the nformation in the Annual Repert other than the financial statements and our auditors’ report
thereon The diractors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other Information
and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, excapt to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responstbility is to read the other information and, i doing so, consider whether
the other information is matenally inconsistent with the financial staterments or our knowiledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated If we identify an apparent material Inconsistency or rmatenal misstatement, we are required to perform procedures

to conclude whether there 1s a matenal misstaterment of the financial statements or a materal mastatement of the other information, if,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a matenal misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities With respect to the Strategic Report, Directors’ Repart and Corporate
Governance Statement, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

Based on the responaibibies described above and our work undertaken in the coursa of the audit, the Companies Act 2006{CACE), 1ISAs
(UK and the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) require us also to report certain opnions and matters as descnbed below
(required by ISAs (UK} unless otherwise stated).

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In cur opmion, kased on the work undertaken In the course of the audrt, the information given in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report
for the year ended 31 December 2017 1s consistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applcable legal
requiraments {CAQE}

In light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and therr environment obtained in the coursa of the audtt, we did not
identify any matenal misstatements n the Strategic Report and Direciors' Report. {CAQS)

Corporate Governance Statement

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Corporate Governance

Statement {pages 33 to 36} about internal controls and nsk management systems in relation to financial reporting processes and about
share capital structures in compliance with ruies 7.2 5 and 7.2 6 of the Disclosure Guidancs and Transparency Rules sourcebook of the FCA
(“DTR" 15 congistent with the financial statements and has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements. (CAOB)

In ight of the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and therr environment obtaned in the course of the audt, we did not
identify any matenal rnisstatements in this inforrmation. {CAOB)

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Directors’™ Statement on Comporate
Governance {pages 33 to 36) with respect to the company’s corporate governance cede and practices and about its administrative,
managemeant and supervisory bodies and therr committees complies withrules 7 2 2,7 2 3and 7.2 7 of the DTR  (GAOB)

We have nothing to report ansing from our responsibility to report If a corporate governance statement has hot been prepared by the
company (CAQE)
The directors’ assessment of the prospects of the group and of the principal risks that

would threaten the solvency or liquidity of the group
We have nothing material to add or draw attention to regarding:

The directors’ confirmation on page 22 of the Annual Report that they have carried out a robust assessment of the pnncipal risks facing
the group, ncluding those that would threaten its business model, future performance, solvency or quidity

The disclosures in the Annual Report that describe those risks and explain how they are being managed or mitigated

The directors’ explanation on page 25 of the Annual Report as to how they have assessed the prospects of the group, over what penod
they have done so and why they consider that period to be appropnate, and ther statement as to whether they have a reasonable
expectation that the group will be able to continue i operation and meet its liabiiies as they fall due over the penca of their assessment,
inciuding any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary quakfications or assumptions
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We have nothing to report having performed a review of the directors’ statement that they have carried out a robust assessrnent of the
principal risks facing the group and statement in retation 1o the longer-term viability of the group. Our review was substantially less in scope
than an audit and only consisted of making inquines and considenng the directors” process supporting ther staterments; chaecking that the
staterments are in alignment with the relevant provisions of the UK Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”), and cansidering whether the
statements arg consistent with the knowledge and understanding of the group and company and their environment obtained in the course
of the audn. {Listing Rules)

Other Code Provisions
Wi have nothing to report in respect of our responsibiity to report when:

s The staternant given by the diregtors, on paye 55, that they consider e Annugl Repor (laken as o whiole (© De far, balatoed
and understandable, and provides the information necessary for the members to assess the group’s and company’s position and
performance, business moded and strategy s materially nconsistent with our knowledge of the group and company obtained in the
course of performing our audit.

« The section of the Annual Report on page 37 describing the work of the Audit Commitiee does not appropriately address matters
commuricated by us to the Audit Committee

s The directors’ statement relating to the company’s compliance with the Code does not properly disclose a departure from a relevant
provision of the Code specihed, under the Listing Hules, 1or review Dy the auditors

Directors’ Remuneration

In our opimon, the part of the Diractors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Comparnes
Act 2006 (CAOB)

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit

Respansibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibifities Statement set out on page 55, the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true and far view. The directors
are dlso resporsibie for such internat controf as they determine 1s necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from matenal misstaternent, whether due to fraud or eror.

In preparing the financial statemenrts, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the cormpany's ability 1o continue as a going
concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern kasis of accounting unless the directors
erther ntend to fiquidate the group or the company or to cease operations, or have no reahstic alternative but to do so.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstaterment,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditars’ report that includes our opinion. Reasanable assurance 1s a high level of assurance,
but s rot a guarantee that an audit conducted n accordance with 1SAs (UK) will aiways detect a materiat misstaternent when it exists.
Misstaternents can arise from fraud or error and are considersd matenal if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements Is located on the FRC's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities  This descnption forms part of our auditors’ report

Use of this report

This report, Including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company's members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by cur
prior congent in witing
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Other required reporting

Companies Act 2006 exception reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you ff, in our ocpirion*

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

« adequate accounting records have not been kept by the group and company, or returns adeguate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

» certan disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made, or

+ the company financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are not in agreement with the
accounting records and returns

We have no excephons tc report ansing from this responsibility

Appointment

We were appointed by the directors to audn the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2004 and subsequent financial penods.
This is the year Centaur Media Plc became a public ccmpany The penicd of total uninterrupted engagement 1s 14 years, covenng the years
ended 3C June 2004 to 31 December 2017 A competitive tender praocess for the audit was undertaken for the year ended 31 December
2017 duning 2016.

JULIAN JENKIMNS

{Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PrcewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audrtors
Landon

20 March 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

for tha year ended 31 December 2017

s B, o5 Roctated®

Adiusted Adjusung Statutary Adjusted Adjusting Statutory
Results? ltems? Resuits Resuylts® Items? Resuits
2017 2017 2017 2016 2016 2016
Note £m £m £m £m £m £m
Continuing operations
Revenue 2 65 4 - 65.4 59.7 - 59.7
Net operating expenses 3 (61 3) (4.4) (6%5.7) {55.5) (12 6) 68.1)
Operating profit / loss) 41 {4.3) (0 3) 4.2 (12 6) (8.4)
Finance costs 2 (0 4) - {0.4) {0.5) - (0.5}
Profit / {loss) before tax 37 (4.4) {07 3.7 (12.6) (89
Taxaton : {0.9] o5 (0.4) (0.8 G.7 {C.1)
Profit / (loss) for the period from continuing
operations 4 2.8 (3.9) 1N 2.9 (11.9) 80
Discontinued operations
Profit for the period from discontinued
operations ERE 21 20.9 230 3.2 (0.3) 3.6
Profit / (loss) for the period attributable to
owners of the parent after tax a9 17.0 FAR-] 68 (12.2) 5.4
Total comprehensive income / (loss)
attributable to owners of the parent 4.9 17.0 219 68 (12 2) B4
Earnings [/ (loss) per share attributable te
owners of the parent 9
Basic from continuing operations 1%n 27 (0.8)p 2.0p 8.3 6.3p
Basic from discontinued aperations 1.5p 14.5p 16.0p 27p (0.2p 25p
Basic from profit / (loss) for the year 34p 1 8p 15.2p 4.7p 8.5 (3.8)p
Fully diluted from continuing operations 18p (2.6)n (O Bp 19p 8.2 (6.3)p
Fully diluted from discontinued operations 1.4p 13.7p 15.1p 2 6p 0.1)p 2.5p
Fully diluted from profit / (loss) for the year 3.2p 1ip 14.3p 4.5p 8.3p (38p
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

fo. the year ended 31 Decamba 2017

Attributable to owners of the Company

Reserve
for shares
Share Own Share to be Deferred Retained Total
capital shares premsum issued shares earnings equity
£m £m £m £m £€m £m £m
At1January2016 150 ®s% o7 09 01 662 764
Loss for the period and total comprehensive loss - - - - - (54} 54
Transactions wath owners:
Dradends (note 27) - - - - - (4.3 43
Acquisition of treasury shares (note 25) - 0.2) - - - - 0.2)
Acquisition of business and assets (note 14) 01 - 0.4 - - - 05
Exercise of share awards - 03 - 0.2} - ©.1) -
Far value of employes services (note 26) - - - .1 - - 0.1
As at 31 December 2016 161 {6.4) 14 08 01 55 4 671
Profit for the perncd and total comprehensive Income - - - - - 21.9 21.9
Transactions with owners:
Ddends (note 27) - - - - - 4.3) (4.3)
Acqusition of treasury shares [note 25) - {01 - - - - on
Acquisttion of business and assets (note 14) - - - 1) - - 1)
Fair value of empioyee services (note 26) - - - 04 - - 04
As at 31 December 2017 151 (6 5) 11 11 o1 740 B4.9

The notes on pages 71 tc 113 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 December 2017

Attributabie to owners of the Company

Reserve
for shates
Share Own Share to be Deferred Retained Total
capital shares premium issued shares earnings equity
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
At1January20t¢ 0 &9 07 09 01 @51 1058
Loss for the penod and total comprehensive loss - - - - - (22) 29
Transacticns with owners:
Dividends [note 27) - ~ - - - 4.3) 43
Acquistiion of treasury shares (note 25) - 0.2) - - - - (0.2)
Acquisihon of businass and assets [note 14) 0.1 ~ 04 - - - 05
Exercise of share awards - ~ - (0.2) - 0.2 -
Fair value of empioyee services (note 26) - - - 0.1 - - G1
As at 31 December 2016 151 (6.2} 1 os 01 883 8997
Loss for the pericd and total comprehensive loss - - - - - {2.9) 29)
Transactions with owners®
Diwvdends (note 27) - - - - - 4.3 @3)
Acquisition of treasury shares (note 25} - 0.1) -~ - - - 0.1}
Acquistion of business and assets {note 14) - - -~ 0.1} - - ocn
Exercise of share awards - - - - - 0.2) 0.2
Fair vaiue of employee services (nofe 26) - - ~ 0.4 - - o4
As at 31 December 2017 151 (6.3} 11 11 01 81.4 az 5

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption avallable under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has not presented Its
own staternent of comprehensive ncome In these financral statements. The Company’s loss for the year amounted to £2 9m (2016 loss of
£2.2m)

The notes on pages 71 to 113 are an integral part of these consoldated financial statements
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 Decembar 2017

Registered number 04948078

3 December 31 December
207 2016
Note em £m
Non-current assets 7 I S i -
Investments 134 0 134.0
1340 1340
Current assets
Trade and other recenvables = 20 21
Cash and cash equivaients Ha - -
3.0 21
Total assets 1370 136 1
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 27 (44 5) {19.0)
(44.5) {19.0)
Net current liabilities (41.5) (16 9)
Non-current habilities
Borrowings 2 - (17 4)
- 17 4)
Net assets 225 987
Capital and reserves attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital . 151 1641
Own shares (6.3) 62
Share premium 11 11
Other reserves 1.2 0.9
Retained earnings 8.4 g8 8
Total equity 92.8 ) 99.7_

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption available under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 and has not presented Its
own staternent of comprehensive Income tn these financial statements The movement in retained earnings 1s the Company's loss for the
year of £2.9m (2016. £2 2m) and dmdends of £4 3m (2016, £4 3m)

The financial statements on pages 71 to 113 were approved by the Board of Directors on 20 March 2018 and were signed on its behalf by

Swag Mukerjs
Chief Financial Officer ; 1] /\
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

as at 31 December 2017

Registered number 04948078

Non-current assets

Goodwll

Other intangible assets
Property, piant and equipment
Deferred tax assets

Current assets
Inventones
Trade and cther recevables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Current liabifities

Trade and other payables
Deferred income

Current tax lablities

Provisions

Net current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Bomrowings
Provisions

Deferred tax habiities

Net assets

Capital and reserves attributable to owners of the parent
Share capital

Own sharas

Share premium

Other reserves

Retained aarnings

Total equity

The financial statements on pages 71 10 113 were approved by the Board of Directors on 20 March 2018 and were signed on its behalf by,

Swag Mukeriji
Chief Financial Officer

O,

31 December
2017
Note £m

L 75.6
1 18.6
te 17
e o7

96 &

tr 14
1% e

124
137

Py (10.9}
(14.6)
2% -
23 (1.8)
(273)
{10 2)

31 December

26
£m

721
167
20
0.6
91.4

2.5
157
3.4
21.6

113.0

Q.7)
(16.9)
©7)
©4)
(27.7)
6

(17 4)

0.8
(182

67.1

15.1
6.4
"
09

56.4

B7.1
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
Note €m £m
‘Cash flows from operating activikes N o
Cash generated from operations 78 138 15.3
Tax paid (1.8) (1.3
Net cash generated from operating activities 12.2 140
Gash flows from investing activitias
Cther acquisitions - settlement of deferred consideration A (1.5) -
Disposal of subsidiary ' 27.3 -
Purchase of property, plant and equioment L (0.2} (0.3)
Purchase of Intangible assets i (26) (2.3)
Acquisttion of business and assets = - (15
Acguisition of subsidiary | {12.9 -
Net cash flows from / (used in) investing activities 107 41)
GCash flows from financing activities
Payment for shares bought back ) (o)} 0.2)
nterest pad (03 0.5)
Didends paid to Company’s Sharehclders 2 (4.3) (4.3)
Proceeds from borrowings Pl 5.5 1.5
Repayment of borrowings = (23.0) 5.0)
Repayment of loan notes 7 - (1.1}
Net cash flows used in financing activities (22.2) 9.6)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents o7 0.3
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 3.4 3.1
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year e a4 34

The notes on pages 71 to 113 are an integral part of these consolidated financial staterments
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COMPANY CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 December 2017

207 2016
Note em £m

‘Cash flows from operating activiies T
Cash generated from operating actwities o8 22.2 8.5

Cash flows from financing activities

Interest pad 03 {0 5)
Payment for shares bought back o on 0.2}
Divider 1s paid 10 Cuthpaniy’s Sharehuoldets . 4.3 (4.3
Proceeds from borrowings = 5.5 15
Repayment of borrowings 23 (23.0} .0
Net cash flows used in financing activities {222) (8 5)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ~ -
Cash and cash equivalents at beginrng of the tnancial year - -
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year T -

The notes on pages 71 to 113 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principai accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these consohdated and Gompany financial statements are set out below, to
the extent they have not already been disclosed in the other notes below These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods
prasented, unless otherwise stated The financial statements are for the Group consisting of Centaur Media Ple and its subsidianes. Gentaur
Media Plc 1s a public company imited by shares and incerporated in England and Wales.,

{a) Basis of preparation

The consaclidated and Company financial statements have been prepared i accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
{'IFRS") as adopted by the European Union and IFRS interpretations Committee ('IFRS IC’) and with those parts of the Companies Act 2006
applicable to companies reporting under IFRS The financial staternents have been prepared on the historicat cost basis

Gonng concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis The Directors have carefully assessed the Group's ability to contnue
trading, and have a reasonable expectation that the Group and Cormpany have adequate resources to continue in aperational existence for
at least 12 maonths from the date of approval of these financial statements and for the foresesable future.

Net cash (see reconciliation in note 28) at 31 December 2017 amounted to £4.1m {2016 net debt £14 1m). In June 2015, the Group agreed
a four year £25m multi-currency revolving credit facility with the Royal Bank of Scotiand and Lloyds, which runs to 31 August 2018, Cash
conversion’ during 2017 has remained strong and following the disposal of the Home Interest segment the Group 1s currently in a strong
cash positive positicn

The Group has net current liabiliies which mainly anse from ts normai high levels of deferred income relating to events in the future rather
than an inability to service its labilibes An assessment of cash flows for the next three financial years, which has taken into account the
factors described above, has Indicated an expected level of cash generation which woutd be sufficent to allow the Group to fully satisfy its
working capital requirements and the guarantee given in respect of its UK subsidianes, to cover all principal areas of expenditure, including
maintenance, capital expenditura and taxation dunng ths penod, and to mest the financial covenants under the revolving credit facility.

The preparahon of financial statements in accordance with IFRS requires the use of eslimatas and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial staterments and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the year
Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of the amount, events or actions, the actual results may ultimately
difer from those estimates.

Having assessed the principal risks and the other matters discussed in connection with the viability statement, the Directors consider it
appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting N preparing its consolidated financial statements

New and amended standards adopted by the Group

Nene of the new standards and amendments to standards (incluging the Annual Improvernents (2015) to existing standards) that are
mandatory for the first ime for the financial year commencing 1 January 2017 affected any of the amounts recognised in the current period
or any prior period, and 1s not likely to affect future percds.

News standards and interpretations not yet adopled
No new standards, amendments or Interpretations effective for the first time for the financial year beginning on or after 1 January 2017 have
had a matenal impact on the Group or the Company.

The following new accaunting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 31 Decemicer 2017 repotting
periods and have not been early adopted by the Group:

IFRS 9 ‘Financral Instruments’
IFRS 9 addresses the classificaton, measurement and derecognitton of financial assets and financial liabilbies, introduces new rules for
hedge accounting and a new impairment model for financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Impact
The Group has reviewed its financial assets and habilities and 1s only expecting trade recevables to be impacted once the new standard 1s
adopted on 1 January 2018

The new Impairment model for trade recewvables requires the recogniion of impairment provisions based on expected credit losses ([ECL)
rather than only incurred credit losses as is the case undar tAS 39. The significart majarity of the Group's det mstruments relate to trade
receivables and as such have beean tested using the new iImpairment model,

Based on the assessments undertaken to date, the Group does not expect a material change to the loss allowance for trade receivables.
Ihe (Group has also reviewed all other tinancal assets and lhabilties, including cash and cash eguivalents, and no material impact 1s
expected.

Date of adeption ny the Group
Must be applied for financial years commencing on or after 1 January 2018. The Group will apply the new rules retrospectivety from
1 January 2018, with the practical expedients permitied under the standard, Comparatives for 2017 will not be restated

IFRS 15 'Revenue fiom contracts with customers’

IFRS 15 sets out the requirements for recognising revenue from contracts with custemers, replacing ail existing revenue standards The
standard requires entities to apportion revenue earned from comtracts to mdwidual performance obligations, on a stand-alone seling price
kbasis, based on a five-step model framework,

impact

The Group has perforrmed an wmpact assessment an the FY17 revenue The Group’s reported revenue is generated through a high
volume of low value contracts and therefore a scoping exercise has been performed to identrfy revenue streams with hke commerciai
terms and performance and delivery piatterns. Revenue has been reviewed at this level o determine the appropnate revenue recagmition
under {FRS 15,

The results of the impact assessment indicate that there will not be a matenal change to the timing or quantum of revenue recognition at a

Group level or at an operating segment level The impact assessment also indicates that the Group rarely sells products relating to different
operating segments to the same customer under the same cortract Consequently, a change 1o revenue recognised In any given operating
segment is aimost wholly the effect of tming differences under IFRS 15.

Date of adoptian by the Gloup
For the Group, transition to IFRS 15 wili take effect from 1 January 2018 The half year results for FY18 will be IFRS 15 compliant, with the
first Annual Report published In accordance with IFRS 15 being that for the year ended 31 December 2018,

As outlined above, given the nsignificant change to FY17 reported revenues, the Group does not plan to adopt a fully retrospective transition
approach and so comparatives for the year ended 31 Decernber 2017 will not be restatad.

Other

There are no ather standards that are not yet effective and that wouid be expected to have a matenal impact on the entity in the cumrent or
future reporting periocds and on foreseeable future transactions

Discontinued operations
In prepanng the consolidated financial staternents, the results of the Home interest segment have been reclassified as a discontinued
operation in both years following disposal of the business on 1 August 2017,

(b) Presentation of non-statutory measures

In addtion 1o statutory measures, the Directors use varnous non-GAAP key financial measures to evaluate the Group’s performance, and
consider that presentation of these measures provides Shareholders with an additional understanding of the core trading performance of the
Group The measures used are explained and reconciled to their equivalent statutory headings below
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Adjusted opetating profil and adjusted earnings per share

The Directors believe that adjusted results and adjusted earnings per share, spit between continuing and discontinued cperations, provide
additional useful information on the core operational performance of the Group to Shareholders, and review the resuits of the Group eon an
adjusted basis internally. The term *adjusted’ is not a defined term under IFRS and may not therefore be comparable with similarly titled profit
measurements reported by other companies. It is not intended to be a substitute for, or superior to, IFRS measurements of profit.

Adjustrments are made in respect oft

* Exceptional items — the Group considers items of income and expense as exceptional and excludes them from the adjusted results
where the nature of the item, or its magnitude, 1s matenial ang likely to be non-recurnng N nature so as to assist the user of the financial
statements to better understand the resuits of the core operations of the Group Details of exceptional items are shown in note 4,

Amortisation of acquired ntangible assets — the amortisation charge for those intangible assets recognised on business combinations is
excluded from the adjusted results of the Group since they are non-cash charges ansing from nvestment activites. As such, they are not
considered reflective of the core trading performance of the Group. Details of amortisation of intangible assets are shown in note 11.

* Share-based payments - share-based payment expenses or credits are excluded from the adjusted results of the Group as the Directors
balieve that the volatility of these charges can distort the user's view of the core trading performance of the Group Details of share-based
payments are shown In note 26

« Impairment of goodwill - the Cirectors believe that non-cash impairment charges in relation to goodwilt are generally volatile and matenal,
and therefore exclude any such charges from the adjusted results of the Group. Previous imparrment charges were presented as
exceptional items There has not Seen an imparment charge in the current year. Detals of the goodwill imparrment analysis are shown in
note 10

* Earn-out consideration — deferred or contingent consideration in relation to business combinations recognised in the statement of
comprehensive Income (as a result of being classified as remuneration under IFRS 3) 1s not considered reflective of the core trading of the
Group since it results from investment activities and 1s volatile iIn nature As such, statement of comprehensive Income items relating to
business combinations ara removed from adjusted results. See notes 14 and 23

Acqguisition related costs — expenses in relation to business combinattons recognised in the statement of comprehensive INcome 15 nNot
considered reflective of the core trading of the Group since it results from investment activities and 1s volatile n nature. As such, statement
of comprehensive Income Items refating to business combinaticns are removed from adjusted results See note 14

Profit or loss on disposal of assets or subsidianiss — profit or loss on disposals of businesses are excluded from adjusted results of

the Group as they are unrelated to core trading, and can distort a user's understanding of the performance of the Group due to their

infrequent and volatile nature See note 4

« Other separately reported items — certain other items are axcluded from adjusted results where they are considered large or unusual
enough 1o distort the comparability of core trading results year-on-year Detalls of these separately disclosed iterns are shown in note 4

The tax related to adjusting itemns 15 the tax effect of the items above that are aflowable deduchons for tax purposss {primarnfy exceptional

items). calculated using the standard rate of corporation tax See note 7 for a reconctiation between reported and adjusted tax charges.

Further details of adjusting items are included in note 4. A reconciiation between adjusted and statutory earnings per share measures is
shown in note 9
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

Loss before tax reconciles to adjusted operating profit as follows:

2047 2016
Note m £m
Profit/floss) before tax T wen g9
Adjusting tems
Impairment of goodwill 10 - 7.2
Amortisation of acquirod intangiblo assots 11 2.5 2.2
Share-based paymenis 26 Q.5 1)
Earn-out consideration 14 0.6 G.6
Additional mpairment of trade receivables 4 ~ 1.5
Acquisition related costs 14 Q.6 -
Excephonal operating costs 4 a.2 12
Adjusted profit before tax 37 37
Adjusted finance costa 6 04 05
Adjusted operating profit 41 4.2
Cash impact of adjusting items {0.9) 13
Iax impact of adjusting items ) ) 05 0.7

Adusted operating cash flow

Adjusted operating cash flow 15 not a measure defined by IFRS It 1s defined as cash flow from operations excluding the impact of adjusting
tems, which are defined above, and mcluding capital expenditure The Divectors use this measure to assess the performance of the Group
as it excludes volatile fems not related to the core trading of the Group, and Includes the Group's management of capital expenditure.
Statutory cash flow from cperations reconciles to adjusted operating cash as below:

2047 2016

£m £€m

‘Reported casn flow from operatons 7 " 14a 153
Cash impact of adjusting tems 0.9 1.3

Working capital impact of adjusting tems [0.6) C.1)

Adjusted operating cash fow 141 16.5

Capital expenditure (2.8) {26)

Post capital expenditure cash flow . 1.3 139
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Underhyung revenue giowth
The Drrectors review underlying revenue growth in order to allow a like for like companson of revenues between penods. Underlying
revenues exclude the impact of event iming differences, as well as the revenue contribubtion ansing from acquired or disposed businesses

Statutory revenus growth reconciles t¢ underlying revenue growth as follows:

Financial
Marketing Professional Services Total
£m £m £m £m
Reported revenue 2016 28 202 97 . 507
Undertying revenue 2016 29.8 20.2 8.7 59.7
Reported revenue 2017 363 202 8.9 65.4
Biennia! events — AMS - 0.2) - {0.2)
Acquired business - Qystercatchers (3.3} - - {3.3)
Acquired business - MarketMakers (B.1} - - 6.1)
Underlying revenue 2017 26.9 200 8.9 55.8
Reported revenue growth 22% % 8)% 10%
Underlying revenue growth {101% (1% (8)% B)%

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA 1s not a measure defined by IFRS It 1s defined as adjusted operating profit before depreciation and amortisation of
intangible assets other than those acquired through a business combination It is used by the Directors as a measure to review performance
of the Group, and forms the basis of some of the Group’s financial covenants under its revolving credt facility Adjusted EBITDA 1s calculated
as follows:

2017 2016

£m £m

Adusted operating profit (as above) e a1 49
Depreciation (note 12) 07 06
Amorhisation of computer software (note 11) 29 27
Adjusted EBITDA 7 82

Net debt

Net debt 1s not a measure defined by IFRS Net debt is calculated as cash less overdrafts and bank borrowings under the Group's financing
arrangements. The Directors consider the measure useful as it gives greater clanty over the Group's hguidity as a whole. A reconciliation
between net debt and statutory measures 1s shown in note 28

{c) Principles of consolidation
The consalidated financial statements incorporate the financlal statements of Centaur Media Plc and all of ts subsidiaries after elimination of

Intercompany transactions,

(1) Subsidiarnes

Subsidiaries are all entties controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when the Group 1s exposed to, or has nghts to, vanable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns threugh its power to direct the activities of the entity
Subsidianes are fully consclidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group until the date that the Group ceases to control
them. In the statement of comprehensive Income the results of subsicianes for which control has ceased are presented separately as
discontinued operations in the year N which they have been dispesed of and in the comparative year.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are eliminated The accounting
policies of subsickanes are consistent with the policies adogted by the Group
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

(¢) Principles of consolidation {continued)

{v) Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting 1s used to account for all business combinations. The consideration transferred for acquisition of

a subsidiary 1s measured at the aggregate of far vakles of assats transterred, habilties ncurred or assumed 1o the former owners of the
acquired business and equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the subsidiary. Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred and included in the consolidated staterment of comprehensive Income

Any deferred consideration to be transferred by the acquirer 1s recognised at farr value If the condiions attached to the consideration
ncheate that the payment forms part of the acausiion, a provision is made for the future lability at the acquisition date Where the deferred
consideration i1s contingent on the continued employment of the vendors, such arrangements are recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive ncome on a straight-ine basis over the penod over which the contingent consideration 1s earned with an assocated
provision on the consolidated statement of financial position Subsequent changes 1o the far value of the contingent consideration are
recognised in accordance with |1AS 39 through the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

The excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, amount of any non-controling interest n the acquired entity, and acquisihion date far
value of any previous eguity Interest In the acquired entity over the farr vaiue of the net assets acguired I1s recorded as goodwill

(dh Foreign currency transiation

{1} Functional and presentation currency

terns inciuded in the financial statements of sach of the Group's sntities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
emvironment in which the entity operates ('the functional currency”) The consolidated financial statemaents are presented N pounds stering,
which 1s the Group’s and Company's functicnal and presentation currency

i Transactiors and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting fram the setiiement of such transactions and from the translatior of monetary assets and habilities
derrominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rales are recognised In the statement of comprehensive iIncome

(1) Group companies
The results and financial position of the Group entities that have a functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated
nto the presentation currency as follows

» Assets and iabiliies for each statement of financial position presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial postion,

* Income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive Income are transtated at average exchange rates (unless this average s not a
reasonable approximation of the curnulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case ncome and expenses are
translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions); and

+ All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income

On consolidation, exchange differences ansing from the transiation of the net mvestment in foreign operations and of borrowings are
recognised In other comprehensive income When a foreign operation 1s sold, exchange differences that were recorded in equity are
recognised In the statement of comprehensive iIncome as part of the gam or loss on sale. Goodwill and fair value adjustments ansing on the
acquisihion of a foreign enbty are treated as agsets and habiibes of the faresgn entity and franslated at the closing rate,

{e) Revenue recognition

Revenue 1s measured at the far value of the congideration received or recevable and reprasents amounts recoverable by the Group for the
sales of advertising space, subscriptions and indvidual publhcations and revenue from events provided in the normal course of business, net
of discounts and value added tax.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be refiably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s actvites as described below.

Saies of advertising space are recognised (n the period in which publication ocours. Sales of publications are recognised in the period
in which the sale 1Is made. Sales of online advertising are recognised over the period durng which the advertisements are placed
Consideration received in advance for events is defarred and revenue 1s recoghised in the penod m which the gvent takes place.
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Revenue from subscripticns to publications and digital services 1s deferred and recognised on a strarght-line basis over the subscription
period

Revenue from project work and consuitancy contracts 1s recognised when the Group has obtained the nght to consideration in exchange for
its performance, which I1s when a separately identifiable phase (milestone) of a contract has been completed.

{f} iInvestments
In the Company’s financial statements, nvestments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for imparment in value

{g) Income tax
The tax expanse represents the sum of current and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from profit as raported in the statement of comprehensive
ncome because f excludes ems of Income or expense that are taxable or deductivle in other years, and it further includes rems that are
never taxable or deductible The Group's and Company's ability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the statement of financiat position date

Deferred tax 1s provided n full, using the kability methed, on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilittes in
the consohdated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit Deferred tax habilities are
generally recogrised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it 1s probable that taxable
profits will be avaidable to utiise those temporary differences and losses Such assets and habities are not recogrised if the temporary
difference anses from goodwill or the initia! recognition (other than n a business combination) of other assets and kabilities in a transaction
that affects netther the tax profi nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax 15 calcufated at the enacted or substantively enacted tax rates that are expected to apply in the penog when the ligbility 1s
settled or the asset is realised Deferred tax is charged or credited to the statement of comprehensive income, except when it relates to
tems charged or credited directly to equity, In which case the deferred tax is recognised in cther comprehensive Income.

(h} Leases

Agreements under which payments are made to owners in return for the nght to use an asset for a penod are accounted for as leases
Leases that transfer substantially all of the nsks and rewards of ownership are recognised at the commencement of the lease term as
finance leases within property, plant and equipment and debt at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, at the present value of the
minmum lease payments. Finance lease payments are apportioned between interest expense and repayments of debt Al other leases are
classified as operating leases and the cost s recogrised in income on a straight-lne basis

{1} Impairment of assets

Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events indicate that the carrying value may not
be recoverable. An imparment loss is recognised to the extent that the carrying value exceeds the higher of the asset’s farr value less cost
of disposal and its value-in-use. An assel’s value in use is calculated by discounting an estimate of future cash flows by the pre-tax weighted
average cost of capital

{1} Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cast and net reahsable value. Work in progress comprises of costs incurred relating to pubfications and
exhibitions prior to the publication date or the date of the event

{k} Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equiprnent is stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses The historical cost of
property, piant and equipmeant 15 the purchase cost together with any incidental direct costs of acquisition. Depreciation 1s calculated to write
off the cost, less estimated residual value, of assets, on a straight-line basis over the expected useful economic fives tc the Group over the
following pericds:

Leasehold improvements - 10 years or the expected length of the lease if shorter
Fixtures and fittings - 10 years
Computer equipment -3 to 5 years

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed at the end of each reporting penod, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis
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1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES CONTINUED

() Intangibie assets

(1) Goodwill

Where the cost of a business acguisition exceeds the farr values attnbutable to the separable net assets acguired, the resulting goodwill
is capitalised and allccated to the cash-generating unit ({CGU’) or groups of CGUs thaf are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
business combination. Goodwili has an indefinite useful fe and is tested for impairment annually on a Group level or whenever events ar
changes n circumstances indicate that the cartying amourit may not be recoverabie

Each segment I1s deemed to be a CGU. Goodwill and acgured intangible assets are assessed for imparment In accordance with 1AS 36 in
assessing whether a write-down of goodwill and acquired intangible assels is reguired, the carrying value of the segment 1s compared with
its recoverable amount. Recoveratle amount 18 measured as the higher of farr value less cost of dispesal and value-in-use Any mmpairment
15 recognised in the statement of comprehensive Income (n net operating expenses) and 1s classified as an adjusting tem Imparment of
goodwill 1s not subsequently reversed

On the disposal of a CGU, the attnbutable amount of goodwill 1s Included in the determination of the profit or foss on disposal.

iy Brands ard publsiing nghts customod relationships and non compete arrangoements

Separately acgured brands and publishing nghts are shown at histongal cost. Brands and publishing nghts, customer relationships and
non-compete arrangements acquired N a business combination are recogrised at far value at the acquisition date. They have a finite useful
lite and are subsequently carried at cost less accurnulated amaortisation and impaiment losses.

(n) Software

Computer software that is not ntegrai to the operation of the related hardware is carried at cost less accumulated amorbisation. Costs
assoclaled with the development of identifiable and unique software products controiled by the Group that will generate probable future
economic benefits in excess of costs are recognised as intangible assets when the critena of (AS 38 'Intangible Assets’ are met. They are
carned at cost less accumulated amortisation and Impairment lasses.

(iv) Amortusation methods and periods
Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost or fair value of assets on a straight-line basis over the expected useful economic lives to the
Group over the following periods:

Computer software -3to 5 years

Brands and publishing nghts -510 20 years

Customer relationghips ~ 3 to 10 years or over the term of any specified contract
Separately acquired websites and content —3 1o 5 years

Non-compete arrangerments — Qver the term of the arrangement

(M} Employee henefits

{1} Post-empioyment obligations

The Group and Company contribute to a defined contribution pension scheme for the benefit of employees. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independentiy administered fund. Contrbutions to defined contribution schemes are charged
to the statement of comprehensive ncome when employer contnbutions become payable.

(h) Share-basad payments

The Group opsrates a number of squity-settied share-based compensation plans for its employees. The farr value of the share-based
compensation expense is estimated using either a Monte Garlo or Black-Scholes option pricing model and is recogmsed in the statement of
comprehensive INcome over the vesting penod with a corresponding Increase I equity, The total amournt to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair vajue of the awards granted:

* Including any market performance conditions,

« Excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting condtions {for example, profitability, sales growth targets, cash
flow performance and remaning an employee of the entity over a specrfied time period); and

78



N
vww.centaurmedia.com F| NAN CIAL STAT EMENTS

Including the iImpact of any non-vesting conditicns (for example, the requirement for employees to save

* The total expense is recognised over the vesting penod, which 1s the penod over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied. At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of the number of gptions that are expected to vest based
on the non-market vesting and service conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to orniginal estimates, if any, 1n the statement of
comprehensive income, with a corresponding adiustment to equity The Company issues new shares or transfers shares from treasury
shares to settle share-based compensation awards.

The award by the Company of share-based compensation awards over its equity nstruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings
i the Group is treated as a capital contnbuticn, only if s left unsettled The farr value of employee services received, measured by
reference to the grant date fair value, 1s recognised over the vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a
corresponding credit to equity.

{n} Provisions
Pravisions are recognised when the Group has a present cbligation (lega! or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the obligation can be reliably estmated.

Provisions for deferred contingent consideration are measured at far value Where the deferred consideration is contingent cn the continued
employment of the vendors, such arrangements are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line
basts ovar the penod of the arrangement

{o) Share capital and share premwm

Ordinary and deferred shares are classified as equity The excess of consideration received in respect of shares 1ssued over the nominal
value of those shares 1s recognised in the share premium account Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown In equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceseds.

Where any Group company purchases the Company’s equity instruments, for exampie as the result of a share buyback or share-based
payment plan, the consideration pard, including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) 1s deducted from equity
attnbutable to the owners of the Company as treasury shares until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such ordinary shares are
subsequently reissued, any constderation received, net of any directly attnbutaibte incremental transaction costs and the related income tax
effects, is included in equity attributable to the owners cf the Company

Shares hetd by the Centaur Employees' Benefit Trust are disclosed as treasury shares and deducted from contnbuted equity The Company
alse holds a non-distributable reserve regresenting the fair value of unvested share-based compensation plans.

(p) Dividends
Dividends are recogrused in the penod in which they are paid or, in respect of the Company’s final dnadend for the year, approved by the
Shareholders in the Annual General Meeting,

{q) Segmental reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker

The Executive Committee has been identified as the chief cperating decision-maker, responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments The Group operates in three market-facing dwsions Marketing, Financial Services and
Professional

{r) Financial instruments
The Group has applied IFRS 7, Finanoial Instruments: Disclosures, and tAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recegniion and Measurement, as
outlined below:

(1) Fiancial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories where relevant: at far value through profit or loss; loans and recaivables,
and availlable-for-sale The classification depends on the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at inihial recognition

All of the Group’s financial assets have been classified as loans and recewvables Loans and recenables are non-denvative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are ingluded n cutrent assets, except for maturities
greater than 12 months after the statement of financial position date, These are classified as non-curent assets The Group’s loans

and receivables comprise trade and other recewables and cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial position Loans and
receivables are carned at amartised cost using the effective interest method
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(1) Trade receivables
Trade receivables are recognised nitially at fair value and subsequently measured at amorhised cost using the effective interest method, less
prowsion for impairment

A provision for imparment of trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the anginal terms of the receivables Significart financial difficuities of the debtor, probability that the debior will
enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation and default or definquency in payments (more than 9C days overdue) are considered indicatars
that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the prowision is the diffetence between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash fiows, discounted at the original effective Interest rate. The carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced through
the use of an aflowanice account, and the amaunt of the loss is recogrised 1 the statement of comprahensive incorme within nat operating
expenses. When a trade recetvable 1s uncollectible, 1t 1s witten off against the allowance account for trade recewvables Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against net operating expenses in the statement of comprehensive income.

() Cash and ¢ ash eguivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand and deposits repayable on demand or matunng within three months of the staternent of
financial position date.

() Fimancial latahtes
Debt and trade payables are recognised inhally at far value based on amounts exchanged, net of transaction costs, and subseguently at
amortised cost.

Interest expense on debt 1s accounted for using the effective interest method and 1s recognised in Income.

(v Trade payanies
Trade payables are recognised initially at far value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

{vi) Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and carmed subseguently at amortised cost. Costs of
borrowings are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as incurred o, where appropnate, across the term of the related
borrowing.

{vn) Dernvative financial instruments
The Group does not hold denvative financial instruments either for trading purposes or designated as hedges.

(s) Key accounting assumptions, estimates and judgements

The preparation of financiat statements under IFRS requires the use of certain key accounting assumptions and requires management to
exercise Its judgement and to make estimates The areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consclidated financial
staternents are a3 follows:

(1) Carrying value of goodwill and other Intangihle assets

in assessing whether goodwill and other intangible fixed assets are impairad, the Group uses a discounted cash flaw madel which includes
forecast cash flows and estirates of future growth. If the resuits of operations in future periods are lower than included 1 the cash flow
model, impairments may be triggered. Further details of the assumptions and sensitraties i3 the discounted cash flow mode! are included m
note 10.

Intangible assets arising on business combinations are \dentfied based on the Group’s understanding of the acquired business and previous
experience of similar businesses Consistent methods of valuation for similar types of intangible asset are applied where possible and
appropriate, using information reviewed at Board lavel where avallable Discount rates applied in calculating the valuss of intangtble assets
ansing on the acquisition of subsidianes are calculated specifically for each acguisition, and adjusted 1o reflect the respective nsk profile ot
each individual asset based on the Group's past expenence of sunilar assets.
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(11} Recoverality of trade receivables

The recoverabiity of trade recevables requires judgement. The Group uses all avalable evidence to determine the appropnate ievel of
provision for impairment of trade recewvables, including known disputes, histonical trends in wnite-offs, collections post year end and
the ageing of the recevabies. Further detalls about trade receivables are mcluded in note 18 and information about the credrt nsk and
impairment of receivables are shown in note 29.

(i) Adjusting tems

The term ‘adjusted’ 1s not a defined term under IFRS. Judgerment s required to ensure that the classication and presentation of certain
items as adjusting, ncluding exceptional itemns, 1s appropriate and consistent with the Group's accounting policy Further detalls about the
amounts classified as adiusting are included in notes 1(b} and 4

w1 Contingent consider it on

The valuation of contingent consideration arsing from business combinations {‘earn-out’ consideration) requires judgement, including
asgessing the probability and quantum of the expected payment The Group uses all avallable information, including current and forecasted
performance under sarn-out arrangements tc assess the required ievel of provision. Itemns relating to earn-out consideration are treated as
an adjustng item under the Group's accounting policy. Further details about the classification of earn-out consideration are included in notes
t{b) and 4, and details of current and prior year earn-out arrangements and provisions are shown in notes 14 and 23.

(v) Share-based payments
The fair vakue of the share-based compensation expense recogrised in the statement of comprehensive income requires the use of
ostimates Detatls regarding the determination of farr value of these costs are set out In note *(m)(i)

(vl Deferred tax

The calculatron of deferred tax assets and liabilities requires Judgerment Where the ulbmate tax treatment 15 uncertain, the Group recognises
deferred tax assets and Iabiities based on estimates of future taxable income and recoverabiity Where a change i circumstances occurs,
or the final tax outcome 1s different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the income tax and deferred tax
balances in the year in which that ¢change or outcome 1s known. The accounting policy regarding deferred tax is set out above in note 1(g}.

(v} Valuation of intarwgibles
Intangible assets acquired in & business combination are required to be recognised separately from goodwill and amortised over their useful
ife The Group has separately recognised computer software, brands and customer refationships in the acquisitions made (see note 14).

The far value of these acguired intangibles 1s based on valuation technigues that require INputs based on assumptions about the future and
estimates related to current market conditions.

The Group also makes assumptions about the useful life of the acgquired intangibles as outlined in note 1((v).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SEGMENTAL REPORTING

The Executive Gormmittee has been identified as the chief operating decision-maker, reviewing the Group's internal reporting on a monthly
basis in order to asgess performance and allocate resources.

The Group 1s organised around three reportaible market-facing segments. Marketing, Financial Sennces and Professional, The Professionat
segment aggregates the Legal, Human Resources, Engineenng and Travel & Meetings portfolios, which are deemed to have similar profiles
of risk and returm. All segments derive revenues from a combination of five events, premium content and advertising revenues. Corporate
income and costs are allocated to these segments on an apprepriate basis, depending on the nature of the costs, including in proportion 1o
reveriugs ar headcount Thers is na nter-segmental revenue.

Segment assets consist primarly of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets including goodwil, inventones and trade recewables
Segment liabilies comprise trade payables, accruals and deferred income

Corporate assets and lizbilities compnse current and deferred tax balances, cash and cash equivalents and borrowings.

Capital expenditure compnses addittons to property, plart and eqguipment, intangible assets and includes additions resulting from
acquisitions through business combinations.

Financial Continuing Discontinued
Markeung Profewsional Services aperation. operaLons Group
2017 £m £m £m £m £m Em
Revenue 36 :; 202 8.9 65 4 72 726
Adusted operating profit 17 1.8 0.6 41 2.5 66
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 20 (0.3} 0.2) (2 53 - (2,5}
Earn-out consideration (06) - - (0 8) - {0.8)
Costs relating to business acquisition {0.6} - - (0.6) - (Q.6)
Exceptional aperating casts o1 o - (0.2} - (G 2}
Share-based payments 03) (O] 0.1 (0.5) - {Q@5)
Profit on disposai of subsidiary - - - - 209 209
Operating {loss)/profit 1.9 13 0.3 {C 31 23.4 231
Finance costs 0.4) - 10.4)
{Loss) / profit before tax omn 234 227
Taxation (0.4 0.4) [(+X:}
{L9§s] f profit for the year 1.1 230 219
Segment assets 71.4 2886 88 108.8 - 088
Corporate assets 4.9
Consolidated total assets M7
Segmentlabies ~ (153) 82 ey @n - (2sn
Corporate liabilites (3.1
Consolidated tetal liabilities 128.8)
‘Othertems o S -
Capital expenditure (tangible and
ntangible assets) 15 1.0 0.4 2.9 -
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Marketing
Restated® 2016 £m
‘Revenue T T o8
Adjusted cperating profit 25
Amortisation of acquired intangibles (16)
Imparment of gocdwill -
Earn-out consideration {0.6)
Additona! ympairment of trade
receivables I8
Exceptional operating costs .5
Share-based payrments 01
Operating {loss)/profit 9
Finance costs
(Loss)/profit before tax
Taxation
ﬁ.ﬂ@l})ﬂt for the year
Segment assets 56.1
Corporate assets
Consolidated total assets
Segment lapiities S {11.6)
Corporate iabilties
Consolidated total liabilities
Otheritems
Caprtal expenditure (tangible and
intangible assets) T

Professional

£€mn

20 2
09
0.4)

(0.5)
(0.5)

(0.5)

295

o7

Supplemental mformation — revenue by geogtaphical location
The Group’s revenues frorm continuing operations from external customers by geographical location are detalled below:

United Kingdom
Europe (excluding Urited Kingdom)
North America

Rest of waorld

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS‘

Financial Continuing Discontinued

Services operations operatlons Group
£m £m £m £m
’ -9.7 777775797.7 ) ) 12é o 72.5
0.8 4.2 4.9 9.1
0.2) (2.2) o1 2.3}
(7.2) (7.2) - (7.2)
- (0.6) - (0.6}
0.2) {1.5} 03 {1.8)
0.2) 1.2} - 1.2)
- 0.1 - 0.1
70 (8.4} 45 3.9)
{0.5) - {0.5)
(8.9} 45 4.49)
{0.1) 0.9 {1.0)
{9.0) 36 (5.4)

9.3 94.9 13.2 108.1
4.9

113.0

2.0) {20.8) @5 {25.3)
(20.6)

{45.9)

03 2.1 a5 2.6
Restated®

2017 2016

£m £m

h2 2 46.9

35 3.8

6.0 6.2

37 2.8

59.7

65 4

Substantiaily all of the Group’s net assets are located in the United Kingdom The Directors therefore consider that the Group currently
operates N a single geographical segment, being the United Kingdom.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SEGMENTAL REPORTING CONTINUED

The Group’s revenue from continuing operations operations by type is as follows

Sale of goods and services
Premium content

Live events

Advertising

Capability Services

Other

3 NET OPERATING EXPENSES
Operating profit(loss) 1s stated after charging/(creciting)

"Net 'Ec_);elgn-c;(_c;haﬁge (ge-a_ln-s)-/los_s-é:-s
Employee benefts expanse

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Amortisation of iIntangible assets
impairment of goodwill

Earn-out consideration

Acquisition related costs

Other exceptional operating costs
Operating lease rentals

Repairs and maintenance expenditure
Impairment of trade receivables
Share-based payment expensesicradit)

Other operating expenses

Cost of sales
Distrioution costs

Administrative expenses

Rental income for the sub-lease of properties under leases totatied £0 7m (2016 £0 7m).

See note 1{b) and 4 for detalls of agjusting items

11
10
14

29
28

Adjusted Adjusting Statutory
Results ftems Results
2017 2o 2017
£m £ £m
03 27 o3
30.9 02 311
Q7 - a7
2.8 25 53

- 0.6 0.6

-~ 0.6 0.6

1.8 - 1.8
0.2 - o2
0.5 - 0.5

- 0.5 05

241 - 244
813 44 657
281 - 291
Q.5 - 05
317 4.4 361

61.3 44

65.7

Restated®

2017 2016

£m £m

181 184

26.7 243

135 16.2

61 -

1.0 0.8

65.4 597

Adjusted Adjusting Statutory

Results Items Results

2016 2016 2016

£m £m £m
03 - 03

27.4 0.9 283

Q.5 - a5

27 2.2 49

- 72 72

- 0.6 0.6

- 03 Q3

17 - 1.7

0.3 - 03

04 1.5 1.9
- 1 Q1)

222 - 22.2

56.5 126 681
27.8 - 27.8
0.9 - 0.9

26.8 126 394

126 68 1
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Services provided by the Company’s auditor

N
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

215

2017
£'000
‘Fe“eé bé-yaiale i:o tﬁe Cé)mpangi;s auda;o?s gr IFI;E!_ -El_Lde_i (-)f“(_)c;r;pany and co_r-l_s;olldated-ﬁr{én(:ial staterrients T 210
Additional audit fees retating to prior year -

Fees payable to the Company's auditors and its associates for other services.

The audtt of the Company’s subsidianes pursuant to legislation 10
Total audit fees 220
Audit related assurance services 22
Taxation comphance services -
Other taxation advisory services -
Qther assurance services 303
Total non-audit fees 325
'I_'otal fees 545

Fees payable to the Company’s auditor for the audit of Company and consolidated financial statements include non-recurring fees of

£60,000 (2016: £,

Other assurance related services include covenant comphance £7,500, acguistion related costs £100,000 and disposal related costs

£195,000 In 2016 other assurance services of £29,000 are immaterial.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 ADJUSTING ITEMS

As discussed in note 1(b), certain items are presented as adjusting These are detailed below:

2017 2016
Continuing operations Note £m £m
‘Exceplonal operatng costs o

Staff-related restructurng costs = 0.2 0.8

Costs relating to strategic corporate restructunng intiatives - 03
Excapttonal operating costs 0.2 12
Imparment of goodwill [ - 72
Arnortisation of acquired mtangible assets 1 25 2.2
Additional imparment of trade recesvables 2~ - 1.5
Share-based payment expense/(credit) 2o o5 (R3]
Eam-out consideration 4 06 08
Costs relating to business acquisition . a6 —
Adijusting items to profit before tax 4.4 12.6
Tax refating to adjusting items IS {05) 0.7
Total adjusting items after tax 39 119
Discontiﬁued operations ;
Profit on disposal of subsidiary (209) -
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets - 0.1
Additional impairment of trade recevables - 0.3
Tax relating to adjusting iterns - 0.1
Total adjusting ifgms f:lfter tax {17.0) 2.2

Exceptional costs

Staff-related restructuning costs

During 2017, exceptional restructuring costs of £0 2m were incurred as a result of the recrgamisation of the Human Resources function ang
the exit from print, Whilst similar costs have been incurred previously, such costs inked to the Group’s transformation programme are not
expected 1o recur once this 1Is completed, and as such these costs are deemed to be exceptional in nature.

I 2018, exceptional restructunng costs of £0 8m were recognised as a result of restructuning actvities and cost saving intiatives.

Caosts relating to strategic corporate restructunng rutiatives
In the prior year, these costs related to professional fees for strategic corporate restructuring nitiatives of £0 2m and non-trading costs
ansng on prior disposals of £0.1m.

Other adjusting items
Other adjusting items relaie to the amortisation of acquired intangible assets (see note 11) and share-based payment costs (see nate 26) as
well as the items discussed below:

Earn-cut consideration
In 2017, a charge of £C.6rn has been recognised in relation to acquisition earn-out consideration for Qystercatcher See note 14 for
turther details,

The charge in 2016 of £0 6m also related to the Oystercatchers acquisition earn-out.
Cosls relating to the acquisition of business

These costs relate to the acquisimon of MarketMakers Incorporated Limited ["MarketMakers’) (see note 14). These costs mcluda stamp duty of
£0 1m, sponsors’ fees of £0.1m, legal fess of £0.1m, due diligence and planning fees of £0,1m and varnous other professional fees of £0.2m.
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Prolit on disposal of subsidiary
On 1 August 2017, the Group sold its business-to-consumer dvisicn, the Home Interest segrment, recognising a profit on disposal of
£20 9m (see note 15 for more detall).

Adciional impawment of trade recervatles

In the prior year, an additional, separately reported charge was recognised n relation to impairment of frade recevables of £1.8m (£1.5m
from continuing operations, £0.3m from discontinued cperations) As a result of disruption dunng the second half of 2015 into the early

part of 2016, arising from a new accounting systern implementation in 2015, an amount of legacy and older debt remained unpaid at

31 Decemier 2016, which was significantly In excess of levels historically expenenced by the Group A detaled review and nsk assessment
to ascertan the recoverability of this debt was undertaken. This review, together with the fact that there was further extended ageing despite
active pursuit of the amounts in 2016 meant the Group considered it necessary to provide aganst potentially uncoilectible aged dabt at
levels in excess of those which would be required under normal trading conditions The guantumn of this additional provision anses from
unique circumstances following an accounting system implementation, therefore the charge of £1.8m was separately reported in adjusting
tems. In addtion, an ordinary charge of £0 5m was recorded In adjusted operating profit, which was not separately reported.

In 2017, no such addiional charge 1s required

Impar nent of goodwill
During 2017, there was no impairment charge n relation to goodwili 2016 £7 2m imparment charge n refation to goodwill in the Financial
Servicas segment).

5 DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES

2017 2016 2017 2016

Group Group Company Company

£m £m £m £m

‘Wages and salanes - 2s 234 13 09
Soclal secunty costs 31 31 01 0.1
Other pansion costs o9 09 2K ] 01
Adjusted staff costs 309 27 4 1.5 1.1
Exceptional staff-reiated restructuring costs (note 4) 02 0.9 - -
Earn-cut consideration (note 14) 06 06 - -
Equity-settled share-based payments (note 26} o5 01 0.2 -

Total staff costs 32.2 288 17 1.1

The staff costs presented above are for continuing operations and exclude all staff costs relating to the Home Interest segment, which are
presented in discontinued operations

The average monthly number of employses employed dunng the year, mcluding Directors, was

2017 2016 20171 2016

Group Group Company Company

Numboer Number Numbet Number

Marketing 233 168 - -
Professional 20 23 - -
Financial Services 43 48 - -
Central 149 184 4 4
815 493 4 4

With the exception of the newly acquired business of MarketMakers, the Group's employees have contracts of service with Centaur
Communications Limrted and are paid by Chiron Communications tuimited, both Group companies. As the employees provide senvices to
the Company, therr costs are recharged and the relevant disciosures are made in the financial statements The MarketMakers’ employees
are employed and paid by MarketMakers Incorporated Limited.,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES CONTINUED

Kay management compensation

Saiér_lgs_ ana _short term employljgcer\_i -tm)erneﬁts-

Termination benefits
Post-employment benefits
Share-based payments

Earn-out consideration

Key management is defined as the Executive Directors and Executive Committee members.

Aggregate Directors’ remuneration

Salanes, fees, bonLlses and beneﬁts tn k1n(-j_
Charge / (credit) under long term incentive schemes

Post-employment benefits

Highest paid Director's remunetation

‘Salanes, fees, bonuses and benefits nkind
Charge / (credit) under long term incentive schemes

Post-employment benefits

2017 2016
£m £m
28 19
- 03
01 0.1
03 Q1
0.2 0.2
LR 2.4
2017 2016
A £m
7 i 7717.2 o 10
02 {0.1)
01 01
1.5 10
2017 2016
£m £m
h T 0.6_"_ T 0.&_
a a1
- 041
o7

0.6

No Drrectors exercised share options during the current or prior year. No Directors were paid compensation in respect of loss of office during

either year. Further detai's of Oirectors’ remuneration are included in the Remuneration Gommittee Report between pages 42 (o 54.

6 FINANCE COSTS

interest payable c;n revahang credit facility
Gommitment fess and amortisation of arrangerment fee in respect of revolving credrt facility

Total finance costs

2017 2016
£Em £m
0.2 04
0.2 0.1

0.5
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7 TAXATION
2017 2018
£m £€m
Analysis of charge for theyear
Current tax
UK corporation tax 1.2 1.2
Qverseas tax 04 0.1
Adjustments in respect of prior years 01 0.2)
1.4 7.1
Deferred tax (note 16}
Current period (0 &) 0.3)
Adustments in respect of prior years -~ Q.2
{0 6) 0.1}

Taxation 0.e 1.0

Tre tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit / (loss) in the statement of comprehensive income as follows

2017 2016
£m £m
Proft/loss) before tax . ' - 227 )
Tax at the UK rate of corporation tax of 19.25% {2016 20 0%) 4.3 {09
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 04 05
Goodwil mpavrment not deductible - 14
Profit on disposal (4.1} -
Adjustments in respect of prior years 01 -
Drfferent tax rates of subsidiaries i other junsdictions 01 -
0.8 1.0

The tax charge for the year 1s based on the Group profit before tax from both continuing and discontinued operations it 1s comprised of
£0 4m relating to continuing operations, as per the statements of comprehensive iIncome, and £0 4m relating to discontinued operaticns.

The Finance (No 2) Act 2015, which provides for reductions in the main rate of corperation tax from 20% to 19% effective from 1 Apnl 2017
and to 18% effective from 1 April 2020, was substantively enacted on 26 October 2015 These rate reductions have been reflected in the
calculation of deferred tax at the statement of financial peosition date

The Finance Act 2016, which provides for reductions in the main rate of corporation tax to 17% effective from 1 Apnl 2020, was
substantively enacted on 15 September 2016
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7 TAXATION CONTINUED

A reconciliation between the reported tax expense and the adjusted tax expense, taking account of adjusting items as discussed in note 1(b)
and 4 1s shown below:

2017 2016

£m £m

‘Reported tax experse T e a8 1o

Effects of:

Armortisation of acquired intangible assets a3 Q.3
Additional impairment of trade recevahles - 0.4

Share-based payments ot 0.1
Exceptional expenses Q1 0.1
Earn-out consideration - 01
Adjusted tax expense 13 18

8 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 1 August 2017, the Group disposed of its Home Interest segment, compnsed of Centaur Consumer Exhebitions Limited and Ascent
Pubtishing Limited. The disposal was effected in line with the Group's strategy to become a pure business-to-business (B2B’) business.

The results of the discontinued operations, which have been included In the consolidated staterment of comprehensive iIncome and
consolidated cash flow statermert, were as follows

Period ended Year ended

31 Juiy 31 December

2017 2016

Statement of comprehensive income £m £m
Revenue 7.2 12.8

Expenses 4.7) (8.3)
Profit on disposal 209 -
Profit before tax 234 45

Attnbutable tax expense (0.4} 0.9)
Statutory profit after tax 230 36
Profit on disposal {20.9) ~
Amortisation of acquired intangible assets - 01
Additional impairment of trade receivables - 0.3

Attributable tax expense - {0.1)
Adjusted profit attributable to discontinued operations 24 3.9
Period ended Year ended

31 July 31 December

2017 2015

Gash flows £m £m
Operating cash flows o7 01
Investing cash flows - -
Financing cash flows - -

Total cash flows 07 0.1

A profit of £20 9m arose on the disposal of the Home Interest segment, being the difference between proceeds of disposal and the cartying
amount of the subsidiaries’ net assets and attributable goodwill, iess £1 9m of transaction costs.
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9 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share (EPS") 1s calculated by dwviding the earnings attributable to ordinary Shareholders by the weighted average number
of shares in 1ssue during the year 91,131 {2016, 91,131) shares held in the empioyee benefit trust and 6,964,613 (2016: 6,870,437) shares
held in treasury have been excluded in armvng at the weighted average number of shares

For diuted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 1s adjusted to assume conversion of all potentially
dilutive ordinary shares. This compnses share options and awards (including those granted under the share save plan) granted to Directors
and employees where the exercise price is less than the average market pnce of the Company’s ordinary shares durnng the year.

Basic and diluted earnings per share have also been presented on an adjusted contnuing and discontinued basis, as the Directors believe
that this measure is more refiective of the underlying performance of the Group These have been calculated as follows:

2017 2017 2016 2016
Earmings Weighted Earnings Weighted
atinbutable average 2017 attributable average 2016
to ownars of number of Earnings  to owners of number of Earnings per
the parent shares per share the parent shares share
£ Millions Pence £m Millions Pence
Basic
Continuing operations 1% 144 4 {0.8) Q0 143 6 63)
Continuing and discontinued operations 218 144.4 15.2 5.4) 143 6 (38
Effect of dilutive securities
Options. Continuing operations - - - - - -
Options Continuing and discontinued operations - 8.3 (0.9) - - -
Diluted
Continuing cperations (1.4} 144.4 .8 9.0 1436 6.3)
Continuing and discontinued operations 219 1527 14,3 (5.4) 143.6 3.8
Adjusted
Continuing operations
Basic ¢ 144 4 {0.8) Q0 143.6 63)
Amcriisation of acquired intangibles {note 11) 2.4 17 22 15
Impairment of trade recevables - - 156 i1
Earn-out cansideration Qa8 0.4 06 0.4
Cther exceptional costs (note 4) 0.3 02 12 08
Share-based payments (note 26) 0.5 03 01 o1
Impairment of goodwill {note 10} - - T2 5.0
Acquisition related costs (note 14) 0.6 0.4 - -
Tax effect of above adjustments (0.5) (C.3) 07 {0.4)
Discontinued cperations
Basic 230 144 & 16.0 3.6 143.6 25
Amortisation of acquired intangitles - - 0.1 0.1
Impairment of trade receivables - - 03 02
Profit on chisposal (note 15) (20 9) (14.5) - -
Tax effect of above adjustments - - Q.1 0.1}
Adjusted basic
Continuing operations 28 144.4 19 29 1436 20
Continuing and discontinued operations 49 144.4 34 6.8 143.6 47
Effect of dilutive securities
Options: Continuing operations - a.3 (09 - 6.2 o1
Options Continuing and discontinued operatons - 2.3 (02} - 62 02
Adjusted diluted
Continuing operations 23 527 1.2 29 140 8 19
Continuing and discontinued operations o 49 1527 3.2 6.8 . 1488 45
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10 GOODWILL

Group
Cost £m
“At1 January 2016 T o ’ - 155 1
Additions 1n the year 1.2
At 31 December 2016 156 3
Additions in the year (note 14) 11.0
Disposal of subsidiary (note 15) (79
At 31 December 2017 B 1594
Accumulated impairment
At 1 January 2016 770
Charge for the year 72
At 31 December 2016 84.2
Charge for the year -
Disposal of subsidiary {hote 15) Q.4
At 31 December 2017 8338

Net book value
At 31 December 2017 756
At 31 December 2016

Additions in the year relate to the acquisition of MarketMakers See note 14 for further details.
Disposal in the vear relates to the dispusat of the Home Interest segment See note 15 for further details.

Goodwill by segment

Each brand 1s deemed 1o be a Gash Generating Unit (CGLY), being the lowest level at which cash flows are separately identrfiable Goodwill s
attnbuted to ndividual CGUs but 15 reviewed at the segment level for the purposes of the annual mpairment review as this 1s the level at which
managernent monitors goodwill. The majonty of the Group’s goodwill arose on the acquisition of Centaur Communications Group in 2004,

Goodwill 1s allocated to segments as follows:

Financial

Marketing Professional Services Home Interest Total

£€m £m £m £m £m

At 1 January 2016 T T 367 216 23 75 78.1
Additions 12 - - - 12
Charge - - 7.2) - 7.2)
At 31 December 2016 379 21.6 5.1 75 721
Additons 110 - - - 10
Disposal - - - 7.5) (7.5)
At 31 December 2017 48.9 216 54 - 756

Impairment testing of goodwill and acquired intangible assets
During the period, goodwill and acquired intangible assets were tested for mpairment n accordance with 1AS 36. In assessing whether
a wnte-down of goodwill and acquired intangible assets is reqguired, the carrying value of the segment is compared with its recoverable
amount. Recoverable amounts are measured based on value-in-use.

The Group estimates the value-in-use of its CGUs using a discounted cash fliow model, wivch adjusts the cash flows for nsks associated
with the assets and discounts these using a pre-tax rate of 11 4% (2016 12 6%) The discount rate used is consistent with the Group's
weighted average cost of capital and 1s used across all segments, which are all based predominantly in the UK and considered to have
similar risks and rewards

92



N
www centhurmedia com FI NAN CiAL STAT E M ENTS

The key assumphions used In calculating value-in-use ars revenue growth, margin, adjusted EBITDA, discount rate and the terminal growth
rate. The Group bas used formally approved forecasts for the first three years of the calculation and applied a terrminal growth rate of 2.0%
{2016 2 0%) This tmescale and the terminal growth rate are both considered appropriate given the cyclical nature of the Group's revenues

The assumptions used In the calculations of value-in-use for each segment have been derived based on a combination of past experience
and management’s expectations of future growth rates in the business.

At 31 Decernber 2017, before imparment testing, goodwill of £48.9m, £21.6m and £5 1m was allocated to the Marketing, Professional
and Financial Services segments respectively. In a 'base case' scenario, and i the sensitised scenarios outined below, the value-in-use
calculations exceed the carrying values and therefore no impairment tc geodwill 1s Indicated for any of the three segments.

Sensitivity analysis has been performed on the value-in-use calculations, holding all other vanables constant, to

(1 apply a 10% reduction to forecast adjusted EBITDA in each year of the modelled cash flows. No impairment would occur in any of the
segments
{n apply a 2.0% increase in discount rate from 11.4% to 13.4%. No imparment would occur in any of the segments

(i) reduce the terminal value growth rate from 2 0% to 1 0% No impairment would oocur in any of the segments

11 OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Separately
Brands and acquired
Computer publishing Customer websites Non-compete
software” rights* relationships* and content* arrangements’ Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m

Gost
At 1 January 2016 109 56 116 47 05 333
Addrtions - separately acquired 1.3 - - - - 1.3
Additions - mternally generated 1.0 - - - - 1.0
Additions - business combnation (note 14) - c.2 0.9 - - 1.1
Disposals or expiry - - - - (0.5) (0.5}
At 31 December 2016 132 58 1256 47 - 38.2
Additions - separately acquired 15 - - - - 1.5
Additions - internally generated 12 - - - - 1.2
Additions — business combmation (note 14) (Hirg 0.8 3.6 - - 5.1
Disposal of subsidiary (note 15) 0 5) (10) o7 - - 2.2)
At 31 December 2017 161 5.6 15.4 47 - 41.8
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2016 42 17 5.2 3.4 05 15.0
Amortisation charge for the year 2.7 0.4 1.1 0.8 - 5.0
Disposals or expiry - - - - {0.5) 0.5)
Al 31 December 2016 6.9 2.1 63 4.2 - 12.5
Amortisation charge for the year 29 0.3 1.7 0.4 - 53
Disposal of subsidiary (note 15) 03 0.5 {08) - - (1.6)
At 31 December 2017 9.5 19 72 46 - 23.2
Net book value at 31 December 2017 66 37 ) 82 o] - 18.6
Net book value at 31 December 2016 8.3 37 62 0.6 - 18.7
Net book value at 1 January 2016 . 6.7 38 64 13 - - 183

* Amortisation of £2 5m (2016 £2.3m) af acquired intangible assets from businass combinations 1 presentsd as an adpsting tem (see note 1{b) for further infarmation) The current
year charge of £2 5m includes £0 1m in computer scftware (2016 Enif)

The Company has no intangible assets (2016, £nil). Amorttsation of intangible assets 1s Included in net operating expenses N the statement
of comprehensive INncome
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12 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Leasehold Fixtures Computer
improvements and fittings equipment Total
£fm £m £m £m
=
At ¥ January 2016 2.1 0.6 og 3.6
Additions - separately acguired 0.1 - o1 0.2
Additions - business combination (note 14) - 01 - 0.1
At 31 December 2016 2.2 0.7 1.0 3.9
Additions - separately acquired 0.1 - 0.1 c.2
Additions - business combination (note 14} - - Q2 0.2
Disposal of subsidiary (note 15) {0.1) a1 - 0.2)
At 31 December 2017 22 o6 13 a1
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2016 1.0 0.2 0.1 1.3
Depraciation charge for the perod 02 0.1 03 0.6
At 31 December 2016 1.2 0.3 0.4 1.9
Depreciation charge for the year 0.2 0.1 Cc.4 0.7
Disposal of subsidiary (note 15) 0.1} N - 0.2
At 31 December 2017 13 0.3 0.8 23
Net book value at 31 December 2017 0.9 0.3 0s 17
Net book value at 31 December 2016 T 10 04 0os 20
‘Net book value at 1 January 2015 S 41 o4 o8 28

The Company has no property, plant and equipment at 31 December 2017 (2016 L£ril)
13 INVESTMENTS

Investments
in subsidiary
undertakings
Company £m
Cost 7 T 7 T T
At 31 January 2015 and 31 December 2016 146.2
Additions -
Disposals -
As at 31 Decemper 2017 146.2
Accumulated impairment
At 1 January 2015, 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017 12.2
Net book value at 31 December 2017 1340
Net book value at 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016 T T T 1840
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The Group disposed of its interests in the following subsiciaries on 1 August 2017

Proportion of
ordinary shares

and voting
Name rights held (%) Principal activities Country of incorporation
Ascent Publishing Limited 100 Digital and print pubkishing United Kingdom
Centaur Consumer Exhibitions Limited 100 Exhititions United Kingdem

The gain on disposal of Ascent Publishing Limited and Centaur Consurner Exhibitions Limited was £20.9m. The gain on disposal is
presented as an adjusting itermn aganst net operating expenses on the statement of comprehensive Income

Proportion of
ordinary shares

and voting rights Country of
Name held (%) Principal activities incorporation
Centaur Communications Limitec ' S 100 Holding cEFn_pany and é-g_ch_y; services United K-mgdvo}}w
Centaur Media USA Inc.2 100 Digital information, training and events United States
Chiron Cormmurications Lirnited 100 Digital information, training and events United Kingdorm
E-consultancy.com Limited 100 Digital information, traning and events United Kingdom
E-consultancy Asia Pacific Pty Limted 3 100 Digital information, traimng and events Singapore
E-consultancy Australia Pty Limited ¢ 100 Digital information, training and events Australia
E-consultancy LLC * 100 Digital information, traming and events Untted States
Investrment Platforms Limited 100 Research data and analysis United Kingdom
MarketMakers Incorporated Limited®”? 100 Tetemarketing and research Unsted Kingdom
Mayfield Publishing Limited 100 Investment company United Kingdom
Pro-talk Ltd 100 Digital publishing United Kingdom
Taxbriefs Heldings Limited 100 Hoiding company United Kingdom
Taxbriefs Limited 100 Digital and print publishing United Kingdom
The Forum for Expatnate Management Limited 100 Events and information services Unned Kingdom
The Profile Group (UK) Limited 100 Digital information services United Kingdom
Your Business Magazine Limited 100 Investment company Umited Kingdom
Venture Businegss Research Limited 100 Research data and analysis United Kingdom

t  Directly owned by Centaur Media Plc.

2 Registered address is 2711 Centervile Apad, Surte 400 Wilmington, DE19808, USA Functional currency +s USD

3 Registared address 1s 30 Cecll Streat, #19-08 Prudential Tower, Singapore 049712 Funchional currency 1s USD

4+ Ragistered address 1s Level 17, 383 Kent Streat, Sydney, NSW, 2000, Australia Functionaf currency 1s AUD,

5 Registered address 1s 41 East, 11 Street, 11F1, New York, NY 10003, USA. Functional currency 1s USD

s Registered address 1s 1000 Lakeside North Harbour Western Road, Portsmouth, Hampshire, POS 3EN

7 Subsidiary acquired on 2 August 2017 No previous interest held

The registered address of all subsidiary companies 1s 79 Wells Street, Londen, W1T 3QN, United Kingdom, with the exception of those
dentified above. The functional currency of all subsidianes 1s GBP except for those identified above. The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of all entities controlled by the Company at 31 December 2017
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14 BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 2 August 2017, Centaur Gommunications Limited, a Group company, acquired 100% of the issued share capitat of MarketMakers
Incorporated Limited {'MarketMakers’), a bustness-to-business {‘B2B') telemarketing agency. This acquisition forms a significant aspect

of Gentaur's transtormation Into a pure B2B-focused business MarketMakers will grovide a range of wgher value-added products and
services, and will allow Gentaur to offer end-to-end lead generation management The results of MarketMakers ars included in the Marketing
segment. Detalls of the purchase cansideration, the net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows:

£m
‘Purchase consideration: CTTT o S
Cash paid 471
Deferred cash considerahon o1
Contihgent cash consideration 17
Total purchase consideration 189
The assets and habiliies recognised as a result of the acquisition are as foflows
2 August
2017
Fair value
(2]
Intangible assets* Brands 08
Intangible assets' Customer contracts and relationships 36
Intangible assets: ERP platform 07
Total identified intangible assets (see note 11) 51
Deferred tax llabihes on identfied intangible assets o
41
Property, plant and equipment 0.2
Trade receivables 2.3
Prepayments and other detytors 0.3
GCurrent tax assets 02
Accrued income 03
Cash 4.2
Trade payables ©.2)
Accruals (1.2)
Deferred ncome 14
Socal secunty and other taxes (09)
Net identifiable assets acquired 7.9
Goodwill (see note 10) 11.0
Total purchase consiﬂderation

18.9
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Certain intangible assets have been separately identified on acquisition including brands of £0.8m, customer refationships of £3 6m, and the
ERP piatform of £0 7/m The tair value of the brands has been estimated using a relief from royalty approach, and the customer relationships
and ERP platform have been valued using an excess sarnings approach.

The useful economic life of the intangibles is as follows.

Intangibie assets — Brands - 8 years

Intangible assets — Customer contracts and refationships - 3 to 4 years
Intangitle assets — ERP platform - 5 years

The goodwill 1Is comprised of the deferred tax hability on the identified intangible assets, the acquired workforce and, 1n particular, the ability
of the business to gererate new custormer relationships

Deferred consideration

20 1m of deferred consideration is payable in cash upon completion of the Company tax return related to the year ended 31 December
2017, subject to any claims made under the purchase agreement. £0.1m has been recognised in other liakiliies in respect of this deferred
consideration.

Contingent consideration
In the event that certain pre-detenmined EBITDA leveis are achieved by MarketMakers for the year ended 31 December 2017, additional
consideration of up to £3.6m may be payabie in cash during the first quarter of 2018

The potential undiscounted amount payable under the agreement 1s between £nil for EBITDA below £2.0m and £3.6m for EBITDA above
£2 5m The far value of the contingent censideration 1s undiscounted as the payment 1s due in less than one year from the acquisition date

Acquired recetvables
The far value of acquired trade receivables 1s £2.3m The gross contractual amount for trade receivables due 1s £2 3m, all of which is
expected to be collectible.

Revenue and profit contribution

MarketMakers contributed revenues of £6.1m and net profit of £1.1m to the Group for the penod from 2 August 2017 to 31 December
2017 If the acquisition had cccurred on 1 January 2017, MarketMakers pro forma revenue and operating profit for the year ended 31
December 2017 would have been £13 9m and £2 1m respechively

Acquisition costs
Caosts relating to the acquisition of MarketMakers amcounted to £0 8m (see note 4}). These costs iInclude stamp duty of £0 1m, sponsors'
feas of £0.1m, legal fees of £8.1m, due dilgence and planning fees of £0.1m and vanous other professional fees of £0.2m.

Priar year business combination

In the prior year, Centaur Communications Limited, a Group company, acguired the business and assets of The Oystercatchers LLP
['Qystercatchers'), a specialist marketing consultancy. The results of Oystercatchers are included in the Marketing segment The £1.7m

net identfiable assets of Oystercatchers were acquired for totat purchase consideraticn of £2 3m, resulting in the recegnition of £1.2m of
goodwill The consideration comprised a mixture of cash and shares, including deferred consideration of £0 2m that has been fully settled in
cash in the current year.

At 31 December 2016, and under the sales purchase agreement, there was contingent consideration {earn-out consideration) of £1.2m to
be settled in cash 75% and shares 25% In the prior year, an expgense and a provision of £0 4m was recogrised under IAS 19 (for the cash
element) and an expense and credit to equity of £0.2m was recognised under IFRS 2 (for the share-based payment element) During the
penod a further expense and provision of £0 4m was recognised under IAS 19 (for the cash efement) and an expense and credit to equity
of £0.2m under IFRS 2 (for the share-based payment elsment), The total amount of £1 2m was settled wholly in cash during the year and
therefore an adjustrment of £0 4rm {£0.2m current year and £0.2m prior year) was made to reverse the share-based payment element under
IFRS 2 andg account for the whele transaction under 1AS 18 appropriately.

Further details of this acquisition can be found in note 13 of the Group's Annual Report and financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2016
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15 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY

On 1 August 2017, the Group disposed of its interest i its Home Interest segment, by way of sale of 100% of the aquity shares of Ascent
Publishing Limited and Centaur Consumer Exnibitions Limited.

The net assets of the Home Interast segment at the date of disposai were as follows

1 August
2017
£m
Goodwdt S s
Cther intangible assets 08
Inventones 0.8
Trade and other recewables 25
Intercompany 2.6
Gash and cash equivalents 09
Trade and other payables (0.8)
Deferred ncome {3.5)
Current tax kabilty 04
Net assets disposed attributable to Shareholders of the Company 102
Directly attnbutable costs of disposal 17
Gain on disposal 209
Fair value of consideration 328
Satisfied by:
Cash and cash gquivalents 30.2
Settlement of ntercompany balances 26
328
Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
Consideration received in cash and cash sauwalents 302
Less directly attnbutable costs of disposal (14
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of 0.9)
279

Proceeds of £32.8m comprised cash of £30.2m and settlernent of amounts owed by the cortinuing Group to the Home Interest segment of
£2.6m. The gain on disposal of £20.9m is inciuded in the profit for the year from discontinued operations (see note 8).

There were no disposals of subsidianes during 2016.
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16 DEFERRED TAX

The movement on the deferred tax account is shown below

Accelerated Other
capital temporary Tax

allowances differences losses Total
£m £m £m £m
Net asset / {liability) at 1 January 2016 0.4 ©7n 02 0,1}
Adjustments in respect of prior years 0.2) - - 0.2)
Recogrised n the statement of comprehensive income 0.2 0.1 - 0.3
Ansing on business combination - 02 - 0.2)
Net asset / (iability) at 31 December 2016 0.4 0.8) 0.2 0.2)
Recogrised in the statement of comprehensive income 0.2 04 - 6
Arising on business combination - (1.0) - (1.0)
Disposed {0.1) - - 01
Net asset / (liability) at 31 December 2017 05 (14) 0.2 {0H

Deferred tax assets and labiities are only offset where there 1s a legally enforceable nght of offset and there (s an ntention to settle the
kalances net

2017 2016

Groups Group

£m £m

Deferred taxasset ’ o 07 0.6
Deferred tax #abilities {1.4) (0.8)
Total 07 0.2)

At the statement of financial position date, the Group has unused tax losses of £1 4m (2016, £1.3m) available for offset aganst future

profits A deferred tax asset of £0 2m (2016 £0.2m) has been recagnised in respect of £1.0m (20186, £1.0rm) of such tax losses No deferred
tax has been recognised in respect of the remaining £C 4m (2016 £0 3m) as it 1s not currently considered probakle that there will be future
sufficient taxable profits avalable Unrecognised losses may be carred forward indefinitely Deferred tax assets and iaihities are expected to
be matenatly realised after 12 months.

17 INVENTORIES

2017 2016

Group Group

£m £m

Work in progress 14 2.5

The Company had no inventory at 31 December 2017 (2016: £nif).

There are no provision amounts in respect of inventories (2016 £nil)
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18 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade recevables

Less' provision for mpairment of recewvables {note 29)
Trade receivables - net

Recewakbles from subsichanes

Recevable from Employee Benefit Trust

Cther receivables

Prepayments

Accrued Income

2017 2016
Group Group
£m £m
10.5 15.8
(1.5} 2.7
30 13.1
0.9 .8
1.4 12
03 0.6
57

Receawables from subsidianes are unsecured, have no fixed due date and bear interest at an annual rate of 2.38% (2016 2 43%).

19 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at bank and in hand

20 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables

Payables to subsidiaries
Social security and other taxes
Other payables

Accruals

Payables to subsidianes are unsecured, have no fixed date of repayment and bear interast at an annual rate of 2 38% (2016: 2.43%)

2017 2016
Group Group
£m £m
41 3.4
2047 2016
Group Group
€m £m
25 3.7
i 0.8
14 1.3
58 3.9
10.9

The Directors consider that the camrying amount of the trade payables approximates therr fair value

21 FINANCE LEASES

97

2017 2016
Company Company
£m £m

27 16

- 0.2

0.3 0.3

3.0 21

2017 2016
Company Company
Em £m

2017 2016
Company Company
€m £m

43.2 18.9

0.6 0.1

18.0

445

Lease payables are secured as the rights to the leased assets revert to the lessor in the event of default The Group's lease payables in the

current and prior year are immatenal.

The Group leases office equipment with & carrying amount of £nil (2016: £0.1m) under a finance lease expinng N one year There were no

new finance leases durng 2417 or 2016
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22 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES

2017 2016
Graup Group
£m £m
Corporation tax - o7
23 PROVISIONS
Deferred
consideration Other Totai
£m £m £m

Growp S o -
At 1 January 2016 - - _
Charged to statement of comprehensive income during the penod 04 - 0.4
At 31 December 2016 04 - 0.4
Charged to statement of comprehensive income dunng the period a5 - 0.5
Transferred from equity 03 - 0.3
Acquisition related (note 14) 1.8 01 19
Utilsed in the penod 12 - 12
At 31 December 2017 18 [+ )] 19
Gurrent 1.8 - 1.8
Non-current - o1 a1
Total T T - s 01 19

Deferred consideration
Deferred consideration at 31 December 2016 related to the acquisition of Oystercatchers Under the sales purchase agreement, the

contingent consideration was to be settled in cash 75% and shares 25% In the prior year, an expense and a provision of £0 4m was
recognised under 1AS 19 (for the cash elerment) and an expense and credit to equrty of £0.2m was recogrised under [FRS 2 (for the share-
based payment element)

During the year, a further expense and provision of £0.4m was recognised under I1AS 19 (for the cash element) and an expense and credi to
equity of £0.2m under IFRS 2 (for the share-based payment element}.

Per agraement with the former Oystercatchers Sharehotders, the total amount of £1.2m was wholly settled i cash during the year and
therefore an adjustment of £0.2m was made to reverse the share-based payment element recognised in the year under IFRS 2 and account
for the charge under IAS 19, appropnately resulting In a total charge of £0.6m. A transfer was made for the total share-based payment
armount of £0 3rm held in non-distnbutable reserves In equrty to provisions netting off against the payment made to settle the hability.

Deferred consideration at 31 Decermnber 2017 relates to the acguisition of MarketMakers incorporated Limited (‘MarketMakers') and 1s
payable within 1 year (see nete 14) The amount payable is dependent on achieving pre-determined EBITDA levels and has been treated as
contingent consideration, All amounts represent the Directors’ bast estimate of the balance to be paid at the statement of financial position
date, based on information available at the acquisthion date.

Other
A dilapidation provision was acqguired on the acquisition of MarketMakers in relation to the building leased by the Company in Portsmouth

The lease expires in December 2022 and therefore the provision s classified as a non-current liabiiity.
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24 BORROWINGS

31 Decemhber 31 December 31 December 31 Decemnber
2017 2016 2017 2016
Group Group Company Company
£m £m £m £m

Non-current liabilitics
Arrangement fee in respect of revolving credit faciity - (O] - 0.1
Revolwing credit facility - 17.5 - 175

- 17 4 - 17.4

All borrowings were classified as non-current at 31 December 2016 At 31 December 2017, there were no drawdowns on the revolving
credit facility Further details about the Group's borrowings are provided in note 29,

25 EQUITY

Nominal value Number of
Ordinary shares of 10p each £m shares

Authorsed share caprtal — Groupgﬁ Com_p_)any
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2017

200 204,000,000

‘Issued and f\]ilﬂ:)éd share bapital - Groupfand &fﬂpany
At 1 January 2016, 31 December 2016 and 31 Decemiber 2017 151 151,410,266

Deferred shares reserve
The deferred shares reserve represents 800,000 (2016: 80C,000) deferred shares of 10p each, which carry restncted voting nghts and have
no right to receive a dividend payment in respect of any financial year,

Reserve for shares to be 1ssued

The reserve for shares to be 1ssued 1s 1n respect of equity-settled share-based compensation plans The changes to the reserve for shares to
be 1ssued rapresent the total charges for the year refating to equity-settled share-based payment transactions with employees as accounted
for under IFRS 2.

Own shares reserve

The own shares reserve reprasents the value of shares held as treasury shares and in an employee benefit trust. At 31 Decemioer 2017,
6,964,613 (2016° 8,870,437) 10p ordinary shares are held in treasury and 91,131 {2016 91,191) 10p ordinary shares are held in an
employes benefit trust.

During 2017, the Company purchased 97,176 (2018: 397,447) ordinary shares to be held in freasury in order to meet future obligations
arising from share-based rewards to employess. The buyback programme was approved by Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting
held on 9@ May 2017 up to a value of ©1 Om The shares were acquired at an average price of 53 58p (2016, 42 75p) per share, with prices
ranging from 46p to 55p. The total cost of £0.1m (2016. £0.2m) has been recagnised in other reserves in the own shares reserve in equity.

102



‘
v centarmedia com FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

The Group's share-based payment expense for the year by scheme:

2017 2016
£m £m
Erdu‘ity—s_ettiedibiansk o - T T
LTIP 056 ©n
Retention Plan - -
SELTIP - -
Share Incentive Plan - _
Total equity-settled incentive plans 05 0.1)
Deferred contingent consideration (note 14) - 0.2
Total share-based payment expense 0.5 o1

The Group's share-based payment schemes are equity-settled. In the prior year opening reserves In equity were restated to account for
historical share plan vests. See note 1(a) for details

The current year charge of £20 5m includes £0 1min retation to national insurance payables on equity-settied share-based schemes and 1s
included n liabilities as it is to be settled in cash.

Leng Term tncentive Plan

The Group operates a Long Term Incentive Pian ('LTIP’) for Executive Directors and selected senior management. This i1s an existing
ncentive policy and was approved by Sharehoiders at the 2006 AGM. The share awards are valued at date of grant and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income 1s charged over the vesting period, taking intc account the number of shares expected to vest.

Full detads of how the scheme operates are included in the Directors’ Remuneraticn Report. These awards were priced using the following
models and inputs.
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26 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS CONTINUED

LTIP 2016 LTIP 2076 LTIP 2016 LTIP 2016 LTIP 2006 LTIP 2006 LTIP 2006 LTIP 2006 LTIP 2006 LTIP 2006

“Grant date 240417 070417 041016 220816 300318 271015 100815 260315 040814 081113
Share price at grant date 45.75 40 75 44.00 4100 49.00 7825 80.5 695 5675 5420
Fair value 24 48 2108 18 04 16 81 2092 47 42 48 22 42 43 48 94 47 16
Exercrse date 2404 20 07 04.20 04 10,19 220919 300319 281018 100818 230318 04,08 17 150317
Exercise price (p) £nil il nil il Cruh nil ay 1] £l £l il
Number of awards
Balance at 1 January 2017 - - 573,395 366,667 2,514,797 143,038 108,566 1,115,439 165,897 1,002,545
Granted dunng the year 1,351,528 3,750,228 - - - - - - ~ -
Forfeited dunng the year - {168,823} - - {455,407) - - (272,447) - -
Exercised dunng the year - - - - - - - - - -
Lapsed dunng the vear - - - - - - - - (155,887 (1,002,545)
Balance at
31 December 2017 1351528 3.589,405 573,385 365 687 2,059.330 143,036 108 556 842,992 - -
Exercisable at
31 December 2017 - - - - - - - - - -
Balance at 1 January 2016 - - - - - 143,036 108,866 2,218,574 155,897 1,438,909
Granted dunng the year - - 573,385 366,667 3,762,937 - - - - -
Forteited dunng the year - - - - {1,238,140) - - {1,103,135) - {436,369
Exercised dunng the year - - - - - - - - - -~
Lapsed dunng the year - - - - - - - - - ~
Balance at
31 Decembper 2016 - -~ 573,395 366,667 2,514 797 142,036 103,556 1,135 439 155,897 1,002,545

Exercisable at

31 December 2016 - - - - - - - - _ -
Average share price at

date of exercise {p) - - - - - - - - - -

The shares outstanding at 31 December 2017 had a weighted average exercise pnce of £nil {2016; £nil) and a weighted remaning life of
1.7 years (2018; 2.0 years)
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LTIP 2016 LTIP 2016 LTI 2016 LTIP2016 LTIP2006 LTIP 2006 LTIP2006 LTIP 2006 LTIP 2006 LTIP 2006
07.0417 041016 220016 3003.16 £7.1015 100815 260315 04.08.14 081113

Grant date 7 5404 15’

Expected volatiity {%) 454 454 43.8 438 318 2810 36 80 39.40 43 60 43 80
Expected dmvdend yield (%) - - - - - - - - - -
Risk free interest rate (%) 012 012 006 0086 048 089 102 058 117 092

Valuaticn of model used Stochastic  Stochastic  Stochastic  Stochastic  Stochastic  Stochastc  Stochastic  Stochastic  Stochastc  Stochastic

2014 Retention Plan
The 2014 Retention Plan was introduced in June 2014 and 1s now closed to new participants Awards vested over a pericd of two or three

years, with the only condition being continued employment Awards were granted under this scheme in 2014 for no consideration and no
exercise price, The Retention Plan did not result In the 1ssue of any new ordinary shares as this plan was not approved by Shareholders. The
awards were settled from the shares held in the Employee Benefit Trust durnng 2016

Senior Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan (‘SELTIP?)

The Centaur Media Pic 2010 Senior Executive Long-Term Incentive Plan (the 'SELTIP’) was introduced dunng 2011 and was approved by
Shareholders at the 2010 AGM This 1s not an HMRC approved scheme and vests over a three year penod with service and performance
conditions  Awards were granted under this schems in 2011 for no consideration and no exercise price. This scheme has closed to new

awdrds,

Awards of bonus units were made in 2013 as summansed n the following table

Number of

Financial Threshold PBTA Profit SELTIP Total Bonus poal  shares awarded

year profit achiaved growth contribution bonus pool allocated” in total**
2013 £8 Cm £8.6m £0.6m 30% £0.1m £01m 118,851

* The Remuneration Gommittee did not allocate the entire bonus pool in 2013.
** Awards were only made to participants with continuing employment
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26 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS CONTINUED

Retention Plan and Seiior Executive Laong-Term Incentive Plan
These awards were priced using the following models and nputs:

Grant date
Share price at grant date

Far value

Exercise date

Exercise price (p)

Number of awards

Balance at 1 January 2017

Granted during the year

Forfeited durng the year

Exercised during the year

Bailance at 31 December 2017
Exercisable at 31 December 2017
Average share price at date of exercise (p)

Balance at 1 January 2016

Granted during the perod

Forfeited duning the penod

Exercised dunng the pernod

Balance at 31 December 2016
Exercisable at 31 December 2016
Average share price at dale of exercise (o)

2014 Retention

Plan SELTIP 2013
SN — 30,06 14 150011

62.38 3388

52.64 23.76

311218 17 09 14

£l £nil

- 6,862

-~ 6,862

- 6,862

382,668 6,862

(382,668) -

- 6,862

- 6,862

4121 -

The shares outstanding at 31 Decemnber 2017 had a weighted average exercise price of £n {2016 Enil} and a weighted remaining life of 4 7

years (2016. 5.7 years).

These awards were priced using the following models and inputs

a’;nt date
Expected volatiity (%)
Expected dvidend yield (%)
Risk free intevest rate (%)
Meoedel of valuation used

2034 Retention
Plan

495
679
1.22

30.06.14

SELTIP 2013

15094t
540
5.26
0.57

Black~Scholes Black-Scholes
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Share Incentive Plan
The Group has a Share Incentive Plan, which 18 an HRMC approved Tax-Advantaged pian, which provides empioyees with the opporiunity

to purchase shares in the Company. This glan 1s open to all employees who have been employed by the Group for more than 12 months.
Employess may invest up to £1,800 per annum (or 10% of therr salary if less) in ordinary shares in the Company, which are held in trust
The shares are purchased in open market and are held in trust for sach employee The shares can be withdrawn with tax paid at any time,
or tax-free after five years The Group matches the contribution with a ratio of one share for every two purchased Other than continuing
employment, there are no other performance condittons attached to the plan

The Executive Directors are eligible to participate in the Share Incentive Plan, as are all employees of the Group

2017 2016
Group Group
57,632 27,727

Number of outstanding matching shares

Deferred contingent consideration
In the prior year, the Group acguired The Oystercatchers LLP on 30 September 2016 (grant date) which included deferred contingent

consideration to be partly settled by shares in the Group The total consideration payable in shares was up to the maximum value of £0 3m
to be 1ssued at the share price on the settlement date The totat cost was spread over the vesting period from 1 October 2016 to 31 March
2017 and a charge of £0 2m was recognised In the staterment of comprehensive income and equity dunng the pnor year The far value of
the share-based payment was deemed to be the maxmum value of consideration payable See note 14

During the year a charge of £0 2m was recegrised in the statement of comprehensive income and eguity The total deferred contingent
consideration was settled whoily in cash during the year and therefore an adjustment was made to reverse the current year charge of £0 2m
from share-based payments under IFRS 2 and recognised as employee compensation under IAS 19. A further adjustment was made to
realiccate the total amount charged to eguity in both years of £0.3m to prowsions See note 14

27 DIVIDENDS
2017 2016
£m £m
Equity dividends S -
Final dividend for 2015 1 5p per 10p ordinary share - 22
Interm dividend for 2016 1 5p per 10p ordinary share - 21
Final dividend for 2018: 1.5p per 10p crdinary share 2.2 -
Intenm dividend for 2017° 1 5p per 10p ordinary share 23 -
4.3 4.3

A final dvidend for the year ended 31 December 2017 of £2 2m (1 Sp per sharg) is proposed by the Directors and, subject to Shareholder
approval at the Annual General Meeting, wilf be paid on 25 May 2018
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28 NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Reconciliation of profit / oss) for the year to net cash inflow from operating actvbes:

Proﬁt/(lgs;sT farﬁtﬁerﬁe;nod
Adjustments for

Tax

Interest expense

Depreciation

Amortisation of ntangible assets
Impairmment of goodwill

Earn-out costs

Share-based payment charge / (credit)
Gamn oh disposal of subsidiary
Unrealised foreign exchange differences
Other

Changes 1 working caprtal (excluding effects of
acquisihons and disposals of subsidiaries):

Decrease / (ncrease) In inventories

Decreass / {increase) in trade and other receivables
{Decrease) / Increase in trade and other payables

increase / (decrease) in defarred Income

Cash generated from operating activities

Analysis of changes in net debt

Group
Cash and cash equivalenis
Revolving credit faciity

‘Net (debt) / cash

Company

Cash and cashié&rzﬂvaiems )

Revolving credit facility
Net {debt) / cash

2017
Group
£m

(20.9)
01
04

Note

2016 2017 2016
Group Campany Company
£&m £m £m

5.4) 2.9 (2.2)

10 (0.7) (0.5

a5 1.4 1.0

06 - -

50 - -

7.2 - -

06 - -

{01) a2 -

©n - -

08 - -

9z (1.0} -

(2.6) 25.2 10.2

©1) - -

153 222 85

At At

31 December Net 21 Decembet
2016 cash flow 2017

£m £m €m
a4 07 a1

(17.5) 175 -

(14 1) 18.2 a1

. At At
31 December Net 31 December
2016 cash flow 2017

£m £m £m

(17 5) 17.5 -
{17.5) 17.5 -
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29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financlal risk management

The Board has overall responsibility for the determination of the Group’s nsk management policies. The Board receives monthly reports from
the Chief Financial Officer through which it reviews the effectiveness of policies and processes put in place te manage risk. The Board sets
policies that reduce risk as far as possible without unduly affecting the operating effectiveness of the Group.

The Group’s activities expose 1t to a variety of financial nsks, including interest rate nsk, credit nsk, iquidity nsk, capital sk and currency risk
Of these, credit nsk and guidity nsk are considered the most sigmificant. This note presents information about the Group’s exposure 1o each

of the above nsks

Categories of financial instiuments

Detals of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted, including the critena for recognition, the basis of measurement and the
kasis on which income and expenses are recognised i respect of each class of financial asset, financial ability and equity instrument are
disclosed 1n note 1{r). All financial assets and habilities are measured at amortised cost.

2017 2016
Note £&m £fm

Financial assets i T
Cash and bank balances 'a 41 34
Trade recevables - net i- 9.0 131
Other recevables 1% 0.9 g8
Total financial assets 14.0 173
Financial liabilities S ) -
Bank barrowings Do - 17.5
Lean notes 24 ~ -
Finance lease payables 2t - -
Trade payables 2C 26 37
Accruals 20 5.3 39
Provisions 25 1.9 0.4
Other payables 2L 1.4 1.3

"7 26.8

Total financial liabillities

Credit risk

The Group's principal financial agsets are trade and other recevables (hote 18) and cash and cash equivalents Credit nsk refers to the nsk
that a counterparty wiii default on its contractual obligations resulting it financial loss to the Group The carrying amount of financial assets
recordad n the financial statements, which is net of Impairment losses, represents the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in refation to
financial assets. Credit risk is managed on a Group basis. The Group does not consider that 1t 1s subject to any significant concentrations of

credt rnisk.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, of varying sizes and spread across diverse industres and gecgraphies. The

Group does not have significant exposure to credit sk in relation to any single counterparty or group of counterparties having similar
charactenistics The Group’s exposure to credit nsk is influenced predominantly by the circumstances of Indwdual sustomers as opposed to

Industry or geographic trends.
The business assesses the credit quality of customers based on their financial posiion, past expenence anc other qualitative and
quantitative factors The Group's policy requires customers to pay in accordance with agreed payment terms, which are generally 30 days

from the date of invoice. Under normal trading conditions, the Group 1s exposed to relatively low levels of nisk, and potental losses are
mitigated as a result of a diversified customer base and the requirement for events and certan premium content subscription Invoices to be

paid In advance of service delivery.

The credit control function within the Group's finance department monitors the outstanding debts of the Group, and trade receivables
balances are analysed by the age and value of outstanding balances.
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29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

Any trade recevable bhalance which is objectively determined to be uncollectible 1s written off the fedger, with a charge taken through

the statement of comprehensive income. The Group also records a provision for estmated impasment losses on its trade receivables
talances. All balances past due are reviewed, with those greater than 90 days past due considered to carry a higher level of credit rigk.
Specific provision is made against customer balances with known credit :ssues or where debt has been referred to a collection agency. The
remaining past due balances are then analysed, with balances relating to revenue recognised m advance, customers on payment pians
and non-payment resulting from administrative quernies consiciered to be of lower risk A judgement is applied to the net balance based on
tustoric experience on a percentage bhasis, taking into account both the age and the reason items remain unpaid

Impairment losses are taken through administrative expenses in the statement of comprehensive ncome

The ageing of trade receivables according to therr onginal due date 15 detaled below

2017 2017 2016 2016

Gross Provision Gross Provision

£m Em £m £m

Notdue - o T T T T - B4 -
(-30 days past due 24 - 32 -
31-60 days past due 1.0 - 12 0.1
61-8C days past due 0.3 - 0.9 (0.1)
Over 90 days past due 16 (1.5) 41 (25)
105 (1.5) 158 27

Trade recervables that are less than 3 manths past due are generally not considered to be impaired, except where specific credit Issues

or delinguency in payments have been identified At 31 December 2017, there are debtors greater than 90 days past due with a camrying
vatug of £0 1im (2016 £1 6mj which have not been provided agamnst In makmng the assessment that these amounts are riot impatred, the
Directors have consddered the gquantum of amounts included in gross trade recevables which relate to amounts not yet included n income,
including pre-event debt included in deferred income and amounts relating to VAL The credit quality of trade recervables not yet due nor
impaired has been assessed as acceptable.

The movement in the provision for impairment of receivables is detailed below:

2017 2016
Group Group
£m £m

Baarce at 1 Janvary i o / 21 o9
Utilised 1.2) (0.5)
Disposal of subsidiaries {0.5) -

Additional provision charged to the staterment of comprehensive Income:

Recorded in adjusted operating profit 0.5 0.5
Adjusting tem in operating loss - 18
Balance at 31 December 15 27

The Group's policy requires customers 1o pay in accordance with agreed payment terms, which are generally 30 days from the date of
invaice or, In the case of ive events related revenue, no less than 30 days betore the avent Al credit and recovery nsk associated with trade
receivables has been provided for in the staterment of financial position. The Group’s policy for recognising an impairment loss is given in
note 1 Impairment losses are taken through administrative expenses in the statement of comprehensive iIncome.

The Directars consider the carying value of trade and other receivables approximates to their farr value.
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Cash and cash equivalents
Banks and financial institutions are independentty rated by credit rating agencies. We choose only tc deal with those with a minimum 'A'
rating We determine the credn quality for cash and cash sguivalents to be strong

Other receivables
Cther recevables are naither past due nor impared. These are pnmanly rmade up of sundry recevabiles, including employee-related debtors
and recetvabies in respect of distnbution arangements.

Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk 1s the nsk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. Quring the year, the Group was in a
net borrowings position until the end of July, from which time through to 31 December 2017, the Group mantained a net cash position The
Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and working capital credt facilties, and by centinucusly monitenng forecast
and actual cash flows The total facility available to the Group 1s £25.0m and 1s available through to August 2019 As at 31 Decernber 2017,
the Group had cash of £4 1m (2015: £3.4m) with a full undrawn loan facility of £25.0m (2016: undrawn loan faciites of £7.5m).

The following tables detall the financial matunty for the Group's financal habilmes:

Less than
Book value Fair value 1year 2-5 years
£m £m £m £m
At31 December 2017 - -
Financial fiabilities
Variable interest rate instruments - - - -
MNor—interest beanng "7 "7 1.7 -
1.7 1.7 14.7 -
At 31 December 2016 T T T T
Financial iabilites
Vanable nterest rate nstruments 175 175 - 17.5
Non—interest beanng 9.3 93 93 -

26.8 26.8 9.3 175
The Directors consider that book value 18 materially equal to fair value

The bock value of primary financial instruments approximates to far value where the instrument 1s on a short matunty or where they bear
interest at rates that approximate to the market.

All trade and other payables are due In one year or less, or on demand

Interest rate risk

The Group has no significant interest-bearing assets but is exposed to interest rate risk when it Lorrows funds at floating interest rates
through its revolving credrt faciity Borrowings 1ssued at vanable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate nsk  The Group evaluates
its nsk appetite towards interest rate nsks regularly, and may undettake hedging activities, including interest rata swap contracts, to manage
interest rate nsk in relation to its revolving credst facility if deermed necessary.

The Group did not enter INto any hedging transactions during the current or prior year and, as at 31 December 2017, the cnly floating rate
to which the Group 1s exposed was LIBOR, The Group’s exposure 10 interest rates on financial assets and financral lizbilities 18 detalled in the
hquidity risk section of this note
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29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT CONTINUED

{nterest rate sensitivity
The Group has exposure to interest rate nsk, and sensitivity analysis has been performed based on exposure to variable interest rates at the
reporting date

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher or lower and all other vanables were held constant, the Group's net profit after tax would
increase / decrease by an insignificant amount

CapHal nisk
The Group manages its capital to ensure that ali entities In the Group wilt be able to continue as a going concern while maximising return to
stakeholders, as well as sustaining the future development of the business.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt/cash, which includes borrowings (note 24) and cash and cash equivalents {note 19),
and equity attnbutable to the owners of the parent, comprising 1ssued share capital (note 25}, other reserves and retained earnings. The
Board also considers the levels of own shares held for employee share schemes, and the ability to 1ssue new shares for acquisitions, in
managing capital nsk in the business.

The Group continuss to benefit from its banking faciktties (as renewed durng June 2015}, which features both a working capital facility, to
assist in managing the Group's liguidity nsk, and an acquisition facility to support the Group’s acquisition strategy. The facility, available until
August 2019, allows for a maxamum drawdown of £25m.

Interast 15 calculated ot LIBOR plus a margin dependent on the Group's net leverage posttion, which is remeasured quarterly in fine with
covenant testing. The Group’s borrowings are subject to financial covenants tested quarterly. The principal financial covenants under the
facihty are that the ratio of net debt to adjusted EBITDA (see note 1(b) for explanation and recondiliation of adjusted EBITDA) shall not
exceed 2.5:1 and the ratio of EBITDA to net finance charges shall not be less than 4:1. At 31 December 2017, and throughout 2017, all of
these covenants were achieved.

Currency risk

Substantially all of the Group's net assets are located in the United Kingdom. The majorty of revenue and profits 1s generated in the United
Kingdom and consequently foreign exchanga risk is imited  The Group continues to moritor its exposure {o currency risk, particularly as
the business expands INto overseas terntonies such as North America, however the results of the Group are not currently considered to be
sensitive o mMovements IN currency rates.

30 GPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS - MINIMUM LEASE PAYMENTS

At 31 December 2017, the Group had committed to the following payments in respect of operating leases on land and buildings

2017 2016
Commitments payable under non-canceflable operating leases €m £m
Within 1 year o o ' o o I T
Later than 1 year and less than 5 years 3.8 4.9

5.9 7.0

At 31 December 2017, the Group had contracted with tenants to receive payments In respect of operating leases on land and buildings

2017 2016
Commitments receivable under non-cancellable subleases _ £m £m
Within 1 year o7 0.5
Later than 1 year and less than 5 years 0.5 0.8

The Company does not have any operating lease commitments.

31 PENSION SCHEMES

The Group contributes to individual and collective money purchase pension schemes In respact of Directors and employees ance they have
completed the requisite perod of service. The chargs for the penad in respect of these defined contributiort schermes is shawn in hate 5.
Included wrthin other payables 1s an amount of £0.1m (2816 £0 1m) payable in respect of the money purchase pension schemes
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32 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
At 31 December 2017, the Group had capital commitments totalling £nil (31 December 2016 £nil).

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Group
Key management compensation is disclosed in note 5 There were no other matenal related party transactions for the Group in the current
Or prior year

Company
Dunng the year, Interest was recharged from subsidiary comparies as foliows
2017 2016
£m £m
Interest payable 1.0 0.4

Borrowings of £17.6m were repaid (2016 £3 5m) by subsidianas on behalf of the Company

The balances cutstanding with subsidiary companies are disclosed in notes 18 and 20.

There were no other mateniat related party transactions for the Company in the current or pnor year

Audit exemption

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company has prowided a guarantee pursuant to sections 478A-C of Companies Act 2006 over
the labilitres of the following subsicianes and, as such, they are exemnpt from the requirernents of the Act relating to the audit of Individuai
financial statements, or preparation of individual financial statements, as apprepnate, for this financial year

Qutstanding
Company fiahilities
Mame MNumber £m
‘Centawr Communications Limted 01595235 106
Chiron Communications Limited 01081808 56.3
The Forum for Expatriate Management Limited 06776955 0.2
Pro-Talk Limited 03939119 0.2
Taxbriefs Holdngs Limited 03572069 -
Taxbrigfs Limited 01247331 0.4
Investment Platferms Limited 06439194 01
Venture Business Research Limited 05663936 1.4
The Profile Group (UK) Limited 05243851 0.7
Econsultancy com Limited 04047149 0.8
Mayfield Publishing Limited 02034820 -
Your Business Magazine Limited 01707331 03
MarketMakers Incorporated Limited 05063707 -

The newly acquired business MarketMakers Incorporated Limited will have its statutory audit for the year ended 31 December 2017
performed by RSM UK

34 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

No material events have occurred after the reporting period
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2013 2014 2015 2016 2047

Revenues {(Em) 744 72.8 70.5 72.5 65.4
Live events and premium content revenues as % of whaole 66% 68% 67% 71% 68%
Operating {oss} / profit (Em} (33.3) 30 47 3.9) (0.3}
Adjusted operating profit 10.0 10.2 10.5 a1 41
Adjusted operating profit margm 13% 14% 15% 13% 6%
{Loss) / profit before tax (Em) 357 14.2 586) 44 [{eled]
Adjusted profit before tax (Em) 88 9.2 98 36 37
Adusted diluted EPS (pence) 4.7 5.0 5.3 435 18
Diidend per share {pence) 24 3.0 30 30 3.0
Net operating cash flow (€m) 99 12.3 4.7 14.0 121
Average permanent headcount (FTE) 598 576 564 554 515
Revenue per head (£'000) 124 126 125 131 127
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

Revenue by type £m £m £m £m £
Live events 280 289 27 2 307 267
Premium content 21.1 20.6 19.9 20.8 181
Advettising 24.6 224 225 20.2 13.5
Capability services - — - - 64
Other Q.7 0.8 Q8 08 1.0
74.4 72.8 70.5 725 65.4

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

£m £m £m £m £m

Goodwill and other intangible assets ) - 122.7 1009 964  88B ‘942
Other assets and liabilities (18 8) 8.4) (2 1) {7 8) {53.4)
Net assets betore net debt 1041 101.5 94.3 81.2 BOSB
Net debt 27 0 14.7) (17.9) (14.1) a4
Total equity 771 86.8 764 67.1 24.9
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